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NEW OPPORTUNITIES

2012 marks the 30th anniversary of the founding

of Kith Group. The Group will continue to adhere

to its spirit of “SOLID FOUNDATION & NEW
OPPORTUNITIES” . Along with the efforts on its core
business of package printing, the Group has also
proactively explored suitable and potential business
opportunities. Following its successful spin-off and
separate listing of the design and sale of integrated
circuits business on the Growth Enterprise Market of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong, the Group has further
diversified its business scopes to enhance its enterprise
value and continue to grow and development with its

shareholders and business partners.
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86.3%

BHEEORZEK  Package printing business 35.4%
5 Tobacco 84.7%
& Pharmaceutical products 7.4%
i Wine 5.9%
Hit Others 2.0%
DEHER Distribution business 64.6%
DIYERER  Distribution of television

HEE® business-related products 7.2%
D HATE T & Distribution of other electronic and

EEED related products 88.2%
ERREEFEE©  Design, development and sale

3 KLiHE of integrated circuits 4.6%
H The PRC 86.3%
BB Hong Kong 9.1%
xBE USA 4.6%
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REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11
Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

1st Floor, Hing Lung Commercial Building
68 Bonham Strand East

Hong Kong

E-mail: info@kithholdings.com

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Hui King Chun, Andrew (Chairman)
Mr. Yau Chau Min, Paul

Mr. Hui Bin Long

Mr. Zhou Jin

Mr. Wang Feng Wu

Non-executive Director

Mr. Liu Kam Lung

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Ng Chi Yeung, Simon
Mr. Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy
Mr. Ho Lok Cheong

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Chan Tak On

AUDITOR

Graham H.Y. Chan & Co.
Certified Public Accountants (Practising)
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BREBFETHAE

The Bank of Bermuda Limited
Bank of Bermuda Building

6 Front Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

REERBEEBREZ

iPR Ogilvy Ltd.

N

2R REBHIE

IR 20182008 E 12F
B 1 (852) 2136 6185
fH5E : (852) 3170 6606
B : info.ipr@iprogilvy.com

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

CITIC Bank International Limited
DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
Fubon Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
Hang Seng Bank Limited
Chinatrust Commercial Bank, Ltd.

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

The Industrial and Commercial Bank of China

KBC Bank N.V., Hong Kong Branch

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

HONG KONG LEGAL ADVISER
Reed Smith Richards Butler

BERMUDA LEGAL ADVISER

Conyers Dill & Pearman

CHINA LEGAL ADVISER
Zhongyin Lawyer Group

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR

Tricor Abacus Limited
26th Floor, Tesbury Centre
28 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

BERMUDA PRINCIPAL REGISTRAR

The Bank of Bermuda Limited
Bank of Bermuda Building

6 Front Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

INVESTOR & MEDIA RELATIONS
iPR Ogilvy Ltd.

Units 2008-12, 20/F, The Center
99 Queen’s Road Central

Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2136 6185

Fax: (852) 3170 6606

E-mail: info.ipr@iprogilvy.com
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On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”)
of Kith Holdings Limited (the “Company”), together
with its subsidiaries (the “Group”), | am pleased to
announce the operational results of the Group and
to present the annual report for the year ended 31st
December, 2077,

DIVIDENDS

The Company maintains a stable dividend policy. An
interim dividend of HK2.3 cents per share has been paid
for the six months ended 30th June, 2011. The Board
recommends the payment of the final dividend of HK4.3
cents per share for the year 2011, and it maintains the

same dividend payout ratio of approximately 50.0%.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Package Printing Division

The turnover from package printing business for the
year ended 31st December, 2011 was HK$709,392,000,
representing an increase of 17.7% from the same
period of 2010. Gross profit margin remained steady at
31.3% compared to 32.5% in 2010. Gross profit from
the package printing business, which remains the core
business of the Group, accounted for approximately
82.5% of the Group’s total gross profit for the year ended
31st December, 2011.

Tobacco package printing is still the core product line
of the package printing division, which accounted for
approximately 84.7% of the total turnover of the division.
The history of the Group’s profitable package printing
business proves that the Group’'s business model will

remain profitable for the foreseeable future.

Kith Holdings Limited
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Starting in 2011, the tobacco enterprises in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC") has mandated a tendering
system for their business. Vendors like the Group’s Yunnan
subsidiary has to submit tenders for their annual business
with the tobacco enterprises each year. The result of the
Group’s Yunnan subsidiary’s tender was great and the
subsidiary has secured orders for the year with amounts
exceeding those in 2010. This result demonstrates the
superior technical and marketing expertise of the Group’s
package printing division in the tobacco packaging
business in the PRC.

During the year, the Company’s 60% owned Yunnan
subsidiary has acquired an additional 28% interest in
the Group’s Anhui subsidiary from a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. Both the Yunnan subsidiary
and the Anhui subsidiary are engaged in the design,
manufacturing and sale of package printing products.
This move will lead to synergies from the mutual sharing
of management personnel, technological know-how,
production capabilities and market development and
this in turn should enhance the Group’s profitability. The
consideration was approximately RMB25,036,000 and was
determined based on the attributable net assets value of
the underlying assets in this transaction. As a result of
the transaction, the Group’s effective interest in Anhui
subsidiary has been diluted to 54.8%.
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The Group continues to invest to upgrade and improve
the technologies and capabilities of the package printing
division. During the year, a new sophisticated printing
machinery was ordered from Bobst SA at a consideration
of approximately CHF4,180,000. The new machine will
be installed and ready for production by the second half
of 2012. This acquisition is financed partly by internal
resources and partly by bank borrowings.

Distribution Business

Turnover from the distribution business of television
business-related products (consisting mainly of liquid
crystal display (“LCD") television sets and converter
boxes distributed to the United States of America
(the "USA") customers) during the year amounted
to HK$92,618,000, a drastic decrease compared to
HK$513,044,000 in 2010. This division also incurred a
loss of approximately HK$20,412,000 during the year.
The division’s unsatisfactory performance was due to the
sluggish demand in consumer electronic products in the
USA and also because the USA subsidiary was entering a
transitional phase during 2011. During the year, the USA
subsidiary replaced the old brand name “Apex” with the
new brands “Affinity” for television sets and “KCPI” for
converter boxes. Due to this change, additional time and
marketing effort was required for getting orders from the
retail chain stores and this hurt the turnover and results of
this division in 2011. The Group is currently reviewing its
future operating and marketing strategy of this division.

Kith Holdings Limited
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Other electronic and related products

Turnover from the distribution business of other electronic
and related products (consisting mainly of LCD panels,
computer components and portable storage devices
distributed to customers in Hong Kong and the PRC)
during the year amounted to HK$1,138,589,000, with
an increase of 26.8% compared to the turnover of 2010.
The gross profit margin increased slightly from 1.8% to
2.3%. The increase in turnover was due to the successful
marketing efforts in capturing business in this segment.

Integrated circuits design, development and sale division

Minilogic Device Corporation Limited (“Minilogic HK"),
the subsidiary specialised in the design, development and
sale of integrated circuits, achieved a breakthrough in its
business by producing and selling integrated circuits for
“electronic cigarettes” in the PRC in 2010. The business
for “electronic cigarettes” in the PRC cooled down slightly
in 2011 and both the turnover and profit contribution
dropped compared to those of 2010. The profit for the
year of this division decreased from HK$15,128,000 in
2010 to HK$11,250,000 in 2011. This division was spun
off on 19th January, 2012 and will be accounted for as
an associated company in 2012 and the results of this
division is disclosed as “discontinued operation” in the
consolidated financial statements.
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Spin-off

On 4th May, 2011, the Company submitted a spin-off
proposal to The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Stock Exchange”) in relation to the proposed spin-off
and separate listing of the design, development and sale
of integrated circuits business on the Growth Enterprise
Market (“GEM") of the Stock Exchange.

On 22nd June, 2011, Megalogic Technology Holdings
Limited (“Megalogic Holdings"”) submitted an application
for the listing of, and permission to deal in, the ordinary
shares of Megalogic Holdings of HK$0.1 each (“Megalogic
Shares”) in issue and to be issued on the GEM.

Megalogic Holdings was incorporated as an exempted
company in the Cayman Islands on 31st March, 2011. Prior
to the spin-off, a reorganisation was carried out pursuant
to which Megalogic Holdings became the holding company
of Minilogic HK. Minilogic HK is principally engaged in
provision of integrated circuits solutions and the design,
development and sale of integrated circuits products.

On 23rd December, 2011, the Stock Exchange granted
an approval in principle (the “In Principle Approval”) for
the Group to spin off its design, development and sale of
integrated circuits business through a separate listing of
Megalogic Holdings, a then subsidiary of the Company, on
GEM (the “Spin-off”).

Kith Holdings Limited
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The Spin-off has been completed on 19th January, 2012.

Upon the completion of the Spin-off, the Group’s interest
in Megalogic Holdings has been diluted from 52.01%
to 39.01% and resulted in losing control of Megalogic
Holdings. Megalogic Holdings has been deconsolidated
from that date and will be accounted for as an associated
company.

The Board believes that the Spin-off is beneficial to the
shareholders as the Company will be able to realise the
value of its investment in Megalogic Holdings by way of
having an investment in readily marketable securities.

Human Resources Development

As at 31st December 2011, the number of employees of
the Group was approximately 1,000 employees, most of
whom were working for the Group’s production plants in
the PRC.

The Group has offered continuous training to employees
to update their knowledge on the latest technology on
package printing and to maintain the Group’s competitive
edge in the most advanced package printing technology
and design techniques. The Group adopts a systematic
approach on staff performance appraisal to ensure that
every employee is rewarded on a fair and assessable basis.
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Future prospects

The management is confident that the demand for high
quality consumer products, mainly tobacco, which is
the major market segment of the Group, will continue
to maintain steady growth with the stable economic
growth and improving living standards in the PRC. The
Board believes that with the Group's years of working
relationship and partnerships with tobacco enterprises
in the PRC, experienced management, strong research
and development (“R&D") capability and continued
investment in leading technologies and equipment, the
Group will continue to reap rewards from the domestic
consumption market in the PRC. The purchase of the new
sophisticated printing machinery is a testament to the
Group’s commitment in maintaining the competitiveness
and growth potential of this division.

In the past three years, the Group has successfully
tapped into the equity markets for opportunities for
future growth. The Group’s shares were listed as Taiwan
Depository Receipts in February 2010 and the integrated
circuits design, development and sale division was spun off
in January 2012 on GEM. The Group will continue to look
for various investment opportunities to enhance the return
to shareholders.

Kith Holdings Limited

13



14

EE®RE
Chairman’s Statement

RERR AEBEKEEYECHEMEBEE
FE—FEREEBZ T BREMREER
KRz EREA RIABESRE - 5
—hE ARBEERTEXEETHERZT
BHERIRE - WER M TISHITE R KR -

&)

AANERERAKERHEEEERM BB
REBEE —BEURERNEE 2 25 Kk
o RE AABHHEER  REE MK
BEEAEE TS REEBAROHE

AR iR
FE

EH —E——F=A=+—H

Annual Report 2011

Looking forward, the Group will continue to seek other
business opportunities for the further development and
diversification, which include expanding its product
portfolio and geographical coverage for the package
printing division. On the other hand, the Group is
reviewing the marketing environment of consumer
electronic products in the USA for adoption of future
strategy in this market.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Group, | wish to express my sincere
thanks to our management team, employees and business
partners for their continued dedication and commitment
to the Group. Finally, I would like to express my gratitude
to our shareholders, investors and financial institutions for
their continued support and trust towards the Group.

Hui King Chun, Andrew
Chairman

Hong Kong, 31st March, 2012



BEE 2 wmEDN
Management'’s Discussion & Analysis

B %5 [ B8

FEBRBEREEB CEERER
1,940,599,000 T BT —TF T
36% NEAEESHEREBHEBAESD
Bz EEBARTHAE - BROFIER
CEXHREBEAFRETRER AT %
% 49602,904,0008 T LA ZE T ——F 2
709,392,000 7T - B2 BBl ¥ 7% 2 £ FI X
THBRE B313% BEZFR—EHIFE
E e EI@%%WEE@E%%%Z Pz
T —-FH49897,602,000/8 T AR EFHE
T ——1%21,138,589,000/8 7T - AT + AR
EBHEBEROHEEXBABA_T—2F
#]513,044,000B TAB N BEE-_T——F 2
92,618,000 7T - NEE v BB ELERHITH
AU EPFIR IR R T B o

FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

The Group’s total turnover from continuing operations of
approximately HK$1,940,599,000 was 3.6% lower than

that of 2010, which was a result of the large decrease
in turnover of the distribution of television business-
related product division of the Group. The package
printing business continued to maintain a steady growth
in turnover, from approximately HK$602,904,000 in
2010 to HK$709,392,000 in 2011. Gross profit margin
of the package printing business was a very healthy
31.3% and remains steady over many years. The
turnover for the distribution of electronic and related
products also increased significantly from approximately
HK$897,602,000 in 2010 to HK$1,138,589,000 in
2011. However, the turnover for the distribution
of television business-related products decreased
drastically from approximately HK$513,044,000 in 2010
to HK$92,618,000 in 2011. The overall turnover of
the Group decreased as a result of the unsatisfactory

performance of this division.

Kith Holdings Limited
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The gross profit from continuing operations for the year
decreased by approximately HK$3,690,000 or 1.5% as
compared to that of 2010. The decrease in gross profit
was a direct result of the large decrease in turnover of the
distribution of television business-related products in the
USA. The overall gross profit margin of the Group from
continuing operations increased slightly from 12.4% in
2010 t0 12.7% in 2011.

Distribution and selling expenses increased from
approximately HK$5,932,000 in 2010 to approximately
HK$13,996,000. The increase was the result of additional

transportation and freight cost incurred during the year.

Administrative expenses increased from approximately
HK$116,933,000 in 2010 to approximately
HK$130,253,000 in 2011. The increase was mainly due
to the additional staff cost of the USA subsidiary and the
research and development fees for the Group’s projects

during the year.
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The profit attributable to owners of the Company for
the year decreased from HK$55,775,000 in 2010 to
HK$35,070,000 in 2011, representing a decrease of
37.1% as compared to that of 2010. This was mainly
attributable to the unsatisfactory performance of the
distribution of television business-related product
division in the USA. Basic earnings per share for the
year ended 31st December, 2011 decreased to HK13.41
cents as compared to HK21.33 cents for 2010. The
Group maintains a steady dividend policy of distributing
approximately 50.0% of its profit attributable to owners of

the Company as dividends to shareholders.

Working Capital

As at 31st December, 2011, the Group (excluding the
assets and liabilities attributable to a disposal group
classified as held for sale) had net current assets of
approximately HK$290,737,000 (2010:HK$225,008,000).
The current assets as at 31st December, 2011 comprised
of inventories of approximately HK$142,196,000
(2010: HK$174,957,000), trade and other receivables
of approximately HK$762,446,000 (2010: HK$
646,380,000), short-term loans receivable of

Kith Holdings Limited
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approximately HK$95,526,000 (2010: HK$65,605,000),
bank balances and cash of approximately HK$81,814,000
(2010: HK$65,074,000), held-for-trading investments of
approximately HK$4,873,000 (2010: HK$1,972,000) and
other financial assets of approximately HK$Nil (2010:
HK$377,000). The current liabilities comprised of trade
and other payables of approximately HK$211,538,000
(2010: HK$264,260,000), dividend and tax payables of
an aggregate amount of approximately HK$22,956,000
(2010: HK$14,124,000), and borrowings classified as
current liabilities of approximately HK$562,252,000 (2010:
HK$ 451,586,000).

The increase in trade receivables at 31st December, 2011
was mainly due to the large increase in turnover of the
distribution of other electronic and related products.
The decrease in trade payable and the increase in bank
borrowings was a result of utilising relatively more bank
financing and hence less suppliers’ credit to support the
Group’s distribution business. Of the short-term loans
receivable of approximately HK$95,526,000 at 31st
December, 2011, a total of approximately HK$70,136,000

were settled after the balance sheet date.



BEE 2 wmEDN
Management'’s Discussion & Analysis

RZE——F+_A=+—HB x&EBAE
ESF(E#)954,119,0008 7L MR T —ZT4F
+ = A =+—HHI#875,341,000/8 7T °

REES KU BER
W—_E——F+_A=+—H A&EBEZ
RITEE BB 4561,305,0008 1 &R =
T-—ZEF+-A=+—RHZRITEERSE
445,811,000/ 7T » RITEE G I Ty A pA 15 00
MARTHESHOHAME T RIEFER
Bz ER - FEAEABLX (AFEAER
IRITABRRIBSBRURRE & LT
HH T TEZMUI3% AR T ——F
250.4% °

The net asset value of the Group as at 31st December,
2011 amounted to approximately HK$954,119,000 versus
approximately HK$875,341,000 as at 31st December,
2010.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31st December, 2011, the Group’s aggregate
bank borrowings amounted to approximately
HK$561,305,000,which was higher than the total
bank borrowings as at 31st December, 2010 of
HK$445,811,000. The increase in bank borrowings was a
result of using more bank finance to support the growth
of the division of distribution of other electronic and
related products. The net gearing ratio, representing the
interest bearing liabilities less bank balances and cash
divided by shareholders’ equity plus non-controlling
interests, increased from 44.3% in 2010 to 50.4% in
2011.

Kith Holdings Limited
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The interest rates for all the loans are fixed on monthly,
quarterly or semi-annual basis. The finance costs for
the year of HK$21,186,000 were higher than those of
2010 because of the increase in average borrowings of
the Group in 2011. The Group continues to monitor its
working capital requirement closely with a view to lower
the finance cost and maintain a healthy net gearing ratio

of the Group.

All of the sales and purchases for the package printing
division are denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) and most
of the sales and purchases for the distribution division
are denominated in United States dollar or Hong Kong
dollar. As the corresponding sales and purchases are
denominated in the same currencies, the Group has

minimal exchange rate risk exposure.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Hui King Chun, Andrew, aged 61, is the founder
of the Group and chairman and managing director of the
Company. He is also non-executive director and chairman
of Megalogic Technology Holdings Limited (“Megalogic
Holdings"”), being an associated company of the Company.
Mr. Hui is responsible for the overall management and
development of corporate policy and strategy of the
Group, and the liaison with various local governments and
authorities in the PRC. He has over 33 years of experience
in management and manufacturing, including 19 years of
experience in the printing and packaging business.

Mr. Yau Chau Min, Paul, aged 48, is the general manager
of the Group and is responsible for daily operations and
project management, setting up administration policies,
devising the Group’s marketing strategy and overall
management of the Group’s sales activities. He holds a
master degree in business administration from University
of Warwick in the United Kingdom after graduating from
National Taiwan University with a Bachelor of Arts in
Economics. Mr. Yau has had over 24 years of experience in
marketing and sales, corporate finance and management
with several multinational companies. He joined the Group
in June 1994.

Mr. Hui Bin Long, aged 64, is responsible for the
Group’s R&D in printing technology and applications,
establishing and maintaining an effective and efficient
printing operating system and advising on product types
and market penetration. Mr. Hui has over 34 years of
experience in printing operations. He joined the Group in
June 1993.

Mr. Zhou Jin, aged 52, was one of the founding members
of Yunnan Qiaotong Package Printing Co., Ltd. (“Yunnan
Qiaotong”). He is currently the vice chairman and general
manager of Yunnan Qiaotong, and is responsible for its
overall management. Mr. Zhou is a senior economist in
the PRC and graduated from the Chinese Academy of
Social Sciences with a master degree in Commerce and
Economics. Prior to joining the Group in March 1993,
he was engaged in academic and research activities with
a university and a governmental bureau respectively in
Yunnan Province of the PRC.

Kith Holdings Limited
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Mr. Wang Feng Wu, aged 57, is the general manager of
Harbin Gaomei Printing Co., Ltd. and is responsible for its
overall management. He is an economist in the PRC and
a graduate of Beijing Institute of Graphic Communication
in the PRC. Prior to joining the Group in March 1993,
he had over 20 years of experience in production and

management in the PRC’s printing industry.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Liu Kam Lung, aged 48, has been non-executive
director of the Company since 6th October, 2010. He
is also executive director, finance director and company
secretary of Megalogic Holdings, carrying out design,
development and sale of integrated circuit business. Mr.
Liu is an associate member of Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, United
Kingdom, an associate member of Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries, an associate member of Institute of
Chartered Secretaries of Administrators, United Kingdom,
a full member of the Society of Registered Financial
Planners and an associate member of the Taxation Institute
of Hong Kong. Mr. Liu has been working in the financial

industry for 21 years.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ng Chi Yeung, Simon, aged 54, is a qualified solicitor
in Hong Kong, England and Wales, an advocate and
solicitor in Singapore, and a barrister in the Australian
Capital Territory. Mr. Ng is a consultant of Rowland Chow,
Chan & Company, a law firm in Hong Kong. He is also
an independent non-executive director of another public
listed company in Hong Kong, namely, Winfair Investment
Company Limited. Mr. Ng holds a bachelor degree from
the Manchester Metropolitan University in the United
Kingdom and a master degree in Chinese and Comparative
Law. Mr. Ng is a part-time lecturer of the University of
Hong Kong. He was appointed by the Company in May
1998 and is the chairman of the remuneration committee
and a member of the audit committee of the Company.

Mr. Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy, aged 48, graduated from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University and is a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
He is currently the president of Essentack Limited, a
corporate strategy and management advisory company.
He is an independent non-executive director and the
remuneration committee chairman of KEE Holdings
Company Limited, a company whose shares are listed
on the Stock Exchange, and also an independent non-
executive director and the nomination committee chairman
of Renheng Enterprise Holdings Limited, a company whose
shares are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Tam was
appointed by the Company in September 2004 and is the
chairman of the audit committee and a member of the
remuneration committee of the Company.

Mr. Ho Lok Cheong, aged 49, is a partner of Messrs.
Andrew Law & Franki Ho, Solicitors, with particular
focusing on corporate commercial, listing, merger &
acquisition and commercial litigation works. He graduated
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong, major in
physics and computer science in 1985. Mr. Ho obtained
his law degree from Manchester Metropolitan University
of the United Kingdom and finished his Postgraduate
Certificate in Law in the University of Hong Kong in 1996.
He was then admitted as a solicitor of the High Court
of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region and as
a solicitor of England and Wales. Mr. Ho was appointed
by the Company in June 2006 and is a member of the
audit committee and the remuneration committee of the
Company.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. Chan Tak On, aged 45, is the company secretary

and financial controller of the Company. He is responsible
for the overall financial and company secretarial matters
of the Group. Mr. Chan holds a Bachelor of Economics
degree and a Master of Science in Finance degree, and
is also a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a CPA member of CPA
Australia. He joined the Group in May 2008.

Madam Mak Kit Ying, Maggie, aged 44, is the senior
project manager of the Group. She is responsible for
project exploring and development, coordinating the
Group's production facilities in the PRC and facilitating
the procurement of production equipment, spare parts,
accessories and raw materials. Madam Mak joined the
Group in March 1993.

Mr. Au Yeung Ho Ming, aged 62, is the printing
development manager of the Group. He is responsible
for the field study of offset printing operation in Yunnan
Qiaotong and Anhui Qiaofeng Package Printing Co., Ltd.
("Anhui Qiaofeng”), providing production management
and technical training for its offset printing department,
and advising on the direction for the future development
for the Group regarding product and equipment
combinations. Prior to joining the Group in July 2002,
Mr. Au Yeung had over 30 years of experience in printing

industry.
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Mr. Tse Wai Kwok, Raymond, age 50, is the Chief
Executive Officer of the subsidiary of the Company, Kith
Consumer Product Inc. Mr. Tse has over 25 years of
experience in USA based operations, with specific focus
in global sourcing and supply chain management within
the consumer products discipline, marketing and business
development. Mr. Tse holds a Bachelor of Science degree
in Computer Science and a Bachelor of Arts degree in
International Studies from Seattle Pacific University. Prior
to joining the Group in October 2011, Mr. Tse served as
senior executive at several Fortune 1000 companies in the

USA including the Walt Disney Company.

Mr. Zhang Jing, aged 52, has been employed by
Yunnan Qiaotong since its inception and is currently its
deputy general manager. He is responsible for its sales
and marketing activities and procurement. Mr. Zhang
graduated from the People’s University of China with a

master degree in business administration.

Mr. Li Jian Ping, aged 54, has been the deputy general
manager of Yunnan Qiaotong since March 2001. Mr.
Li has had over 26 years of experience in production

management of the PRC’s tobacco manufacturing industry.

Mr. Wen lJie, aged 49, has been employed by Yunnan
Qiaotong since its inception and is currently its deputy
general manager. He is responsible for its product
design, material application, production technique and
workmanship. Mr. Wen holds a bachelor degree of science

from University of Yunnan in the PRC.

Mr. Jiang Fei, aged 50, has been employed by Yunnan
Qiaotong since its inception and is currently its deputy
general manager. He is responsible for the management
of production and workmanship. Mr. Jiang is an engineer
in the PRC and holds a bachelor degree from Yunnan

University of Technology in the PRC.
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Mr. Tao Fei Hu, aged 58, was the deputy general
manager of Yunnan Qiaotong since July 2001 and one of
the founding members of Yunnan Qiaotong. Since January
2010, he is transferred to Anhui Qiaofeng as a general
manager. Mr. Tao has had over 37 years of working
experience in production and marketing management in
the PRC.

Mr. Wei He, aged 65, has been employed by Anhui
Qiaofeng since its inception and is currently its deputy
general manager. He is responsible for the production
techniques and quality assurance. Mr. Wei has had over 46

years of experience in the PRC’s printing industry.

Mr. Chen Tong Kun, aged 47, was employed by Yunnan
Qiaotong and has been transferred to Anhui Qiaofeng
since its inception as a deputy general manager for the
production management of the operation. Mr. Chen is a
graduate of Beijing Institute of Graphic Communication in
the PRC. He has had over 19 years of working experience

in production management in the PRC’s printing industry.

Mr. Huang Li San, aged 45, has been employed by
Anhui Qiaofeng since its inception, and is currently its
deputy general manager and responsible for the sales and
marketing activities. Mr. Huang is an art designer and
has had over 23 years of experience in the PRC’s printing

industry.

Mr. Li Li Bin, aged 48, has been employed by Anhui
Qiaofeng since its inception and is currently its deputy
general manager and responsible for management of
production facilities. Mr. Li has had over 22 years of

experience in the PRC’s printing industry.
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The Board presents its annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st
December, 2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in

note 46 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
known as the “Group”) for the year ended 31st December,
2011 are set out in the consolidated income statement on
pages 46-48.

An interim dividend of HK2.3 cents per share amounting
to approximately HK$6,013,000 was paid to the
shareholders during the year. The Board now recommends
the payment of a final dividend of HK4.3 cents per share
to the shareholders on the register of members on 18th
June, 2012 amounting to approximately HK$11,243,000,
and the retention of the remaining profit for the year of
HK$17,814,000.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group continued its plant replacement
policy and expended approximately HK$25,464,000 on
property, plant and equipment.

Details of these and other movements during the year in

the property, plant and equipment of the Group are set

out in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.
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RESULTS, ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The following table summarises the consolidated results,
assets and liabilities of the Group for the five years ended

& - 31st December, 2011.
25 -T-SF _FTTNF ZTENF ZZTZTLF
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
FHEx FHET FET FHET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FiN/NEIEEF =N Profit attributable to
J& {3 F) owners of the Company 35,070 55,775 50,783 37,951 77,527
BEE Total assets 1,793,466 1,650,049 1,488,223 1,538,006 1,542,665
BEE Total liabilities (839,347) (774,708) (698,590) (792,227) (834,564)

954,119 875,341 789,633 745,779 708,101
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31st December, 2011, the Group's aggregate bank
borrowings amounted to approximately HK$561,305,000,
which was higher than the total bank borrowings as at
31st December, 2010 of HK$445,811,000. The net gearing
ratio, representing the interest bearing liabilities less bank
balances and cash divided by shareholders’ equity plus
non-controlling interests, increased from 44.3% in 2010 to
50.4% in 2011.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of share capital of the Company are set out in note
36 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31st December, 2011, the Company’s reserves
available for distribution consisted of contributed surplus
of HK$29,509,000 (2010: HK$29,509,000) and retained
profits of HK$9,537,000 (2010: HK$694,000).

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to
the date of this report were:

Executive directors

Mr. Hui King Chun, Andrew (Chairman)
Mr. Yau Chau Min, Paul

Mr. Hui Bin Long

Mr. Zhou Jin

Mr. Wang Feng Wu

Non-executive director
Mr. Liu Kam Lung

Independent non-executive directors
Mr. Ng Chi Yeung, Simon

Mr. Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy

Mr. Ho Lok Cheong

In accordance with Article 87 of the Bye-Laws of the
Company, Messrs. Yau Chau Min, Paul, Zhou Jin and Ho
Lok Cheong retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS" SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract which
is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory

compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31st December, 2011, the interests of the directors
and their associates in the shares, underlying shares of
the Company and its associated corporations, as recorded
in the register maintained by the Company pursuant
to Section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
("SFO"), or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (“Model
Code”) contained in the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”),

were as follows:

(1) TaE (1) Long positions

i< Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company
e #T EERBE BT
ExER g EERYE REZBDL
Percentage of the
Number of issued issued share capital
Name of director Capacity ordinary shares held of the Company
AR A ERPARE W) 161,000,000 61.58%

Mr. Hui King Chun, Andrew Held by trust (Note)
BoELE EaSRE 152,000 0.06%
BARATNEXEBRA 100,000 0.04%

Mr. Liu Kam Lung Beneficially held

Held by children under 18 or spouse

252,000 0.10%

Mt - ZEROUBEZEETEESEH
B Z A FlAccufit Investments Inc. 2
BEER HIZIHABTLREE
EN 30 4=1

Annual Report 2011

Note: These shares are registered in the name of Accufit
Investments Inc., a company indirectly wholly-owned by
a discretionary trust, the beneficiaries of which are the
family members of Mr. Hui King Chun, Andrew.
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DIRECTORS" INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
(continued)

(2) Short positions

Other than as disclosed above, none of the
directors, chief executives nor their associates
had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares of the Company or any of its
associated corporations as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock

Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SHARE OPTIONS

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set

out in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the options holdings disclosed above, at
no time during the year was the Company, its holding
company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a
party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other

body corporate.

DIRECTORS" INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company,
its holding company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time

during the year.
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FERRER SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

RZE——F+ZHA=+T—H BEAQT As at 31st December, 2011, the register of substantial
RRBES M EIEFIEIB6EMTEZ EER shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant
REXMBER BLEXFEBECZETESRE to Section 336 of the SFO shows that other than the
ZON s THIIREEANE RN RERKAD T interest disclosed above in respect of certain directors,
ZEBITRATHEERBRER AR - the following shareholders had notified the Company of

relevant interests and short positions in the issued share

capital of the Company.

e Long positions

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

e &7 HERARB#T

RREZH 56 EERHYE BREZEDHE

Number of Percentage of the
issued ordinary issued share capital

Names of shareholders Capacity shares held of the Company

Basab Inc. EREXEA 161,000,000 61.58%

Beneficiary of trusts (#1%) (Note)
Safeguard Trustee Limited EFREXEA 161,000,000 61.58%
Beneficiary of trusts (#1%) (Note)

MiatE - ZFER T3LAEBasab Inc. ({E/&Basab Unit Note: These shares are registered in the name of Accufit
TrustZ 25 A) 2 &% B 2 2 alAccufit Investments Inc., which is 100% owned by Basab Inc. as
Investments Inc.Z % #& & &2 ° Basab Unit trustee of the Basab Unit Trust which is a unit trust owned
Trust/h B3 Safeguard Trustee Limited{E&1{E by Safeguard Trustee Limited as trustee of a discretionary
RAZEEEREBCEMERES  H trust, the beneficiaries of which are the family members of
Z AN BTIRIREEZREKE - Mr. Hui King Chun, Andrew.

BEXHTIREEN R_T——F+ A8 Other than as disclosed above, the Company has not been

=+—HB ARAETHBEARARA 2B HE notified of any other relevant interests or short positions

ITIRAPHEEEMEMERERSORE - in the issued share capital of the Company as at 31st

December, 2011.

Annual Report 2011
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APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers that all of the independent non-
executive directors are independent.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group has entered into sales
transaction with Yunnan Zhaotong Cigarette Factory,
Hongta Tobacco (Group) Company Limited, a 10% equity
shareholder in a subsidiary of the Company, amounting to
approximately HK$266,888,000 (2010: HK$237,869,000).
The Stock Exchange has granted conditional waivers to the
Company from strict compliance with the requirements
of the Listing Rules, and the independent non-executive
directors of the Company have confirmed that these
transactions were carried out in compliance with the
conditions set out in the waivers granted by the Stock
Exchange. In addition, the Group has entered into sales
transactions with certain cigarette factories in Yunnan,
amounting to approximately HK$213,769,000 (2010:
HK$197,203,000) who are fellow subsidiaries of Yunnan
Zhaotong Cigarette Factory.

The independent non-executive directors confirm that
the above transactions have been entered into by the
Company in the ordinary course of its business, on normal
commercial terms, and in accordance with the terms of the
agreement, if any, governing such transactions that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of
the Company as a whole.

The auditor has confirmed to the Board that the above
transactions have been approved by the Board, are in
accordance with the pricing policies of the Company,
have been entered into in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing the transactions and the aggregate
amount of approximately HK$480,657,000 have not
exceeded the annual cap disclosed in the Company's
circular dated 28th June, 1999.
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Save as disclosed above, there were no other transactions
which need to be disclosed as connected transactions in
accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31st December, 2011, the Group’s
largest customer and five largest customers accounted
for approximately 13.4% and 48.8% respectively of the
Group’s total revenue. The Group’s largest supplier and
five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 14.3%

and 47.8% respectively of the Group’s total purchases.

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the directors owned more
than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had an interest
in the share capital of any of the Group’s five largest

customers or suppliers.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the

Company’s listed securities.

INTERESTS IN COMPETITORS
During the year, none of the directors had any interests in
competing business of the Company which was required

to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.

EMOLUMENT POLICY
The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is
set up by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of

their merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are
decided by the Remuneration Committee having regard to
the Company’s operating results, individual performance

and comparable market statistics.
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The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to directors and eligible employees. Details of the
scheme are set out in note 37 to the consolidated financial

statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata

basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float

throughout the year ended 31st December, 2011.

AUDITOR

During the year ended 31st December, 2009, Messrs.
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu resigned as one of the joint
auditors of the Company and Messrs. Graham H.Y. Chan
& Co. remained as the Company’s auditor. Apart from this,
there was no change in auditors of the Company in any of

the preceding three years.

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general
meeting to re-appoint Messrs. Graham H.Y. Chan & Co. as
auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Hui King Chun, Andrew

Chairman

Hong Kong, 31st March, 2012
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintaining high standards
of corporate governance. It believes that high standards
of corporate governance provide a framework and
solid foundation for the Group to manage business
risks, enhance transparency, maintain high standards of
accountability and protect shareholders’ interest in general.
The Company has applied the principles and complied with
all the applicable code provisions of the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (“Code”) as set out in Appendix 14
of the Listing Rules for the year ended 31st December,

2011, save for the deviations discussed below.

The Board will continuously review and improve the
corporate governance practices and standards of the
Company to ensure that business activities and decision
making processes are regulated in a proper and prudent

manner.

DIRECTORS" SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted the Model Code as set
out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules for securities

transactions.

None of the directors is aware of any information that
would reasonably indicate that the Company or any of its
directors is not or was not in compliance with the Code
and upon specific enquiry of all directors, the directors
confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
for any part of the year ended 31st December, 2011.
The Model Code also applies to other specified senior

management of the Group.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The board of directors of the Company comprises:
Executive Directors: Mr. Hui King Chun, Andrew
Mr. Yau Chau Min, Paul

Mr. Hui Bin Long

Mr. Zhou Jin

Mr. Wang Feng Wu

Non-Executive Director: Mr. Liu Kam Lung
Independent
Non-Executive Directors: Mr. Ng Chi Yeung, Simon

Mr. Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy
Mr. Ho Lok Cheong

The Board comprises of five executive directors, one
non-executive director and three independent non-
executive directors. One of the independent non-
executive directors possesses appropriate professional
accounting qualifications and financial management
expertise. Biographical details of the directors are set out
in the section of “Directors and Senior Management’s

Biographical Information” on pages 21 to 26.

The main focus of the Board is on the formulation of
overall strategies and policies of the Group. The Board
also monitors the financial performance and the internal

controls of the Group’s business operations.

The independent non-executive directors are from
professional background with a broad range of expertise
and experience in the fields of accounting, finance, legal
and business. Their skills and expertise ensure strong
independent views and judgment in the Board. They also
serve important function of ensuring and monitoring the
basis for an effective corporate governance framework.
The Board considers that each independent non-executive
director is independent in character and judgment and
that they all meet the independence criteria as set out

under the guidelines by the Listing Rules.
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All directors are regularly updated on governance and
regulatory matters. There is an established procedure for
directors to obtain independent professional advice at the
expense of the Company in the furtherance of their duties.
The Company has also arranged appropriate director and
officer liability insurance cover in respect of any potential

legal actions that might be taken against its directors.

The number of full Board meeting and Remuneration
Committee meeting attended by each director during the
year is as follows:

= ExgeE FHEEEESR HE=R
Remuneration

Board committee Attendance
Director meeting meeting rate
HITES
Executive Directors
AR 4/4 11 100%
Hui King Chun, Andrew
r DA 4/4 T E A 100%
Yau Chau Min, Paul N/A
ERi 3/4 N iE A 75%
Hui Bin Long N/A
A% 3/4 i@ A 75%
Zhou Jin N/A
ey 2 3/4 iE A 75%
Wang Feng Wu N/A
FHITES
Non-executive Director
B3 3/4 TiE A 75%
Liu Kam Lung N/A
BYFHTES
Independent Non-executive Directors
RES 3/4 171 75%
Ng Chi Yeung, Simon
EEAE 3/4 11 75%
Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy
[GES= 3/4 11 75%

Ho Lok Cheong
Annual Report 2011
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CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

Mr. Hui King Chun, Andrew is the founder and Chairman
of the Group. The Company does not at present have any
officer with the title “chief executive officer” and Mr. Hui
has assumed the role of both Chairman and Managing
Director since the establishment of the Company, and is
in charge of the overall management of the Company.
The Board intends to maintain this structure for the time
being as it believes that this structure can ensure efficient
and effective formulation and implementation of business
strategies without compromising the balance of power and
authority between the directors and management of the

Company (Code Provision A.2.1).

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in 1998 to review
and supervise the financial reporting process and internal
controls of the Company. The Audit Committee comprises
three independent non-executive directors and one of
whom possesses the appropriate business and financial
experience and skills to understand the accounts of the
Group. The committee is chaired by Mr. Tam Yuk Sang,
Sammy and other members are Mr. Ng Chi Yeung, Simon
and Mr. Ho Lok Cheong.

The Group’s financial statements for the year ended
31st December, 2011 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee, who is of opinion that such statements
comply with applicable accounting standards and legal
requirements, and that adequate disclosures have been

made.

The meetings of the Audit Committee are held not less
than twice a year to review and discuss the interim
and annual financial statements respectively. Additional
meetings may also be held by the committee from time to
time to discuss special projects or other issues, which the
committee considers necessary.
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Name of director

The attendance record of the Audit Committee meetings is
as follows:

HESEH HE =
Number of

meeting attended Attendance rate

EBAE

Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy
REH

Ng Chi Yeung, Simon
4

Ho Lok Cheong

REBEZ2RTARTESTMAGHEMZ KL
BENLZBQES I MRELEN T ESNE
HE BELZESZBER(HPEE)ER
HEINEZBMZBE  BHAKRE 2T R
FEEE ERAKBERIEH 28K R
REMam HRREH Ef%ﬁﬂ%izxﬂi
Sk H B - A R ETT

AEBEzAREE (BREKRE SRR A
BRERz EEEE URHREESH &

TERFAREZZBEENE  TEERZR
BEegRs RECIRFEREFTERNESS
REER - BERZBEESHTHEEEELA
SEZBE R ARERETRTEZEE -

YHNEEENEBRERTESHEREER
CEBUNTEZTREBEE(EEE®X
fE) BRAESLERMBEESRE - FTHEES
ERMEEEGRR  UFECEERTA
T e

Annual Report 2011

3/3 100%
2/3 67%
3/3 100%

Under its terms of reference, which were prepared and
adopted with reference to the Code and “A Guide for the
Formation of an Audit Committee” published by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Audit
Committee is required, amongst other things, to oversee
the relationship with the external auditor, to review the
Group’s interim and annual results, to review the scope,
extent and effectiveness of internal control of the Group,
to review accounting policies and practices adopted by the
Group, to engage independent legal or other advisers as it
determines is necessary and to perform investigations.

The Group’s internal controls, including credit controls
on trade and other loans receivables, and controls on
investment activities, have been disclosed and reviewed
by the Audit Committee during the year. Suggestion
have been made to the Board in such controls. The Audit
Committee will continuously review aspects on internal
controls with the Board and the auditor of Group where
applicable.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee includes the executive
director, Mr. Hui King Chun, Andrew, and three
independent non-executive directors, Mr. Ng Chi Yeung,
Simon (chairman of the committee), Mr. Tam Yuk Sang,
Sammy and Mr. Ho Lok Cheong. The Remuneration
Committee has adopted terms of reference, which are in
line with the Corporate Governance Code.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee
("Nomination Committee”) on 30th March, 2012 with
written terms of reference. The Nomination Committee
is currently composed of the three independent non-
executive directors, namely Mr. Ho Lok Cheong (Chairman
of the committee), Mr. Tam Yuk Sang, Sammy and Mr. Ng
Chi Yeung, Simon. The primary duties of the Nomination
Committee are to make recommendations to the Board on
the appointment of Directors and succession planning for
the Directors. The terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee are in conformity with the requirements of the
Corporate Governance Code.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has overall responsibility for the system of internal
controls of the Company and for reviewing its effectiveness.
The Board is committed to implementing an effective and
sound internal controls system to safeguard the interest of
shareholders and the Group’s assets. The Board has delegated
to executive management the implementation of the system
of internal controls and reviewing of all relevant financial,
operational, compliance controls and risk management
function within an established framework.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for
preparing all information and representations contained
in the financial statements of the Company for the year
under review. The directors consider that the financial
statements have been prepared in conformity with the
generally accepted accounting standards in Hong Kong, and
reflect amounts that are based on the best estimates and
reasonable, informed and prudent judgement of the Board
and management with an appropriate consideration to
materiality. As at 31st December, 2011, the directors, having
made appropriate enquiries, are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern. Accordingly, the directors have prepared
the financial statements of the Company on a going concern
basis.

The responsibilities of the external auditor with respect to
financial reporting are set out in the section of “Independent
Auditor’s Report” on page 43.

Kith Holdings Limited

4



{

A

42

EEERRS

Corporate Governance Report

RN &
HE-FT——F+-_A=+—BHILEE " K
SEZHMBREETZERBAKER 2
B < 48 %8 52,200,0008 7L - AE B R FE R
BEE SR TR M A £ B Az A A
2,002,000/ 7T ° Br Eall ETARFES B AN - &
AN EBIIEHEMIIEZRERYG  MxE
RIGWIEBEEE -

REEBRRREBEN

ARREERRERKREEERE  —HEE
RESEAE -ARFAEHARBEBREER
DITBEBRTHRENREHE - AERERES
RO BREAN B NEE BRI
BEEBAYANTEEREEZR®RITH
ABRBARAMEZFERMEFLH KR
#-

ARBENEBEFERNEMREFEXERP
HIZE - ARRZBERAFAEG ([BRBF
REDAERRERFEHEETSHERYEFE -
AEBESBRREERRAFRE  MEF
LREZQHMKBARERFLAZELHER
RBEFREGZARENELEERRZER
Ble BAERERRRZEFEHNERF
WG TR ZBEA

TR
ARB—RA+HEEBERTRBIE - K%
BB EEHABTIATH - ZREEY
BUBE BBREETZERERITHRE -
A B NS W S ] B AN KB A m 5 R R
ZANT BRI T 2 8 A R R Sk E
meoARBNETHREEXGEHELER
KPAEBRRBELAREEMREEHKEAR
1% & W BRI BB G

Annual Report 2011

AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31st December, 2011, the total
remuneration of the Group’s auditor for statutory audit
services is HK$2,200,000. The Group also paid to the
Group's auditor of HK$2,002,000 for listing service
of Megalogic Holdings in the current year. Other than
the listing service fee, auditor has provided other non-
audit services to the Group, which were considered as
insignificant assignments.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND
COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company endeavours to maintain a high level of
transparency in communicating with shareholders and
investors. Briefings and meetings with institutional
investors and analysts are conducted regularly. In order to
ensure effective, clear and accurate communications with
the investors and analysts, all corporate communications
are arranged and handled by the executive directors and
designated senior executives according to established
practices and procedures of the Company.

The Company has announced its annual results and interim
results during the year under review. The Company’s
annual general meeting ("AGM") provides a platform for
shareholders to have a direct dialogue with the Board.
Shareholders are encouraged to attend the AGM and the
Chairman and other members of the Board or their duly
appointed delegates are available to the AGM to answer
guestions from shareholders. Procedures for demanding a
poll are included in the circular to shareholders dispatched
together with the annual report.

CODE OF CONDUCT

The Company is committed to high standard of business
ethics and integrity. A code of conduct is enforced on all
employees of the Group. The employees at all levels are
expected to act in an honest, diligent and responsible
manner. No personal gifts or other forms of advantages
from any person or organisation doing business with the
Group can be accepted by any employee. Business partners
and customers are reminded from time to time that its
policy forbids any employee or agent of the Group from
accepting any gift from them.
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TO THE MEMBERS OF KITH HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Kith Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the "“Group”) set out on
pages 46 to 208, which comprise the consolidated and
Company’s statements of financial position as at 31st
December, 2011, and the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies

and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial

Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Kith Holdings Limited
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Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit
and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from

material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial

statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit

opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and of the Group as at 31st December, 2011 and of the
Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

Graham H.Y. Chan & Co.
Certified Public Accountants (Practising)

Hong Kong

31st March, 2012

Kith Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Income Statement

HE-_Z—F+-_A=+—HLLFE

For the year ended 31st December, 2011

—2-—-F —ZT-FF
2011 2010
Kzt FTERT FHAT
Notes HK$'000 HK$" 000
(273)
(restated)
FEREER Continuing operations
Y Revenue 7 1,940,599 2,013,550
HEKAK Cost of sales (1,694,851) (1,764,112)
EF Gross profit 245,748 249,438
Hip e A Other income 21,058 10,636
DHEREERY Distribution and selling expenses (13,996) (5,932)
TERY Administrative expenses (130,253) (116,933)
EHE=EBHERR Impairment loss on trade and
HAMEWERR - T2 K& other receivables from third
N FIEREEER parties, deposits and prepayments (3,227) (258)
ERDEARBEREL Impairment loss on assets of
—BNBRAEEZ a subsidiary previously
AR classified as held for sale = (8,759)
ME WEREREZ Impairment loss on property,
WEEE plant and equipment = (12,384)
RIEEBEREZ Fair value loss on held-for-trading
NEEEE investments (799) (1,319)
Hith i EE 2 Fair value gain on other
NEER financial assets 1,900 2,225
AMHEREZRESE  Impairment loss on
available-for-sale investments (1,972) -
BERKA Finance costs 9 (21,186) (16,169)
BR 3 A1 4t 7 Profit before tax 97,273 100,545
FTEf X Income tax expense 10 (21,032) (25,024)
REKEEB L Profit for the year from continuing
AEE R A operations 12 76,241 75,521
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Consolidated Income Statement

HE-Z——%+-A=+—HIEE For the year ended 31st December, 2011

—F—-F e
2011 2010
Kzt FTERT FHAT
Notes HK$' 000 HK$' 000
(251)
(restated)
ERIEREXK Discontinued operation
BERIEKEEBZ Profit for the year from
REZ % F discontinued operation 11 11,250 15,128
/:)‘
ANE 5 A Profit for the year 87,491 90,649 /
THIALREEARFEER ©  Profit for the year attributable to:
PA/NCIEZ ZS N Owners of the Company
RERBELREED From continuing operations 29,225 46,141
RECRIEEEER From discontinued operation 5,845 9,634
35,070 55,775
IR = Non-controlling interests
REFBEEES From continuing operations 47,016 29,380
RECKRIEEEER From discontinued operation 5,405 5,494
52,421 34,874
87,491 90,649

Kith Holdings Limited 47
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Consolidated Income Statement

HE-_Z—F+-_A=+—HLLFE

For the year ended 31st December, 2011

=t S 224
2011 2010
i3 TR THT
Notes HK$' 000 HK$" 000
(E31)
(restated)
AAAEEAEERFZ Earnings per share for profit
SREF attributable to owners
of the Company: 17

KERELERERLE

From continuing and

BEEK discontinued operations

ER Basic HK13.41 centsi# 1l HK21.33 centsi# 1l

3] Diluted HK13.41 centsi&fll  HK21.33 cents/& L
REBELLER From continuing operations

B Basic HK11.18 centsi#fli  HK17.65 cents/S L

BE Diluted HK11.18 centsi&fll  HK17.65 cents& L
REBREEEER From discontinued operation

2K Basic HK2.23 centsi&fll  HK3.68 centsi

3] Diluted HK2.23 centsi#fli  HK3.68 cents/& L

RN B T AR BGHA N ZFHBHRHE6
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set out in note 16.

Details of dividend payable to owners of the Company are
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

HE-_Z——F+-_A=+—HLLFE

For the year ended 31st December, 2011

—B2-—-F —T-FTF
2011 2010
FERT FH T
HK$'000 HK$' 000
AR Z i Profit for the year 87,491 90,649
H b2 E W s Other comprehensive income:
BMEGIINEFTEL 2 Exchange differences arising on
EH =R translation of foreign operations 37,640 25,403
AHEEREZ Fair value changes on
NEEED available-for-sale investments (2,146) 1,361
BEWE HER Surplus arising on revaluation
B B of property, plant and equipment - 21,278
BEWE - HER Deferred tax effect on surplus
BB BB arising on revaluation of
BEEHETE property, plant and equipment - (3,315)
RNEFZH&EE A Other comprehensive income
2| W= for the year, net of tax 35,494 44,727
RNEE2EBEESE Total comprehensive income for the year 122,985 135,376
THANLTRIERFE Total comprehensive income for the year
T HE W AR attributable to:
PINNETEF =N Owners of the Company 53,436 83,768
JEFE R HE = Non-controlling interests 69,549 51,608
122,985 135,376

Kith Holdings Limited
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BEPBRAR
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R-_ZT——F+_-_A=+—H At 31st December, 2011

—E——F —T-EF
2011 2010
Ji0k23 TR FET
Notes HK$'000 HK$' 000
ERBEE Non-current assets
Y% - R REE Property, plant and equipment 18 615,022 618,094
FENHEERMR Prepaid lease payments 19 18,044 18,657
kS Goodwill 20 - 2,695
EEME sk Deposits paid for acquisition of
REE® property, plant and equipment 22 2,306 30,218
AHEEERE Available-for-sale investments 23 21,183 25,284
R IEE E Deferred tax assets 35 129 123
IERBEERTE Total non-current assets 656,684 695,071
REBEE Current assets
FE Inventories 24 142,196 174,957
JEUWE =FEZ SEZNK  Trade and other receivables
H AR - from third parties,
e RIERRIA deposits and prepayments 25 672,934 584,099
U IEIE IR IR Trade and other receivables
BoHERRR from non-controlling
H Ath & U BR R shareholders 26 89,512 62,281
AT 4 B 7 18 Tax recoverable 15 -
FENHEEMRK Prepaid lease payments 19 613 613
5 HAE I E Short-term loans receivable 27 95,526 65,605
BIEBEERE Held-for-trading investments 28 4,873 1,972
HEMb s & E Other financial assets 29 = 377
RITHEB RIS Bank balances and cash 30 81,814 65,074
1,087,483 954,978
DEAFIELEZ Assets of a disposal group
HEHEEZEE classified as held for sale 31 49,299 -
MEEEEE Total current assets 1,136,782 954,978
REBAE Current liabilities
EREBESHEF R Trade and other payables 32 211,538 264,260
b B BRI
MIEBE Tax liabilities 14,838 12,694
FERTFEIERR R 2 Dividend payable to
A B, non-controlling shareholders 8,118 1,430
BE Borrowings 33 561,305 450,811
MERESME Obligation under finance
— —FRE E lease — due within one year 34 947 775
796,746 729,970
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

R-_ZT——F+_-_H=+—H At 31st December, 2011

—E——F —T-EF
2011 2010
Ji0k23 FHET FET
Notes HK$'000 HK$' 000
HEESEARBEDRE  Labilities directly associated
Z HEHEHEHE with a disposal group
2 8fE classified as held for sale 31 3,293 -
mE B EEE Total current liabilities 800,039 729,970
REBEEFE Net current assets 336,743 225,008
EEHERRBERE Total assets less current liabilities 993,427 920,079
kRBEE Non-current liabilities
BmEMREERMT Obligation under finance
— —Fi1&IH lease — due after one year 34 391 969
REFRIBAE Deferred tax liabilities 35 38,917 43,769
R aERE Total non-current liabilities 39,308 44,738
EEFE Net assets 954,119 875,341
EXRFEE Capital and reserves
&N Share capital 36 26,145 26,145
A% 17 Vs 1B K 58 Share premium and reserves 38 551,879 534,785
RNAFHEA AFEERRE  Equity attributable to owners
of the Company 578,024 560,930
JEIE R = Non-controlling interests 376,095 314,411
fRRE4BRE Total equity 954,119 875,341

FACEEF208A AV KREECEHRES
EN_E——F=A=T-BEHEEETN
WA TINEERES

E

by:

FHEHR
EZE

Hui King Chun, Andrew
DIRECTOR

The consolidated financial statements on pages 46 to 208
were approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 31st March, 2012 and are signed on its behalf

EAH
0
Yau Chau Min, Paul
DIRECTOR

Kith Holdings Limited
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Statement of Financial Position

R-_ZT——F+_-_A=+—H At 31st December, 2011

—B——-F —E-TF
f\\ 2011 2010
)\\f H et FTHER FAT
/ Notes HK$' 000 HK$’ 000
)
ERBEE Non-current assets
RB AR Z&E Investments in subsidiaries 21 44,089 44,089
REBEE Current assets
FE U BT BB A Bl 2 BR 3R Amounts due from subsidiaries 21 307,657 271,053
HihEUWEEZ - 5]& K% Other receivables, deposits
TE RIE and prepayments 976 727
RITEB LIRS Bank balances and cash 229 191
308,862 271,971
REBEE Current liabilities
H b e BR 3K Other payables 1,466 1,354
FEFT I A R Z BR3K Amounts due to subsidiaries 21 211,455 183,519
212,921 184,873
REBEEFE Net current assets 95,941 87,098
EEFE Net assets 140,030 131,187
EXREE Capital and reserves
&N Share capital 36 26,145 26,145
A% 17 Y8 1B K 58 1 Share premium and reserves 38 113,885 105,042
R Total equity 140,030 131,187
EHEZEER_ZT—_F=A=+—B&# Approved and authorised for issue by the board of
MERETIE  WETIEEREEE directors on 31st March, 2012 and are signed on its behalf
by:
R R E4 8
= EE
Hui King Chun, Andrew Yau Chau Min, Paul
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

mERES

EES

HE-_Z——F+-_A=+—HLLFE

For the year ended 31st December, 2011

ANIRAARL
Attributable to owners of the Company
RER RE % RE
RE  BHE ROEE EfBE  RREE  BREE MBS GARE  EXHE  ERER  REEA a3 FERER @it
Capital Asset  Enterprise Investment Non-
Share  redemption Share revaluation expansion  Reserve Other Capital ~ Translation revaluation  Retained controlling
capital  reserve  premium  reserve fund fund  reserves  reserve  reserve  reserve profits Total  interests Total
FEx  TEr  TRm  TEr  TEn TR TEm T TRn  TEr  TEm TR fEm TER
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
(H386)) (Witsse) (W) (WE3) (HEse)
(note 383)) (note 38/3) (ot 38(3))  (note 38a)  (note 383))
R-2-%%5-A-8
LB Balance at 1t January, 2010 26,145 624 74215 42,620 48,879 7,148 2793 (200) 69,775 785 205,123 503,037 286,59 789,633
FEREH Profit for the year - - - - - - - - - - SSTS O STIS M 90649
TEEERZENG - Other comprehensive income
for the year:
BERNERAEL Eichange differences arising on
LERER translation of foreign operations - - - - - - - - 14,880 - - 14,880 10523 25403
AEHEREZDTERD  Fair value changes of available-for-
sale investments - - - - - - - - - 1361 - 1,361 - 1361
EfENE BER Surplus arising on revaluation of
REELRR property, plant and equipment - - - 14,148 - - - - - - - 14,148 7130 21,278
EffhE BER Deferred tax liabilty arising on
FEEEL revaluation of property,
EEHEaE plant and equipment - - - (2,39) - - - - - - - (2,39) (919) (3319
FEEEMZEREGE  Total other comprehensive income
for the year - - - 11,75 - - - - 14,880 1,361 - 27993 16,734 a7
TEERAUGEE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - 1,752 - - - - 14,880 1,361 95,775 83,768 51,608 135376
HENE BER Revaluation surplus released
FERBHRRRER upon disposal of property,
plant and equipment - - - (50) - - - - - - 50 - - -
EfRARRERE Reversal of deferred tax
EXHEEE liability upon release of
revaluation surplus - - - 8 - - - - - - - 8 - 8
D-BHERFAEERE  Dividends paid to non-controlling
Biaks interests of a subsidiary - - - - - - - - - - - - 3193 (1379)
BRARARRRS Dividends paid to the
Company's shareholders - - - - - - - - - - (25,883) (25,883) - (25,883)
BABEES Transfer to reserve fund - - - - - 5938 - - - - (5,938) - - -
B\GEERES Transfer to enterprise
expansion reserve - - - - 5,935 - - - - - (5,935 - - -
=B Balance at 31st December, 2010
—AZ&%  and 1t January, 2011 26,145 624 74215 54330 54,814 13,086 2793 (200) 84,655 2,146 2319 560,930 31441 875,341
RERER Profit for the year - - - - - - - - - -0 300 41 87491
FEEEH2ERE Other comprehensive income
for the year:
BERNERMEL Eichange differences arising on
JEZEE translation of foreign operations - - - - - - - - 20512 - - 20512 17128 37,640
EEEREZDTESD  Fair value changes of available-for
sale investments - - - - - - - - - (2,146) - (2,146) - (2,146)
FEEEMRERESE  Total other comprehensive income
for the year - - - - - - - - 20,512 (2,146) - 18,366 17,128 35,494
TEERENREE Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - - - - - - 20,512 (2,146) 35,070 53436 69,549 122,985

Kith Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HEZZT——F+-_A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31st December, 2011

ANIRAARL
Attributable to owners of the Company
&S | EE it RE
s ER%E  ROEE EfEE  RRES  BRES  EHBR  HARE  EXBE  EMRE  REEH a3 FERER #it
Capital Asset  Enterprise Investment Non-
Share  redemption Share revaluation expansion  Reserve Other Capital ~ Translation revaluation  Retained controlling
capital  reserve  premium  reserve fund fund  reserves  reserve  reserve  reserve profits Total  interests Total

TEn  TER  TER  TRR TR TRT TR A  TEr  TEn TR TRT TR TER
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKY'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000 HKHKY'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000

(Wi380) (Witsaa)  (Hetse) (Witsea) (Hisse)
(note 383)) (note 38/3) (ot 38(3))  (note 38a)  (note 383))
LENE BERRER Revaluation surplus released
B30 upon disposal of property,
plant and equipment - - - (30 - - - - - - 30 - - -
ERRHRRERE Reversal of deferred tax
ERERERR liability upon release of
revaluation surplus - - - 4 - - - - - - - 4 - 1
-EHBAREARG Change in non-controlling
MELZHARESED  interests arsing from
(H343) issuance of a subsidiary’s
shares (note 43) - - - - - - 1310 - - - - 1310 2,630 10,000
EREEA-HHBRAZZ  Changes in non-controlling
RERSMEEZFAR  interests arsing from
ER2E(M20) decrease of the Group's
shareholding of a subsidiary
(note 43 - - - - - - (s - - - S we (o)
BR-FHEAR Dividends paid to non-controlling
FERELRE interests of a subsidiary - - - - 5219 @519
BRRRARRRS Dividends paid to the Company's
shareholders - - - - - - - - - - Q9 (21979) - 19
d\EhRES Transfer to reserve fund - - - - - 6,767 - - - - (6,767) - - -
E\LRERES Transfer to enterprise
expansion reserve - - - - 6,765 - - - - - (6,765) - - -
E——F
+ZA=t+-RBE Balance at 31st December, 2011 26,145 624 74215 54304 61,579 19,853 19,552 (200) 105,167 - 216,785 578,024 376,095 954,119
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

ix/nﬁj?‘:z

HE-_Z——F+-_A=+—HLLFE

For the year ended 31st December, 2011

—E-—-F —ZT-FF
2011 2010
FERx FET
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
REFZHRERE Cash flows from operating activities
REFBEREEB 2 Profit before tax from continuing operations 97,273 100,545
BR 0 Al i
REBRIEEEEK L Profit before tax from discontinued operation 13,542 18,262
B T Al v A
BR 75t At 7 Profit before tax 110,815 118,807
FUATIEE fEH % Adjustments for:
AR Finance costs 21,195 16,235
FEUWA Interest income (3,778) (5,005)
ME - RERZBNE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 52,346 43,800
FEREERNK Zﬁﬁﬁ Amortisation of prepaid lease payments 613 613
ERE=EEFER Impairment loss on trade and other receivables
HibEUERR ET@ from third parties, deposits and prepayments 3,210 258
RERZEBEZREERR
ME - HERR Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment = 12,767
HEEE
TRDBEABHELE Z—M  Impairment loss on assets of a subsidiary
MEBARIEEZRMERKE  previously classified as held for sale = 8,759
AHHEREZATFEEBIE  Fair value loss on available-for-sale investments 1,972 -
HuBBEE 2 A FEWRE Fair value gain of other financial assets (1,900) (2,225)
HEME  HBERER Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 299 886
ZEE
BEESEHA Operating cash flows before movements
%%%fﬁ%/ﬁ% : in working capital: 184,772 194,895
TFERL /(K Decrease/(increase) in inventories 28,789 (25,116)
FM&ZM_%T%EETA& Increase in trade and other receivables
Hi RN  flak from third parties, deposits and prepayments (122,608) (136,277)
FEAS FRIEIE 0
FEWFEERR AR R E Increase in trade receivables from
8RR N non-controlling shareholders (27,231) (37,672)
FEH&meA(fEBD)//%id> (Increase)/decrease in loans receivable (30,203) 25,162
BEEBEZREGEM) /WL  (Increase)/decrease in held-for-trading investments (2,901) 1,873
JERTE 2R K EH A (Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables (50,072) 38,883

BRI ORL) /2

Kith Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HE_Z——F+_-_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December, 2011

—E-—-F —ZT-FF

2011 2010

FERx FET

HK$’ 000 HK$' 000

K (FER) /PB4 Cash (used in)/generated from operations (19,454) 61,748

ERFER Income taxes paid:

BHHPBEMEMEH PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid (16,642) (19,643)

BHBEBMNEN Hong Kong Profits Tax paid (9,772) (403)

BEREMBEAREMSH  Other jurisdiction income tax paid (87) -
SETE (FTfER) /P82 Net cash (used in)/generated from operating activities (45,955) 41,702

&8
RETBHzRERE Cash flows from investing activities
BAME  BERRE Payments for purchase of property,

Z X plant and equipment (24,901) (51,424)
BEWE - %%%%& Deposits refund/(paid) for acquisition of

RERE /() Z25]&  property, plant and equipment 27,912 (2,958)
HEmBBEEMS Z/TAIE Proceeds from other financial assets 2,277 2,108
BAAEHEREZLH  Payments for purchase of

available-for-sale investments 17) (4,701)
HEME %%“" Proceeds from disposal of property,

REMB R plant and equipment 187 193
BUFH 8 Interest received 4,060 1,606
BEEHE,/ (FifEA) 2 Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activities 9,518 (55,176)

&8
RETHzRERE Cash flows from financing activities
MERBRITER New long-term bank loans raised 83,451 292,642
HMEEMER New other loan raised 44,000 15,000
BB EFIENF Net increase in trust receipt loans 22,401 82,458
EEEREMER Net increase in factoring loans 11,115 -
HHRETER Net increase/(decrease) in short-term bank loans 105,879 (6,406)

B,/ Chd) e
BERBARITER Repayment of long-term bank loans (109,700) (348,757)
EEEMER Repayment of other loan (49,000) (14,000)
BERERERT Repayment of obligation under finance lease (969) (775)
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011

—B-——-F —Z-%F
2011 2010
FTER TET
HK$' 000 HK$’ 000
BERNARRKRERE Dividends paid to the Company's shareholders (27,975) (25,883)
ENBRITREMEET S Interest on bank and other borrowings paid (20,992) (16,440)
ENREHENR Interest on finance lease paid (99) (85)
Eft—FEIHM B A BJEHER  Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders of
R AR B, a subsidiary (18,531) (23,793)
—BNBRERMEIT L Proceeds from issuance of shares of a subsidiary 10,000 -
Fris5E
MIEIERER HEAREE  Cash outflow resulting from disposal of partial equity
HE 2 BHEBLR 22 interest held by the Group in a subsidiary to (1,017) -
BAEEMES ZESME  non-controlling interests
BMEEHFE, (FrEM)Z Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities 48,563 (46,039)
& T
ReRREEEY Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 12,126 (59,513)
#m,/ (Rd) #8
EMzBERESEEY  Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year 64,790 113,735
IMEEREE) s FE Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 12,141 10,568
FRZBERBEELZEEY  Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year 89,057 64,790
B Represented by
RITEHRRRS Bank balances and cash 81,814 65,074
RITEX Bank overdraft (392) (284)
81,422 64,790
B AL ERFELELZ Bank balances and cash included in a disposal
HEEE ZRITEHRRIRE  group dassified as held for sale 7,635 -
89,057 64,790

Kith Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an
exempted company with limited liability and its
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the ”Stock Exchange”). The directors
consider Accufit Investments Inc., a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI"),
to be the parent and ultimate holding company of
the Company. The address of the registered office
and principal place of business of the Company are
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11,
Bermuda and 1st Floor, Hing Lung Commercial
Building, 68 Bonham Strand East, Hong Kong,

respectively.

The Company acts as an investment holding
company. The principal activities of its principal

subsidiaries are set out in note 46.

On 23rd December, 2011, the Stock Exchange
granted an approval in principle (the “In Principle
Approval”) for the Group to spin off its design,
development and sale of integrated circuits business
through a separate listing of Megalogic Technology
Holdings Limited (“Megalogic Holdings”), a
then subsidiary of the Company, on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange (the
“Spin-off”).



mE MR E M

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HEZZT——F+=ZA=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31st December, 2011

—RER (&)
A/FHERZZE—ZF—-—ATNI
HEMX -ROFEFBETHKE  KEEH
m%u%ﬂZ%*mQM%%ﬁﬁ
9.01% - I B B AN & B 5k & ¥ % &l
%ﬂZﬁﬂ%otJ%ﬂ@%Et$
Bixa AR MEABME QR IIEK-
REBRBE_Z——FR_ZT-TF
+:HZ+—H¢¢FZ§GM%%
REt HENHEEKERER
Wﬁﬁmﬁﬁ%%%%hﬁ%ﬁ%
BAAPFEEN o

meaMBERATIAET (B3
R BTLMBARRBZNEER - &K
SEHPN FMAEEBEHRBERE
Lz Ta8E -

RN T RASIERT B BB

R & #E B

A = A

REAFE  AKRERMABESTOA
(BB AE]) BMAZ T
R RRERTERA - AERT R i ([#73]
REEBEEMBRELL])  &F
HUABER -_FT——F—A—BRtKZ
SR AR -

GENERAL INFORMATION (continued)

The Spin-off has been completed on 19th
January, 2012. Upon the completion of the Spin-
off, the Group’s interest in Megalogic Holdings
has been diluted from 52.01% to 39.01% and
resulted in losing control of Megalogic Holdings.
Megalogic Holdings has been deconsolidated
from that date and will be accounted for as an
associated company. For the presentation of the
consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31st December, 2011 and 2010, the design,
development and sale of integrated circuits business
was regarded as “discontinued operation”. Details

are set out in note 11.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollar ("HKD"), which is the same
as the functional currency of the Company, and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand except

when otherwise indicated.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has applied the
following new and revised standards, amendments
and interpretations (“new and revised HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") which have
become effective for the accounting period

beginning on 1st January, 2011.

Kith Holdings Limited
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2. ‘”,.W%ﬁnT&,?%é{l HES SR 2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

MEAER| (Z) HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)
FEURBLED (BiK)  —E2-ZERKIEE HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2010,
HRmERA qE except for early application of the
KRAER ARG E Amendments to HKAS 1

AR BB

BEUBRERNE R BRRBARERNERE HKFRS 1 (Amendments) Limited Exemption from Comparative
(B3T%) EHETH  HBLRER HKFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time
LERES Adopters
BASTERZUS (L) BWEALRE HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures
BAEENENR (BIE) f#HRHE HKAS 32 (Amendment) Classification of Rights Issues
h(ARMBRER REELERENFE HK(IFRIC) - Int 14 Prepayments of a Minimum
REe)-RER 431‘7& (Amendments) Funding Requirement
(B3I%)
i (BB ERERE NRATREHIKAR HK(IFRIC) - Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with
REe)-REEIN Equity Instruments
BAVEMEEAETR 2B [ Amendment to HKFRS 7 “Financial Instruments:
TR WE|I (R ZFEMZE Disclosures” (as part of the improvements to
EUIEmEER 2 Mgz —2n) Bk HKFRSs issued in 2010) requires disclosure in
EESEER 2B R XEMEBIR respect of the description of collateral held as
AZHAREMEEEMBEERER security and of other credit enhancements and their
RXEERBRZES AR ZEE - & financial effect of the amount that best represents
FTARAEE EWE FEFC B R the maximum exposure to credit risk. Certain trade
BRIE URBEERR -HUiEFE receivables of the Group have been factored to
BTSER B M sE25FT S - AR a financial institution to mitigate credit risk. The
eRAWESDE ¥¢$’§$¢F§*& application of the new amendment would only
BAFECXBEWBZE o extend the disclosure as set out in note 25 to the

consolidated financial statements, and have no
impact on the Group’s results in the current and

prior years.

Annual Report 2011
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Except as described above, the adoption of the new
and revised HKFRSs had no material effect on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the current or prior accounting periods.

The Group has not early applied the following new
standards, amendments and interpretation that
have been issued but are not yet effective in these
financial statements:

HKFRS 1 (Amendments)

HKFRS 1 (Amendments)

HKFRS 7 (Amendments)

HKFRS 7 (Amendments)

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10
HKFRS 11
HKFRS 12
HKFRS 13

HKAS 1 (Amendments)

HKAS 12 (Amendments)

HKAS 19 (2011)

HKAS 27 (2011)

First-time Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards -
Severe Hyperinflation and Removal of
Fixed Dates for First-time Adopters '

First-time Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards -
Government Loans *

Disclosures - Transfers of Financial Assets '

Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities *

Financial Instruments 6

Consolidated Financial Statements ¢
Joint Arrangements

Disclosures of Interests in Other Entities *
Fair Value Measurement *

Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income 3

Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying
Assets?

Employee Benefits *

Separate Financial Statements *

Kith Holdings Limited 6 I
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

HKAS 28 (2011) Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures *

HKAS 32 (Amendments) Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities °

HK(IFRIC) - Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase

of a Surface Mine *

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1st July, 2011

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1st January, 2012

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1st July, 2012

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1st January, 2013

> Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1st January, 2014

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1st January, 2015

HKFRS 7 (Amendments) “Disclosures — Transfers
of Financial Assets” introduces new disclosure
requirements on transfers of financial assets.
Disclosure is required by class of asset of the
nature, carrying amount and a description of the
risks and rewards of financial assets that have
been transferred to another party yet remained
on the entity’s statement of financial position.
The gain or loss on the transferred assets and any
retained interest in those assets must be given. In
addition, other disclosures must enable users to
understand the amount of any associated liabilities,
and the relationship between the financial assets
and associated liabilities. The disclosures must be
presented by type of ongoing involvement. For
example, the retained exposure could be presented
by type of financial instrument (such as guarantees,
call or put options), or by type of transfer (such as
factoring of receivables, securitisations or securities
lending). The amendments are not expected to have
a significant impact to the Group.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS 7 (Amendments) “Disclosures — Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities” issues new
disclosure requirements in relation to the offsetting
models of financial assets and financial liabilities.
The amendments also improve the transparency in
the reporting of how companies mitigate credit risk,
including disclosure of related collateral pledged
or received. The application of the amendments is
unlikely to have any material financial impact on

the Group.

HKFRS 9

November 2009) establishes new principles for the

“Financial Instruments” (as issued in

classification and measurement of financial assets.
HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (as revised in
November 2010) adds requirements for financial
liabilities and for derecognition. The main changes
to the requirements of HKAS 39 are summarised

below:

Kith Holdings Limited
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Under HKFRS 9, all financial assets are
subsequently measured at either amortised
cost or fair value. The decision is to be
made at initial recognition. The classification
depends on the entity’s business model for
managing its financial instruments and the
contractual cash flows characteristics of the
instrument. An instrument is subsequently
measured at amortised cost only if it is a
debt instrument and the objective of the
entity’s business model is to hold the asset
to collect the contractual cash flows, and the
asset’s contractual cash flows represent only
payments of principal and interest (that is, it
has only ‘basic loan features’). All other debt
instruments are to be measured at fair value
through profit or loss. All equity instruments
are to be measured subsequently at fair
value. Equity instruments that are held
for trading will be measured at fair value
through profit or loss. For all other equity
investments, an irrevocable election can be
made at initial recognition, to recognise
unrealised and realised fair value gains and
losses through other comprehensive income
rather than profit or loss. There is to be no
recycling of fair value gains and losses to
profit or loss. This election may be made on
an instrument-by-instrument basis. Dividends
are to be presented in profit or loss, as long

as they represent a return on investment.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

- In relation to financial liabilities, the
significant change relates to financial
liabilities that are designated as at fair value
through profit or loss. Specifically, under
HKFRS 9, for financial liabilities that are
designated as at fair value through profit or
loss, changes in the fair value of the financial
liability that is attributable to changes in
the credit risk of that liability is recognised
directly in other comprehensive income,
unless the presentation of the effects of
changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or
enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit
or loss. Changes in fair value attributable
to a financial liability’s credit risk are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. All
other changes in fair value are recognised in
profit or loss. Previously, under HKAS 39, the
entire amount of the change in the fair value
of the financial liability designated as at fair
value through profit or loss was recognised

in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial Statements”
replaces all of the guidance on control and
consolidation in HKAS 27 “Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements”, and HK(SIC)
— Int 12 "Consolidation — Special Purpose
Entities”. HKAS 27 is renamed “Separate Financial
Statements”; it continues to be a standard dealing
solely with separate financial statements. The
existing guidance for separate financial statements
is unchanged. HKFRS 10 changes the definition
of control so that the same criteria are applied
to all entities to determine control. The revised
definition of control focuses on the need to have
both power and variable returns before control
is present. Power is the current ability to direct
the activities that significantly influence returns.
Returns must vary and can be positive, negative
or both. The determination of power is based on
current facts and circumstances and is continuously
assessed. The fact that control is intended to be
temporary does not obviate the requirement to
consolidate any investee under the control of the
investor. Voting rights or contractual rights may be
evidence of power, or a combination of the two
may give an investor power. Power does not have
to be exercised. An investor with more than half the
voting rights would meet the power criteria in the

absence of restrictions or other circumstances.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS 11 “Joint Arrangements” refines that joint
arrangements are limited to joint operations and
joint ventures only. The existing policy choice of
proportionate consolidation for jointly controlled
entities has been eliminated. Equity accounting is
mandatory for participants in joint ventures. HKFRS
11 addresses inconsistencies in the reporting of
joint arrangements by requiring a single method
to account for interests in jointly controlled
entities. The existing HKAS 28 was extended as
“Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures” as
a result of the compulsory requirement for equity
accounting for all investments in joint ventures
under HKFRS 11.

HKFRS 12 “Disclosures of Interests in Other
Entities” is a new and comprehensive standard on
disclosure requirements for all forms of interests in
other entities. This new standard requires entities to
disclose information that helps financial statement
readers to evaluate the nature, risks and financial
effects associated with the entity’s interests in
subsidiaries, associates, joint arrangements and

unconsolidated structured entities.

HKFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement” improves
consistency and reduces complexity by providing,
for the first time, a precise definition of fair value
and a single source of fair value measurement and
disclosure requirements for use across HKFRSs. The
requirements do not extend the use of fair value
accounting, but provide guidance on how it should
be applied where its use is already required or
permitted by other standards within HKFRSs.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

The Group is presently studying the implications
of applying HKFRS 9, HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS
12 and HKFRS 13 and have not yet quantified the
extent of their impact as at the date of publication

of these financial statements.

HKAS 1 (Amendments) “Presentation of Items
of Other Comprehensive Income” changes
the disclosure of items presented in other
comprehensive income in the statement of
comprehensive income. The amendment requires
entities to separate items presented in other
comprehensive income into two groups, based on
whether or not they may be reclassified to profit or
loss in the future. Items that will not be reclassified
to profit or loss will be presented separately from
items that may be reclassified in the future. Entities
that choose to present other comprehensive income
items before tax will be required to show the
amount of tax related to the two groups separately.
The title used by HKAS 1 for the statement of
comprehensive income has changed to ‘statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income’.
However, HKAS 1 still permits entities to use other
titles. The amendments affect presentation only and
have no impact on the Group’s financial position

and performance.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

HKAS 32 (Amendments)

Assets and Financial Liabilities”

"Offsetting Financial
clarifies the
requirements for offsetting financial instruments.
The amendments address inconsistencies in
current practice when applying the offsetting
criteria and clarify the meaning of “currently has
a legally enforceable right of set-off” and some
gross settlement systems may be considered
equivalent to net settlements. The application of
these amendments is unlikely to have any material

financial impact on the Group.

The directors of the Company anticipate that
the application of the other new standards,
amendments and interpretation will have no
material impact on the results and financial position

of the Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which is a
collective term that includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”), and
interpretations (“Ints”) issued by the HKICPA,
and accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis, except
for property, plant and equipment and certain
financial instruments, which are measured at
revalued amounts or fair values, as explained in the

accounting policies set out below.

Non-current assets and disposal groups classified
as held for sale are stated at the lower of carrying

amount and fair value less costs to sell.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and
entities (including special purpose entities)
controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries).
Control is achieved where the Company has the
power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its

activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated
income statement from the effective date of
acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal,

as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies in line with those used by other

members of the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

All intra-group transactions, balances, income,
expenses and unrealised gains on transactions
between group entities are eliminated on

consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in the net assets of
consolidated subsidiaries are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from the equity attributable
to the owners of the Company. Non-controlling
interests in the net assets of consolidated
subsidiaries consist of the amount of those interests
at the date of the original business combination
and the non-controlling interests’ share of changes

in equity since the date of the combination.

Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group
are presented on the face of the consolidated
income statement and the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income as an allocation of the
total profit or loss and total comprehensive income
for the year between non-controlling interests and

the owners of the Company.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Allocation of total comprehensive income to

non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of
a subsidiary is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even
if this results in the non-controlling interests having
a deficit balance. Prior to 1st January, 2010, losses
applicable to the non-controlling interests in excess
of the non-controlling interests in the subsidiary’s
equity were allocated against the interests of the
Group except to the extent that the non-controlling
interests had a binding obligation and were able to

make an additional investment to cover the losses.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in

existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as
equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and

attributed to owners of the Company.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in

existing subsidiaries (continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the fair
value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous
carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill),
and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interests. Where certain assets of the
subsidiary are measured at revalued amounts or
fair values and the related cumulative gain or
loss has been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity, the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity are accounted
for as if the Company had directly disposed of
the related assets (i.e. reclassified to profit or
loss or transferred directly to retained earnings).
The fair value of any investment retained in the
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under HKAS 39 “Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” or,
when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of
an investment in an associate or a jointly controlled

entity.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost
less accumulated impairment losses, unless the
investment is classified as held for sale or included
in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale.
The results of the subsidiaries are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivable.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for
using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured
at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group
to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related
costs are generally recognised in profit or loss as

incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised
at their fair value at the acquisition date, except
that:

- deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities
or assets related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured
in accordance with HKAS 12 “Income
Taxes” and HKAS 19 “Employee Benefits”

respectively;

- liabilities or equity instruments related to
share-based payment transactions of the
acquiree or the replacement of an acquiree’s
share-based payment transactions with
share-based payment transactions of the
Group are measured in accordance with
HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment” at the

acquisition date; and
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

- assets (or disposal groups) that are classified
as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS
5 "Noncurrent Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations” are measured in

accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the
fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of
the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If,
after assessment, the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the
fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest
in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase

gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in
the event of liquidation may be initially measured
either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
The choice of measurement basis is made on a
transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of
non-controlling interests are measured at their fair
value or another measurement basis required by

another standard.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business
is carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses, if any, and is presented separately in the

consolidated statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill
is allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating
units (or groups of cash-generating units) that
is expected to benefit from the synergies of the

combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually, or
more frequently when there is indication that the
unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying
amount, the impairment loss is allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of
the unit on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit
or loss in the consolidated income statement. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not

reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit,
the attributable amount of goodwill is included in

the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are
classified as held for sale if their carrying amount
will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use.
This condition is regarded as met only when the
sale is highly probable and the asset (or disposal
group) is available for immediate sale in its present
condition subject only to terms that are usual and
customary for sale of such asset (or disposal group).
A disposal group is a group of assets to be disposed
of together as a group in a single transaction, and
liabilities directly associated with those assets that

will be transferred in the transaction.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan
involving loss of control of a subsidiary, all of
the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary are
classified as held for sale when the above criteria
for classification as held for sale are met, regardless
of whether the Group will retain a non-controlling

interest in its former subsidiary after the sale.

Non-current assets and disposal groups classified
as held for sale are measured at the lower of their
previous carrying amounts and fair values less costs

to sell.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Discontinued operation

A discontinued operation is a component of the
Group's business, the operations and cash flows of
which can be clearly distinguished from the rest of
the Group and which represents a separate major
line of business or geographical area of operations,
or is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose
of a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired

exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs
upon disposal or when the operation meets the
criteria to be classified as held for sale, if earlier. It

also occurs if the operation is abandoned.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes, are stated at cost or fair
value at the date of revaluation, less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated

impairment losses, if any.

Buildings, plant and machinery, motor vehicles and
office equipment held for use in the production or
supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes, are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at their revalued amounts,
being the fair value at the date of revaluation
less any subsequent accumulated depreciation
and any subsequent accumulated impairment
losses. Revaluations are performed with sufficient
regularity such that the carrying amounts do
not differ materially from that which would be
determined using fair values at the end of the

reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Any revaluation increase arising on revaluation
of an asset is recognised in other comprehensive
income, and accumulated under the heading of
asset revaluation reserve, except to the extent that
it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset
previously recognised in profit or loss, in which
case the increase is credited to profit or loss to
the extent of the decrease previously expensed.
A decrease in the net carrying amount arising on
revaluation of an asset is recognised in profit or
loss to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if
any, held in the asset revaluation reserve relating
to a previous revaluation of that asset. On the
subsequent sale or retirement of a revalued asset,
the attributable revaluation surplus remaining in the
asset revaluation reserve is transferred directly to

retained profits.

Depreciation is provided to write off the fair value
of items of property, plant and equipment, other
than construction in progress, over their estimated
remaining useful lives and after taking into
account of their estimated residual values, using
the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with
the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for

on a prospective basis.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Construction in progress includes property, plant
and equipment in the course of construction
for production or for its own use purposes.
Construction in progress is carried at cost less
any recognised impairment loss. Construction in
progress is classified to the appropriate category
of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these
assets, on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their

intended use.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated
over their estimated useful lives on the same basis
as owned assets or, where shorter, the term of the

relevant lease.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in profit or loss in the year in which the item is

derecognised.
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ZE——F+ZA=+—HIFE For the year ended 31st December, 2011

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment loss on non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial
assets (see the accounting policy in respect of
impairment of financial assets below) to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any. Where it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent

allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset
for which the estimates of future cash flows have

not been adjusted.
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3.

For the year ended 31st December, 2011

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment loss on non-financial assets (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss
is recognised as an expense in profit or loss
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount under another standard, in which
case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation

decrease under that standard.

Where an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or
cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset
is carried at a revalued amount under another
standard, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase

under that standard.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and represents
amounts receivable for goods sold in the normal
course of business, net of discounts and sales
related tax. Revenue is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and when the revenue can be measured

reliably.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when

the goods are delivered and title has passed.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of revenue can
be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued
on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying

amount on initial recognition.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other

leases are classified as operating leases.

Assets held under finance leases are initially
recognised as assets of the Group at their fair value
at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the
present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in
the consolidated statement of financial position as

a finance lease obligation.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leasing (continued)

Lease payments are apportioned between finance
costs and reduction of the lease obligation so as to
achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability. Finance costs are recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless they are directly
attributable to qualifying assets, in which case
they are capitalised in accordance with the Group’s
policy on borrowing costs (see the accounting

policy below).

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable
as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are
recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a

straight-line basis over the lease term.

Land use rights

Payments for obtaining land use rights that are
classified as operating leases are accounted for
as prepaid lease payments and charged to profit
or loss over the period of the right using the

straight-line method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax

currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as
reported in the consolidated income statement
because it excludes items of income and expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and
it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting

period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the

taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which
to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable

future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to

allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset
is realised. The measurement of deferred tax assets
and liabilities reflects the tax consequences that
would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets

and liabilities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Current or deferred tax for the year is recognised
in profit or loss, except when it relates to items
that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax
arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the

accounting for the business combination.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost, which comprises all costs of
purchase and, where applicable, costs of conversion
and other costs that have been incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present condition, is
calculated using the weighted average cost method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price for inventories less all estimated costs of

completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount
of those inventories is recognised as an expense
in the period in which the related revenue is
recognised. The amount of any write-down of
inventories to net realisable value and all losses
of inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of inventories
is recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the period

in which the reversal occurs.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
Retirement benefit costs

Payments to Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme and
state-managed retirement benefit schemes which
are defined contribution schemes are charged as
an expense when employees have rendered service

entitling them to the contributions.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective
functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of
the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign

currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise. Exchange differences arising
on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried
at fair value are included in profit or loss for
the period except for differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of
which gains and losses are recognised directly in
other comprehensive income, in which cases, the
exchange differences are also recognised directly in

other comprehensive income.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purpose of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group's foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HKD) at
the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the
reporting period, and their income and expenses
are translated at the average exchange rates for the
period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during that period, in which case, the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of
translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate).

From 1st January, 2010 onwards, on the disposal of
a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group’s
entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, a disposal involving
loss of joint control over a jointly controlled entity
that includes a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of significant influence over an
associate that includes a foreign operation), all of
the exchange differences accumulated in equity
in respect of that operation attributable to the
owners of the Company are reclassified to profit
or loss. In addition, in relation to a partial disposal
that does not result in the Group losing control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
the proportionate share of accumulated exchange
differences are reattributed to non-controlling
interests and are not recognised in profit or loss.
For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals
of associates or jointly controlled entities that do
not result in the Group losing significant influence
or joint control), the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to
profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable
assets acquired arising on the acquisition of a
foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities
of the foreign operation and translated at the rate
of exchange prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Exchange differences arising are recognised

in the translation reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially

ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or

loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as

an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising
from development (or from the development phase
of an internal project) is recognised if, and only if,

all of the following have been demonstrated:

- the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for

use or sale;
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Research and development expenditure (continued)

- the intention to complete the intangible

asset and use or sell it;

- the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

- how the intangible asset will generate

probable future economic benefits;

- the availability of adequate technical,
financial and other resources to complete
the development and to use or sell the

intangible asset; and

- the ability to measure reliably the
expenditure attributable to the intangible

asset during its development.

The amount initially recognised for
internally-generated intangible assets is the sum
of the expenditure incurred from the date when
the intangible asset first meets the recognition
criteria listed above. Where no internally-generated
intangible asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which it is incurred.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised on the consolidated statement of
financial position when a group entity becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities
are initially measured at fair value. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are

recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into three
categories, including loans and receivables, financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss and
available-for-sale financial assets. The classification
depends on the nature and purpose of the financial
assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade day basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the

marketplace.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net

carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income income is recognised on an effective

interest basis for debt instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. At the end
of each reporting period subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables (including
trade and other receivables from third parties,
trade and other receivables from non-controlling
shareholders, short-term loans receivable and
bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment losses (see accounting policy
on impairment of financial assets below), unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case, they are stated at cost less any identified

impairment losses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

(“FVTPL")

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when
the financial asset is either held for trading or it is

designated as at FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the

purpose of selling in the near future; or

o on initial recognition, it is part of an
identified portfolio of financial instruments
that the Group manages together and has
a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-

taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and

effective as a hedging instrument.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

(“FVTPL") (continued)

A financial asset other than a financial asset held
for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon

initial recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition

inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

o the financial asset forms part of a group
of financial assets or financial liabilities or
both, which is managed and its performance
is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with the Group’s documented
risk management or investment strategy, and
information about the grouping is provided

internally on that basis; or

° it forms part of a contract containing one
or more embedded derivatives, and HKAS
39 "Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement” permits the entire combined
contract (asset or liability) to be designated
as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value,
with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise. Fair value is determined in the manner

described in note 6(c).
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are
non-derivatives that are either designated
as available-for-sale or are not classified as
financial assets at FVTPL, loans and receivables or

held-to-maturity investments.

Available-for-sale financial assets are measured
at fair value at the end of the reporting period.
Changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated under the
heading of investments revaluation reserve until
the financial asset is disposed of or is determined
to be impaired, at which time, the cumulative gain
or loss previously accumulated in the investments
revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss
(see accounting policy in respect of impairment of

financial assets below).

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not
have a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured, they
are measured at cost less any identified impairment
losses at the end of the reporting period (see
accounting policy in respect of impairment of

financial assets below).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the end
of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired when there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the
financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of

the financial assets have been affected.

For available-for-sale equity investments, a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of
that investment below its cost is considered to be

objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of

impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or

counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as default
or delinquency in interest or principal

payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or financial

re-organisation; or
o the disappearance of an active market for

that financial asset because of financial

difficulties.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets that are assessed not to be
impaired individually, such as trade receivables,
are subsequently assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment
for a portfolio of receivables could include the
Group’s past experience of collecting payments,
an increase in the number of delayed payments
in the portfolio past the average credit period
and observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on

receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
when there is objective evidence that the asset
is impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective

interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of
the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’'s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for
a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will

not be reversed in subsequent periods.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is
reduced by the impairment loss directly for all
financial assets with the exception of trade
receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. Changes
in the carrying amount of the allowance account
are recognised in profit or loss. When a trade
receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are

credited to profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is
considered to be impaired, cumulative gains or
losses previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss in the

period.

For financial assets measured at amortised
cost, if, in a subsequent period, the amount of
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been

recognised.

Kith Holdings Limited

99



100

SEVKERBME
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

=

—E——F+-A=+—HLEFE

R = n+ IEK (m,\)

BT A (&)

[REV BT R 2 HERAR
BZRERBE TERBERIENIE
mPEE - ERERRR ZEMNAF
BB N 7E 2 b 2 T Y2t P HE R A S
EREEMFHEHETRST -

% B 5 R
EEERR T U KAEREST A
TIREARLZHEzME UL K EE
LEZTEZTEDE-

BERMEORTIE EM I BE 2 BIHK
AREEBRMEEIMNELZT
& o BRI R THR 1) 2 W SR A8 fh At
BRASNREMFEABEZERF
R s E R (ER) BERTIRE
FREEZ N -

B X HIR B A R EERER -

Annual Report 2011

For the year ended 31st December, 2011

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity
investments previously recognised in profit or
loss are not reversed through profit or loss in
subsequent periods. Any increase in fair value
subsequent to impairment loss is recognised directly
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in

investment revaluation reserve.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued
by a group entity are classified according to the
substance of the contractual arrangements entered
into and the definitions of a financial liability and

an equity instrument.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net

carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective

interest basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other
payables, dividend payable to non-controlling
shareholders, obligations under finance lease and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which

case, they are stated at cost.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payments when due

in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contract liabilities are initially
measured at their fair values and are subsequently

measured at the higher of:

- the amount of the obligation under the
contract, as determined in accordance with
HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets”; and

- the amount initially recognised less
cumulative amortisation recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the terms

of the guarantee contracts.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the relevant group entities are recognised

at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’'s own equity
instruments is recognised and deducted directly in
equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the

Company’s own equity instruments.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at
the date when derivative contracts are entered
into and are subsequently remeasured to their
fair value at the end of the reporting period. The
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
immediately unless the derivative is designated and
effective as a hedging instrument, in which case the
timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends

on the nature of the hedge relationship.

Derivatives not designated into an effective hedge
relationship are classified as current or non-current

on the basis of their expected settlement dates.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to receive cash flows
from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
and continues to control the transferred asset, the
Group recognises its retained interest in the asset
and an associated liability for amounts it may have
to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised

borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or

loss.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Derecognition (continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset other than
in its entirety (e.g. when the Group retains an
option to repurchase part of a transferred asset or
retains a residual interest that does not result in the
retention of substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership and the Group retains control), the
Group allocates the previous carrying amount of
the financial asset between the part it continues
to recognise under continuing involvement, and
the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the
relative fair values of those parts on the date of
the transfer. The difference between the carrying
amount allocated to the part that is no longer
recognised and the sum of the consideration
received for the part no longer recognised and
any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that
had been recognised in other comprehensive
income is recognised in profit or loss. A cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is allocated between the
part that continues to be recognised and the part
that is no longer recognised on the basis of the

relative fair values of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when,
and only when, the Group’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or they expire. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid

and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made. The amount
recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present
obligation. Where a provision is measured using
the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value

of those cash flows (where the effect is material).

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is

remote.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is
related to the entity that is preparing its financial

statements (“reporting entity”).

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to a reporting entity if that

person:

(i) has control or joint control over the
reporting entity;

(i) has significant influence over the

reporting entity; or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the reporting entity or of

a parent of the reporting entity.

(b) An entity is related to a reporting entity if
any of the following conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the reporting entity are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the

others);

(ii) one entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or
an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the

other entity is a member);

(iii) both entities are joint ventures of the

same third party;
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Related parties (continued)

(b)

(continued)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

one entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an

associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the reporting
entity or an entity related to the
reporting entity. If the reporting entity
is itself such a plan, the sponsoring
employers are also related to the

reporting entity;

the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in

(a); or

a person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity or
is @ member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).
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4.

For the year ended 31st December, 2011

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting
policies, which are described in note 3,
management is required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and underlying assumptions are based on past
experience, expectations of the future and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual

results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects

both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning
the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period
that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities within the next financial year.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Estimated impairment on loans receivable

Management regularly reviews the recoverability of
the loans receivable. Appropriate impairment for
estimated irrecoverable amount is recognised in
profit or loss when there is objective evidence that

the amount is not recoverable.

In determining whether allowance for bad and
doubtful debts is required, the Group takes into
consideration the aged status and likelihood of
collection. Specific allowance is only made for the
loans receivable that are unlikely to be collected
and is recognised on the difference between the
carrying amount of loans receivable and the present
value of estimated future cash flow discounted
using the original effective interest rate. Where the
actual future cash flows are less than expected,
a material impairment loss may arise. As at 31st
December, 2011, the carrying amount of loans
receivable amounted to HK$95,526,000 (2010:
HK$65,605,000).
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Estimated impairment on trade receivables from

third parties

Management regularly reviews the recoverability
and aging of the trade receivables. Allowance for
doubtful debts is made on trade receivables based
on the evaluation of collectability and ageing
analysis of the trade debts and on management
judgement and estimate. When there is objective
evidence of impairment loss, the Group takes into
consideration the estimation of future cash flows.
The amount of the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial asset'’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition). Where
the actual future cash flows are less than expected,
a material impairment loss may arise. As at 31st
December, 2011, the carrying amount of trade
receivables is approximately HK$610,271,000 (net
of allowance for doubtful debts of approximately
HK$11,332,000) (2010: HK$511,777,000 (net
of allowance of doubtful debts of approximately
HK$11,737,000)).

Estimated net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less estimated costs of completion and selling
expenses. These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience of
selling products of similar nature. It could change
significantly as a result of competitor actions in
response to severe industry cycles. Management will

reassess the estimations at each reporting date.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Estimated useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

The Group’s management reviews the estimated
useful lives of property, plant and equipment in
determining their depreciation charges at the end
of each reporting period. This estimate is based on
the historical experience of the actual useful lives
of assets of similar nature and functions. The Group
will revise the depreciation charge where useful

lives are different to those previously estimated.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that
entities in the Group will be able to continue as
a going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy

remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net
debt, which includes the borrowings and obligation
under finance lease disclosed in notes 33 and 34
respectively, net of bank balances and cash, and
equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital, reserves and

retained profits.

The Group’s management reviews the capital
structure on a semi-annual basis. As part of this
review, the management considers the cost of
capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital, and takes appropriate actions to adjust the

Group's capital structure.
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5. EXREMREIE (& 5. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(continued)
AREBFEHREEABHL REREARN - The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio.
AEECZEEEEABHEATHEB The Group has a target gearing ratio of not
70% (ZE—FF : 70%) * JHiR{EHE more than 70% (2010: 70%) determined as the
SRR L REFE o proportion of net debt to equity.
RBEHRCEEBBLERNT The gearing ratios at the end of the reporting

periods were as follows:

—g--% —T-T%
2011 2010
FHET FAT
HKS$’ 000 HK$’000
B IH() Debt (i) 562,643 452,555
W IRTESREES Less: Bank balances and cash (81,814) (65,074)
BIR Net debt 480,829 387,481
I R (i) Equity (ii) 954,119 875,341
B I8 F 58 B iR i 2 b & Net debt to equity ratio 50.4% 44.3%
(i) BEzEEARBAREHES X (i) Debt is defined as long and short-term borrowings
LRERESEMR  FE2RAM and obligation under finance lease as detailed in
3334 - notes 33 and 34 respectively.
(ii) B i B ¥R AR B A SR NS (i) Equity includes all capital and reserves of the

(BIEIEERERS) -

I I 2 Annual Report 2011

Group including non-controlling interests.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
B T B 2 %R a. Categories of financial instruments
rEE N
The Group The Company
“E--F —Z-%F “E--% Z2-%F
2011 2010 2011 2010
T FEL TEn TERL
HKS' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
HBEE Financial assets
BATEFAER Fair value through profit or
(BRATEFABE): loss (FVTPL):
BEEE Held-for-trading 4,873 1,972 = -
ABiBEE Other financial assets = 377 = -
4,873 2,349 - -
HEERE Available-for-sale investments 21,183 25,284 = -
BRI : Loans and receivables:
EUE=FESZHEL  Trade receivables from
third parties 610,271 511,777 - -
R SRR R R Trade receivables from
BHHEN non-controlling
shareholders 88,057 60,910 - -
BEALfER Financial assets included
F=EERL in other receivables
MHEE from third parties 52,713 11,548 - -
ErEYEERREE  Other receivables from
B non-controlling shareholders 1,455 1,371 - -
TEUMBRRIZER  Amounts due from subsidiaries - - 307,657 271,053
REERER Short-term loans receivable 95,526 65,605 = -
RIEHRRES Bank balances and cash 81,814 65,074 229 191
929,836 716,285 307,886 271,244
g 3N Financial liabilities
REENATEL Financial liabilities at amortised
ek cost:
EHEFER Trade payables 145,374 208,499 = -
BEARMGER Financial liabilities included
R HBeRE in other payables 33,327 19,748 138 87
ERIBRRAZER  Amounts due to subsidiaries - - 211,455 183,519
JETEERRR Dividend payable to
ZIRE non-controlling shareholders 8,118 1,430 = -
BERERMT Obligation under finance leases 1,338 1,744 = -
BE Borrowings 561,305 450,811 - -
749,462 682,232 211,593 183,606
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and

policies

The Group’s major financial instruments
include available-for-sale investments, trade
and other receivables from third parties
and non-controlling shareholders, short-
term loans receivable, held-for-trading
investments, other financial assets, bank
balances and cash, trade and other payables,
dividend payable to non-controlling
shareholders, borrowings and obligation
under finance lease. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments include market risk
(currency risk, interest rate risk and equity
price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

Market risk

(i) Currency risk

Currency risk arises when recognised
assets and liabilities are denominated
in currencies other than the
functional currency of the Group's
entities to which they related. The
directors consider that the Group's
exposure to United States dollar
("USD") is insignificant on the
ground that HKD is pegged to USD.
The Group is exposed to currency
risk mainly arising from its bank
balances in Swiss Franc (“CHF"). As
at 31st December, 2011, the Group
maintains bank deposit denominated
in CHF amounting to approximately
CHF1,265,000 (2010: nil). The Group
currently does not hedge its currency
risk.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(i)

(i)

Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has
been determined based on the
exposure to currency risk arising
from CHF at the end of the reporting
period.

If CHF had strengthened/weakened
by 5% against HKD with all other
variables held constant, the Group’s
post-tax profit for the year ended
31st December, 2011 and equity
would have increased/decreased by
approximately HK$414,000. As at
31st December, 2010, the Group had
not exposed to significant currency
risk. Accordingly, no quantitative
market risk disclosures for currency

risk had been prepared.

Interest rate risk
The Group's exposure to cash flow
interest rate risk is mainly attributable

to variable-rate borrowings.

The Group’'s cash flow interest rate
risk is mainly concentrated on the
fluctuation of Hong Kong Interbank
Offer Rate (“HIBOR"), Singapore
Interbank Offer Rate (“SIBOR”) and
the interest rate prescribed by the
People’s Bank of China arising from

the Group’s borrowings.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(i) Interest rate risk (continued)
The Group’s fair value interest
rate risk relates primarily to fixed-
rate bank borrowings and loans

receivable.

The Group currently does not have
any interest rate hedging policy.
The directors monitor the Group's
exposure on an ongoing basis and
will consider hedging interest rate risk

should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has
been determined based on the
exposure to interest rates for the
Group's variable-rate borrowings. The
analysis is prepared assuming these
financial instruments outstanding
at the end of the reporting period
were outstanding for the whole
year. A 100 basis points (2010: 100
basis points) increase or decrease
in interest rates is used when
reporting interest rate risk internally
to key management personnel and
represents management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in

interest rates.



mE MR E M

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HEZZT——F+=ZA=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31st December, 2011

6. MBEIAE
MHAREREERIE ()

b.

(iii)

iy

F =@ g ()
BRE DT (&)

fiéd 7 2= 38 407 2100
BF(ZZE—F4F:100
BF) MATAHAME
T E AIREE
HE-ZE——F+=A
=T —HLEFEZRH
180 ) R IR SR
# 50 493,699,000 7T
(Z2—ZF G i
hN#41,676,000% 7T) -
TERAEBEREER
RITEERIFERR
P& -

e (B A% L B
AEBBREAHOER
ERFHFEEREAR
BAEBERRR BEEE
BREFTRRR LM
HRre®&REHE UAE
DEEAHHERER
REEBEREZERE
PEERR AEHZ
A ERREREEET
T Bt 32 B A 2 #E 2
TAR-—BREMEZ
HEeER-

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(i) Interest rate risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis (continued)
If interest rates had been 100 basis
points (2010: 100 basis points)
higher/lower and all other variables
were held constant, the Group’s
post-tax profit for the year ended
31st December, 2011 and the equity
would have decreased/increased by
approximately HK$3,699,000 (2010:
decreased/increased by approximately
HK$1,676,000). This is mainly
attributable to the Group’s exposure
to interest rates on its variable-rate

bank borrowings.

(iii) Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity
price risk through its available-for-
sale investments and held-for-trading
investments. The management
manages this exposure by maintaining
a portfolio of investments with
different risks and return profiles
and closely monitoring available-for-
sale investments and held-for-trading
investments for the price changes.
The Group’s equity price risk is mainly
concentrated on equity instruments
quoted in the Stock Exchange and
fund prices quoted by a broker.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(iii) Equity price risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analysis below has
been determined based on the
exposure to equity price risks at the
end of the reporting period.

Sensitivity analysis for available-for-
sale unlisted investments set out in
note 23(b) has not been presented as
their fair values cannot be measured
reliably.

If the prices of the respective equity
instruments had been 15% (2010:
15%) higher/lower:

o The Group’s post-tax profit
for the year ended 31st
December, 2011 would have
increased by approximately
HK$1,972,000 or decreased by
approximately HK$2,037,000,
other comprehensive income
and investment revaluation
reserve would have increased
by approximately HK$65,000
or decreased by nil, and the
equity would have increased/
decreased by approximately
HK$2,037,000 (2010: other
comprehensive income
and investment revaluation
reserve would have increased/
decreased by approximately
HK$2,652,000) as a result of
the changes in fair value of
available-for-sale investments
(investment savings plan in
note 23(a)); and
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)
(iii) Equity price risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis (continued)
o The Group’s post-tax profit for
the year ended 31st December,
2011 and the equity would
have increased/decreased by
approximately HK$140,000
(2010: HK$225,000) as a result
of the changes in fair value of

held-for-trading investments.

In management’s opinion,
the sensitivity analysis is not
representative of the Group’s equity
risk as it only reflects the impact
of equity price changes to equity
securities held at the end of the

reporting period.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
which will cause a financial loss to the Group
due to the failure to perform an obligation
by the counterparties as at 31st December,
2011 and 2010 is the carrying amount of
the respective recognised financial assets
as stated in the consolidated statement of

financial position.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

The Group has stringent policies in place to
manage its credit risk with trade and other
receivables, which include but are not limited

to the measures set out below:

- Certain portion of business is covered
by letters of credit and is secured by
back-to-back payment arrangements

with vendors;

- Certain trade receivable balances on
open account term are factored to
external financial institutions without

recourse; and

- The management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue
debts.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

The Group has concentration of credit
risk on top five major customers which
accounted for approximately 48%
(2010: 48%) of the Group’'s total trade
receivables net of allowance for doubtful
debts amounting to approximately
HK$334,901,000 (2010: HK$277,336,000).
These top five customers are engaged in
manufacturing of tobacco products in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC")
and trading of other electronic and related
products in Hong Kong and PRC, which have
good repayment history. The credit period
granted to them ranged from 30 to 120
days.

The Group also has concentration of credit
risk on its loan receivables which were
due from several counterparties. In order
to minimise the credit risk, the directors
continuously monitor the level of exposure
to ensure follow-up actions and/or corrective
actions are taken promptly to lower exposure
or to recover overdue balances. In addition,
the directors review the recoverable amount
of each individual debtor at the end of the
reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit

risk is significantly reduced.
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

The Group has concentration of credit risk
on trade and other receivables due from two
non-controlling shareholders which have

good repayment history.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited
because the counterparties are reputable
banks.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of
the Group’s exposure to credit risk arising
from trade receivables and the financial
effect on the factored trade receivables, and
loan receivables are set out in notes 25 and

27, respectively.

Liquidity risk

As at 31st December, 2011, the Group
had net current assets amounting to
approximately HK$336,743,000 (2010:
HK$225,008,000). The Group is not exposed
to liquidity risk as it has sufficient funds to
meet its financial obligations when they fall

due.

In the management of the liquidity risk,
the Group monitors and maintains a
level of bank balances and cash deemed
adequate by the management to finance
the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The
management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with

loan covenants.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The following tables detail the Group's
remaining contractual maturity for its non-
derivative financial liabilities. The tables have
been drawn up based on the contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates
or, if floating, based on rates current at the
end of the reporting period) and the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to

pay.

Specifically, term loans which contain a
repayment on demand clause are included
in the earliest time band regardless of
the probability of the banks choosing to
exercise their rights within one year after
the reporting date. The maturity analysis for
other non-derivative financial liabilities is
prepared based on the scheduled repayment

dates.
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6. HMEIE(E) 6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
b. MEEREEBERBER(Z) b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

Liquidity table — The Group

R-g--F

EEX =
REAFE 3R A¥BRE =t-B2
188 1388 BE 1FNE REEE RERE
Carrying

Total amount

On demand undiscounted at 31st
o less than 13 3months Over cash  December,
1 month months  to 1 year 1 year flows 201

TR TEn TEr TR TEn TEn
HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000

ZE--% 201
FiEHBIE Non-derivative financial
instruments

ENEAER Trade payables 79,762 65,612 - - 145,374 145,374
BE AR MERE Financial liabilities included in

HBaE other payables 3,307 - - - 33327 33327
RS Dividend payable 8,118 - - - 8,118 8,118
BB Bank overdraft 39 - - - 39 39
EEREER W) Trust receipt loans (note) 275,942 - - - 275,94 275,942
BESAREME)  Short-term bank borrowings (note) 138,479 - - - 138479 138479
ESSAEEHE)  Long-term bank borrowings (note)

-8 -~ fixed-rate 24,639 . . . 24,639 24,639
) - variable-rate 110,738 - - - 110,738 110,738
E) Factoring loan 15 - - - 1,115 1,115
BEREER Obligation under finance leases 87 175 786 419 1467 1338
682,599 65,787 786 419 749591 749462
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HE-Z——%+-A=+—HIEE For the year ended 31st December, 2011

MBETAEE)

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b. FEAREEEERBER(E) b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
HEE LA (E) Liquidity risk (continued)
TEE LKL EE(EF) Liquidity table — The Group (continued)
R-E-2%
EEX TZHR
EEITR 3fEA AERRE =t-HZ
1A 138 A EE R REEE AR
Carrying
Total amount
On demand undiscounted at 31st
or less than 1-3 3 months QOver cash  December,
1 month months 1o 1 year 1 year flows 2010
TEn TEL FiEn TEn TiEn TiEn
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
ZE-3% 2010
FITERBIA Non-derivative financial
instruments
ENEAER Trade payables 149,679 58,820 - - 208499 208,499
B ARMEMER  Financial liabilities included
UBER in other payables 19,748 - - - 19,748 19,748
(T EERER2RE  Dividend payable to non-controlling
shareholders 1,430 - - - 1430 1430
RiTEX Bank overdrat 284 - - - 284 284
ERREER ) Trust receipt loans (note) 253,541 - - - 15 253541
BESAREME)  Short-term bank borrowings (note) 32,600 - - - 32,600 32,600
RERTEEWE)  Long-term bank borrowings (note)
-E8 - fixed-rate 135,920 - - - 135,920 135,920
-8 - variable-rate 23,466 - - - 23,466 23,466
EHEF-T8 Other loan - fixed rate 5,000 - - - 5,000 5,000
HERERT Obligations under finance leases 7 143 645 1,075 1935 1,744
621,740 58,963 645 1,075 682,423 682,232
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HEZZT——F+-_A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31st December, 2011

6. BBEIR(&) 6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
b. FEAMEEREREE (&) b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
TEEDER (&) Liquidity risk (continued)
REBET K —ALA] Liquidity table — The Company
Nog--%
EEX =
EEIFR 3faA A¥BRE =t-B2
188 13EA BE 1ENE REAE RERE
Carrying
Total amount
On demand undiscounted at 31st
o less than 13 3months Over cash  December,
1 month months  to 1 year 1 year flows 201
TEn TER TR TEn TER TER
HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
-%--f 2011
FITERBIA Non-derivative financial
instruments
BEFAEMERER  Financial liabilities included
JHKkaE in other payables 138 - - - 138 138
EAMEBLAZER  Amounts due to subsidiaries 211,455 - - - 2N45S 2145
211,593 - - - 211,593 211,593
BENZHBER: Financial quarantees issued:
SEERSEWF47)  Maximum amount quaranteed
(note 47) 447,570 - - - 447,570 -
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HE-Z——%+-A=+—HIEE For the year ended 31st December, 2011

6. HMBIA(E)

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b. BEEREEEERBE (&) b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
(&) Liquidity risk (continued)
F—AK G (&) Liquidity table — The Company (continued)
RZE-ZF
EEX 25
EEIAR 3fEA FERRE =t-HZ
2R 13 A E3f 18 HERE BEE
Carrying
Total amount
On demand undiscounted at 31st
or less than 13 3 months QOver cash  December,
1 month months t0 1 year 1 year flows 2010
AL AL AL AL AL AL
HK§' 000 HKS$' 000 HK§' 000 HK$' 000 HK§' 000 HK§' 000
“5-%F 2010
FTEMBIA Non-derivative financial
instruments
BRr AERERER Financial liabilities included in
LHkaE other payables 87 - - - 87 87
ERAHERARZES  Amounts due to subsidiaries 183,519 - - - 183519 183,519
183,606 - - - 183,606 183,606
BELCHBER: Financial quarantees issued:
SEEREB(WH47)  Maimum amount guaranteed
(note 47) 309,607 - - - 309,607 -

Hrat -

FHREBAONME RSB AIRERES
KEBBERZEEFATEERE
BRI TARIMEAl 2HEESEER -
RZE——F+ZA=+—8K
—E-EF+_A=+—H "Ik
EEEZRMBASBLED A
549,798,000 7T % 445,527,000
e ERIAEEZHMBHRL &
ETRGERITEH A RITERNEE
TRANBFER - EEMEZERTT
BERESRERBEEI 2 ETE
HEEEEZ REFTRTEEEZ
CZEEREBEERBEMIAZETE
X E HA KA R A ) AT B B 2R (E R
BERZFEMBRE - FHEWOT -

Note:

Borrowings with a repayment on demand clause
are included in the “on demand or less than
1 month” time band in the above maturity
analysis. As at 31st December, 2011 and 31st
December, 2010, the aggregate undiscounted
principal amounts of these borrowings amounted
to HK$549,798,000 and HK$445,527,000
respectively. Taking into account the Group's
financial position, the directors do not believe
that it is probable that the banks will exercise
their discretionary rights to demand immediate
repayment. The directors believe that such bank
loans will be repaid in accordance with the
scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
agreements. Information provided internally to
management has been prepared based on the
scheduled repayment dates as set out in the
loan agreements and ignoring the effect of any
repayment on demand clause. Details are as
follows:
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HE-_Z—F+-_A=+—HLLFE

For the year ended 31st December, 2011

6. HMEIEAE(E) 6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
b. FEAMEEREREE (&) b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
TEEDER (&) Liquidity risk (continued)
Rog--%
EEX =
EEAFR 3faR ARERE =t-82
1A 138 A BIE 180 REAR RaE
Carrying
Total amount
On demand undiscounted at 31st
or less than 13 3months Over cash  December,
1 month months  to 1 year 1 year flows 2011
THR Tén THR TER TR TR
HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
8--F 2011
EAREER Trust receipt loans 65,417 147,675 64,218 - 271310 275,94
RARTHE Short-term bank borrowings 54,365 84,887 - - 139252 138479
REROEE Long-term bank borrowings
-EE - fired-rate - 5,023 20,461 - 25,484 24,639
-%8 - variable-rate 3,23 3,353 72,464 38,445 117,485 110,738
123,005 240,938 157,143 38,445 559,531 549,798
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BB IA(E)

HE-Z——%+-A=+—HIEE For the year ended 31st December, 2011

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b. BHRKREEEERBER (£) b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
HEE LA (E) Liquidity risk (continued)
R-2-%%
EEX +=A
ERIATR 3fEA AERRE =t-Hz
i A 132 A EE 0L REEE EAE
Carrying
Total amount
On demand undiscounted at 31st
or less than 1-3 3 months QOver cash  December,
1 month months to 1 year 1 year flows 2010
ThL TR Thx TR T T
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HKS" 000 HKS"000
“E-%F 2010
EAREER Trust receipt loans 121,685 122,947 9,519 - 254151 253,541
RARTHE Short-term bank borrowings 11,391 12,556 8,700 - 32,647 32,600
REBTRE Long-term bank borrowings
-E& - fixed-rate 3,900 5,268 102,965 30,792 142,925 135,920
-58 - variable-rate 5743 3,983 4,702 9,749 27T 23,466
142,719 144,754 125,886 40,541 453,900 445,527
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HE_Z——F+_-_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December, 2011

6. BT E(£EZ) 6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
. HBIEZATE .

MBEEMIBREZAFE

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair values of financial assets and

financial liabilities are determined as follows:

130

T T AEE ¢
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iE

BEHZMBRERZA
FED2RRAFRA
EBLRSTUE 2 &
AmEE (MERSE
B H2REEHETT
et BB RALEER
ERELTAEBRZE
BRA &R AR AR
RIB LT P UER 2 A
EH B (e B E
FHEH AT S+ &

Hit B EERMBA
BEZ A FERERRR
AEBEEMER 5 ZER
EREERE AARBRR
EREDMZARERE

CECE

the fair values of available-for-sale
investments (investment savings plan)

are disclosed in note 23(a);

the fair values of financial assets
and financial liabilities with standard
terms and conditions and traded on
active liquid markets are determined
with reference to quoted market bid

and ask prices respectively;

the fair values of financial guarantees
issued is determined by reference
to fees charged in an arm’s length
transaction for similar services, when
such information is obtainable, or
is otherwise estimated by reference
to interest rate differentials, by
comparing the actual rates charged
by lenders when the guarantee is
made available with the estimated
rates that lenders would have
charged, had the guarantees not
been available, where reliable
estimates of such information can be

made; and

the fair value of other financial assets
and financial liabilities are determined
in accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on discounted
cash flow analysis using prices or
rates from observable current market

transactions as input.
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HEZZT——F+=ZA=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31st December, 2011

6. BIEIE(E)

C.

BB TRZDFEE)
ARBEERR REAWH
R B R IR AR B B 2 BT 7
BEMIBGABZREERA
NFEREE -

TERHFINRV T ERERAT
B ECWBIAEZN &
AVPEZAHEREESRE —

A — A~ .
EE=5H

. E-ERAFEFERE
REREERBENE
BMi5 2 HE CRER

B)iE
.« E-ZEATEHER

BREEXBBZEE (A
B%) k& (BRER
AEE) BRE AR
(F—SHFtEMA®RE
BROMNETE R

E=FRATEFEH
BRYFREATBRED
BREBESHZEERE
B ABE (TABRE
ABIB) 2 B E M Er

=
E-°

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

C.

Fair value of financial instruments (continued)

The directors of the Company consider that
the carrying amounts of financial assets and
financial liabilities recorded at amortised
cost in the consolidated financial statements

approximate their respective fair values.

Fair value measurements recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis
of financial instruments that are measured
subsequent to initial recognition at fair
value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on

the degree to which fair value is observable:

. Level 1 fair value measurements are
those derived from quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for

identical assets or liabilities;

o Level 2 fair value measurements are
those derived from inputs other than
quoted prices included within Level
1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices)
or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices);

and

o Level 3 fair value measurements
are those derived from valuation
techniques that include inputs for the
asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable

inputs).
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HEZZT——F+-_A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31st December, 2011

6. HMEIE(E) 6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
C. B TR NFEE(E) C. Fair value of financial instruments (continued)
ERERE B MR PR Fair value measurements recognised in the
NFEFZE(E) consolidated statement of financial position
(continued)
*%8
The Group

R-ZEB——%+=-A=+-H

As at 31st December, 2011
F-%H H-EZR EZER nE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
TER TER TER TER
HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000

MEEE Financial assets
RAVEFAESR At FVTPL
~HEEERE - Held-for-trading investments 1,178 3,695 - 4,873
AHEERE Available-for-sale investments
~-RERENEZ - Unlisted investment in an
FLmRE investment savings plan - 13,580 - 13,580
a% Total 1,178 17,275 - 18,453
piNSE
The Group
R-E—ZTF+-A=+—H
As at 31st December, 2010
F-5H F-F E=E ek
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FTET FTET FTET TET
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
MEEE Financial assets
RAVEFAESR At FVTPL
~FEEERE - Held-for-trading investments 1,972 - - 1,972
~HtHBEE - Other financial assets - 377 - 377
AREERE Available-for-sale investments
~-RERENEZ - Unlisted investment in an
ELETHRE investment savings plan - 17,681 - 17,681
% Total 1,972 18,058 - 20,030
BEe-—E——ER-_ET-—TE+ A During the years ended 31st December, 2011 and
S —HIEE S-EZHERE-Z 2010, there were no transfers between instruments
BT AW S A @ o in Level 1 and Level 2.
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AEBZTZEBRARREESR
REMm DHEGEBHBER 2
HEMEF R EREM A MRE
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WA RBEHEEmRERERE
itE EAEWEH&&F’?H&Z%’(% CE P
EMREE - TR EEERRE 2R
A e DATZ%;ZK%@ZKiFEWEZDW:

EZT——F+ZA=1+—HIEFE For the year ended 31st December, 2011

REVENUE

The principal activities of the Group are printing
and manufacturing of packaging products,
distribution of television business-related
products, distribution of other electronic and
related products, and design, development and
sale of integrated circuits. As described in note
11, the operations of design, development and
sale of integrated circuits have been classified as

discontinued operation during the year.

Revenue represents the amounts received and
receivable for goods sold by the Group at invoiced
value, net of returns, discounts and sales related
tax, during the year. The following is an analysis of

the Group’s revenue for the year:

—E2-—F Z—ZT-FTF
2011 2010
FTEx T T
HK$' 000 HK$' 000
HEE M WE Revenue from sale of goods

—RERBERKEED — from continuing operations 1,940,599 2,013,550

—REBRIEEEER — from discontinued operation
(Krat11) (note 11) 59,134 61,574
1,999,733 2,075,124

EHRIBZEMMRBETZRED
1 - 2RI 5ES ©

See note 8 for an analysis of revenue by major

products and services.
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management has determined the operating
segments based on the reports reviewed by the
executive directors that are used to make strategic
decisions. The Group’s operating businesses are
structured and managed separately according to
the nature of their operations and the products and
services they provide. Each of the Group’s operating
segments represents a strategic business unit that
offers products and services which are subject to
risks and returns that are different from those of

other operating segments.

The Group is currently organised into three main
operating segments for continuing operations-
printing and manufacturing of packaging products,
distribution of television business-related products
and distribution of other electronic and related
products. In the current year, the Group’s design,
development and sale of integrated circuits
operating segment was classified as discontinued
operation. The comparative figures have been
re-presented to segregate the disclosure of the
continuing operations and the discontinued

operation.

The accounting policies of the reportable segments
are the same as the Group's accounting policies
described in note 3. Segment revenue represents
the revenue generated by each operating segment.
Inter-segment revenue represents inter-segment
sales which were transacted with reference to the
selling prices used for sales made to third parties at

the then prevailing market prices.
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ZE——F+ZA=+—HIFE For the year ended 31st December, 2011

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment results represents the profit earned
by each operating segment without allocation
of central administration expenses (unallocated
corporate expenses), investment and other income,
finance costs, and income tax expense. This is the
measure reported to the chief operating decision
maker for the purposes of resource allocation and

assessment of segment performance.

For the purposes of monitoring segment
performance and allocating resources between

segments:

- all assets are allocated to reportable
segments other than available-for-sale
investments, held-for-trading investments,
other financial assets, current and deferred
tax assets and unallocated corporate
assets. Goodwill is allocated to the relevant
reportable segments as described in note 20;

and

- all liabilities are allocated to reportable
segments other than borrowings, obligation
under finance lease, current and deferred
tax liabilities, and unallocated corporate

liabilities.
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HE-ZT——F+-_A=+—HIEE Forthe year ended 31st December, 2011
8. IDEEHR(£E) 8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
BE-Z——F+=-HA=1+—HLHFE For the year ended 31st December, 2011
FEEEER BRILREER
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
pix AHHL &5
DRREE ERER ETR L EHR A58
BEER REER REER BE HERHE a5
Design,
Distribution ~ Distribution development
Printing and  of television of other and
manufacturing ~ business-  electronic sale of The
of packaging related  and related integrated Group
products products products Total circuits total
ThR TER TR TR TiEn TR
HK$' 000 HKS" 000 HKS" 000 HKS" 000 HK$" 000 HKS" 000
TENHREE Segment revenues and results
PENE SEGMENT REVENUE
THRE NG Reportable segment revenue 709,392 9,618 1142574 1,944,584 59134 2,003,718
PERRENHE Elimination of inter-segment revenue - - (3,985) (3,985) - (3,985)
GakE Consolidated revenue 709,392 92,618 1,138,589 1,940,599 59,134 1,999,733
PERE SEGMENT RESULTS
AHEZAEER/ (BE)  Reportable segment profitfloss) 142,250 (20412) 18,438 140276 13,531 153,807
HMEKA Interest income 3,775 3 3,778
BIEEEREZATE Fair value loss on held-for-
FE trading investments (799) - (799)
AEHEREZRERER  Impairment loss on avalable-
for-sale investments (1.972) - (1.972)
HbSBEECATE  Fairvalue gainon
W other financial assets 1,900 - 1,900
BREZEZHERL  (mpaiment loss)freversal of
ARERES 4R impaiment loss on trade and
BRFEHESR)/  other receivables from third
BEBEEE parties, deposits and prepayment (3.227) 17 (3,210
FAEZLERY Unallocated corporate expenses (21,494) - (21,494)
AL Finance costs (21,186) ) (21,195)
BB AR Profit before tax 97,273 13,542 110,815
FERRY Income tax expenses (21,03) (2,29) (23,324)
RERRM Profit for the year 76,241 11,250 87,491
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HE-_Z——F+-_A=+—HLLFE

For the year ended 31st December, 2011

DEER (&) 8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
BE-_E——&+-HA=+—HLEE For the year ended 31st December, 2011
(#&) (continued)
FEREER BRIEBEEE
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
pix: ARHEM &5
ARREE ERER ETR L EHR A5E
BRER RBER RBER BE  HER#E ag
Design,
Distribution ~ Distribution development
Printing and ~ of television of other and
manufacturing business- electronic sale of The
of packaging related  and related integrated Group
products products products Total circuits total
TEn Tin Tin Tin TiEn Tin
HK$' 000 HKS" 000 HKS" 000 HKS" 000 HK$" 000 HKS" 000
7 Segment assets and liabilities
PREE SEGMENT ASSETS
TRE A REE Reportable segment assets 1,172,112 88,139 446,838 1,707,089 49299 1,756,388
EHELE Available-for-sale investments 21,183 - 21,183
EREHBEE Deferred tax assets 129 - 129
ThEHE Tax recoverable 15 . 15
BIEEERE Held-for-trading investments 4,873 - 4,873
KPR 2EE Unallocated corporate assets 10,878 - 10,878
GaBiE Consolidated total assets 1,744,167 49299 1,793466
ARER SEGMENT LIABILITIES
BEcrat]E Reportable segment liabilities 151,679 24,045 41,604 217,528 3293 220,821
ERiEgk Deferred tax liabilties 38917 - 38917
HEAR Tax liabilities 14,838 - 14,838
& Borrowings 561,305 - 561,305
REREEM Obligation under finance lease 1338 - 1338
Aok LEEE Unallocated corporate liabilities 2128 - 2128
Falak Consolidated total liabilties 836,054 3293 839,347
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HEZZT——F+-_A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31st December, 2011

8. DHEER (&) 8.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
BE-_E——&+-HA=+—HLEE For the year ended 31st December, 2011
(#&) (continued)
REGERY BALEEER
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
M REER L1
DRRLE  EEER E7R HEHE 55E
BkER  RBER  RBER 8% FEREE  LREE 1
Design,
Distribution Distribution development
Printing and ~ of television of other and
manufacturing ~ business-  electronic sale of The
of packaging related  and related integrated  Corporate Group
products products products Total (ircuits level Total
TEn Tén TE7 TER TE7 TEL Thn
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS' 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
7 EEH OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION
ETRRR Capital expenditure 21,592 1,05 - 2411 2147 70 25 464
g BERREINE  Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment 49,707 317 - 50,024 1,255 1,067 52,346
BAREM AR Amortisation of prepaid
lease payments 613 - - 613 - - 613
EhE=ZE550 Impairment loss/reversa
REMENES T2 of impairment loss) on trade and
RERRBZAEEE/  other eceivables from third
(HEEBRD) parties, deposits and
Prepayments 20 2987 - 327 (17) - 3210
hENE HERDE Loss on disposalof property,
BE plant and equipment % - - % - 6 299
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HE-Z——%+-A=+—HIEE For the year ended 31st December, 2011

DHEER (& 8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
BE-_E-=EFEF+-BA=+—HLEE For the year ended 31st December, 2010
RRESEH RESIE
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
E PR £5
PhlREE EREH 51k Rk 158
BREm BBER BHER 28 FEREE 28
Design,
Distribution ~ Distribution development
Printingand ~ of television of other and
manufacturing business- electronic sale of The
of packaging related  and related integrated Group
products products products Total circuits total
AL TEL TAL TAx AL AL
HKS$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HKS$' 000 HK$' 000
Segment revenues and results
AENE SEGMENT REVENUE
ARE ARG Reportable segment revenue 602,904 513,044 904904 2,020,852 61574 2,082,426
PEERENE Elimination of
inter-segment revenue - - (7,302) (7.302) - (7.302)
Gaka Consolidated revenue 602,904 513,044 897,602 2,013,550 61,574 2,075,124
TEER SEGMENT RESULTS
BEEyHE Reportable seqment profit 103,147 11,240 10,699 125,086 21,183 146,269
FEHMA Interest income 5,005 - 5,005
BIEEEREZATE  Fair valueloss on held-for-trading
BR investments (1319) - (1319)
AMEBEECATE  Fairvalue gainon
& other financial assets 2,225 - 2,225
N WAL b Unallocated corporate expenses (14,83) (2,855) (17,138)
BARA Finance costs (16,169) (66) (16,235)
BRATEH Profit before tax 100,545 18,262 118,807
FERAY Income tax expenses (25,024) (3,134) (28,158)
TEFET Profit for the year 75,51 15,128 90,649

Kith Holdings Limited

139



AR B M
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HEZZT——F+-_A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31st December, 2011

8. DHEEMR (& 8.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
BE-_ZE-—-ZTF+-BA=+—HILEFE For the year ended 31st December, 2010
(#&) (continued)
REEEXH BALLEERH
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
M AEEM &
DekeE  EREH ER) ERLEER K%H
BEEm HBEm HBER B8 RER¥E %8
Design,
Distribution ~ Distribution development
Printing and ~~ of television of other and
manufacturing business- electronic sale of The
of packaging related  and related integrated Group
products products products Total circuits total

TET TET TEL TEL TEL TEL
HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

Segment assets and liabilities

PEEE SEGMENT ASSETS

IRE A BEE Reportable segment assets 1,122,526 185,478 2,002 1,580,226 35608 1,615,834
IEHERE Available-for-sale investments 25,284 - 25,284
EREHBEAE Deferred tax assets 123 - 123
BEEERE Held-for-traing investments 1972 - 1972
EHEKREE Other financial assets 377 - 377
Aok LEAE Unallocated corporate assets 6,459 - 6,459
GhlEE Consolidated total assets 1,614,441 35,608 1,650,049
AEER SEGMENT LIABILITIES

BECrEt]E Reportable segment liabilities 122,581 93,950 44,324 260,855 2,590 263,445
EXEHBAE Deferred tax liabilities 43,380 389 43,769
fiEgk Tax liabilities 10,335 2,359 12,694
B8 Borrowings 446,820 3,991 450,811
RERMEEML Obligation under finance lease 1,744 - 1,744
LA (3L Unallocated corporate liabilities 2,045 - 2,045
GRBAE Consolidated total liabilities 765,379 9,329 774,708
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HE-_Z——F+-_A=+—HLLFE

For the year ended 31st December, 2011

DHEER (& 8.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
BE-_E-=EFEF+-BA=+—HLEE For the year ended 31st December, 2010
(#&) (continued)
REREER RESIEEES
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
o 2Bk &
DRREE  EEER g1k HiEaR R5E
BREn  EBEm  HBEn 8% FRRME  (RER g
Design,
Distribution ~ Distribution development
Printingand ~~ of television of other and
manufacturing business- ~ electronic sl of The
of packaging related  and related integrated ~ Corporate Group
products products products Total dircuits level Total
TEn TR TEn TR TEn TEn TEn
HK$" 000 HKS' 000 HKS'000 HK$' 000 HK$" 000 HK$' 000 HK$" 000
EfHBEH OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION
ERHRAY Capital expenditure 48,661 58 - 19,189 211 18 51404
0% BERXEIAE  Deprecition of property
plant and equipment 41315 18 - 4139 1,106 1,301 43,800
BRRENT ER Amortisation of prepaid
lease payments 613 - - 613 - - 613
EREZEE5EIR Impaiment lossreversa
EfEYER 2R of impairment loss) on trade and
BfifEREER/ other receivabls from third
(AEFERE) parties, deposis and
prepayments 104 6 167 7 (19 - 258
FHAERRENEZ-H  Impaimentloss on assets of
MELTAEZREEE  asubsidry previously
classified as held for sale 8759 - - 8759 - - 8759
NE BERZEZAE  Impaiment loss on property
BE plant and equipment 11,861 5 - 12,383 383 1 12,767
HEnE BERREZ  Loss on disposal of property
BE plant and equipment 886 - - 886 - - 886
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HEZZT——F+-_A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31st December, 2011

8. DHEER (&) 8.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
TEEFEHR INFORMATION ABOUT MAJOR CUSTOMERS
HETEPZWZEAERKAH The Group’s sales to customers which accounted for
FHER S X 2 B 10%5IA 10% or more of its total revenue from continuing
E2EPIAT operations are as follows:

—E——-F5 ZZZET-ZF

2011 2010
FERT FET
HK$’'000 HK$' 000
EPA Customer A FEA N/A 346,511
ZFB Customer B 266,888 237,970
BPC Customer C 207,961 229,009
EFD Customer D 212,483  TiE M N/A?
1 HESAETZ R SEREE 1 The transaction with customer A did not account
e T——®+-_/F=+— for more than 10% of the total sales of the Group
AL EELANEETTI0% ° for the year ended 31st December, 2011.
2 HEEDEITZRSERER 2 The transaction with customer D did not account
HEe—T—TH+—-_A=+— for more than 10% of the total sales of the Group
B EEREEETT10% © for the year ended 31st December, 2010.
MEFEEARBDRIBE SRS The sales to customers A and B are included in
EHREBHEBE R 2D B KL the segment of distribution of television business-
FIREEREESR DM & related products and the segment of printing and
FEBECERDBER ﬁﬁ/ﬁ\@?ﬁj manufacturing of packaging products, respectively.
LHEEBERZDE- The sales to customers C and D are included in

the segment of distribution of other electronic and

related products.
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HEZZT——F+=ZA=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31st December, 2011

DEER (&)

Hh 15 & B
AEEZHBELEEBUNES
BREMBERE ([EE]) KRE
BRIEEEBURES - BRI RE
EOEEREPHET  DHERE
BHEBEMEETEREBRET - DH
HihEF RAARE MDA REKE R
et FBRREEIEERERTH
Hfth 7T - B 2MEHULE - T
BERIBBHERRIEREFAEZ M
HES  FRBDEEZHHULE - 10
M RERRERBREECTRA
Bl EZEEZERMBE S - nET
EXNTHEEDSE  WERRE ]
RIEENEBEZ DRE S - AEBIZIH
BEFMEZ IS D 2 KEFERL
EEBRERIKEEB 2 RERE
REREEMEMENEE D ZIER
BEEEREINWT

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION

The Group’s continuing operations are located
in Hong Kong, the PRC and the United States
of America (the "USA") and its discontinued
operation is located in Hong Kong. Printing and
manufacturing of packaging products are carried
out in the PRC. Distribution of television business-
related products is carried out in Hong Kong and
the USA. Distribution of other electronic and
related products and design, development and
sale of integrated circuits are mainly carried out
in Hong Kong and other parts of the PRC. The
geographical location of customers is based on the
location of the customers, irrespective of the origin
of the goods or service. The geographical location
of the non-current assets is based on the physical
location of the asset, in the case of property,
plant and equipment and prepaid lease payments,
and the location of the operation to which they
are allocated, in the case of deposits paid for
acquisition of property, plant and equipment. The
Group’s revenue from continuing operations and
discontinued operation from external customers
by geographical location of the customers and
information about its non-current assets by
geographical location of the assets are set out

below:
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HE-_Z—F+-_A=+—HLLFE

8. HNEEM(E)
i E R (&)

For the year ended 31st December, 2011

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION (continued)

S EF RS FREBEE(M:T)
Revenue from Non-current assets
external customers (Note)
—B--f —T-%TF —8--F —T-TF
2011 2010 2011 2010
FTHET THET THET THET
HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$' 000
(E71) (&%)
(restated) (restated)
HEREER Continuing operations
BB (L) Hong Kong
(place of domicile) 164,660 190,470 4,649 5,025
o B A &R ) Other parts of the PRC 1,683,672 1,299,793 629,451 658,837
E & USA 92,267 522,260 1,272 507
Hity Others - 1,027 - -
1,940,599 2,013,550 635,372 664,419
DRI REEK Discontinued operation
BB (CETH) Hong Kong
(place of domicile) 17,965 27,315 - 5,245
o B E A ER 1 Other parts of the PRC 31,292 33,910 = -
HAt Others 9,877 349 - -
59,134 61,574 — 5,245
1,999,733 2,075,124 635,372 669,664

Wit FERDEETEFEAHEERER
BERBEE -N_FT——%F 3
RBEBEETTEEIBRBIELE

ZBERERER

EBZEE -

Annual Report 2011
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Non-current assets exclude available-for-sale

investments and deferred tax assets. For 2011,

non-current assets also exclude those relating

to design, development and sale of integrated
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011

A& AN 9.  FINANCE COSTS
—E-—-F —"ZT-ZF
2011 2010
TER FHET
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
(&%)
(restated)
BEKEER: Continuing operations:
FEETFE Interest on:
BERAFAEH Bank borrowings wholly repayable
BEZRITEE within five years 16,029 14,440
BRAFRNEHY Other loan wholly repayable
EEZEMER within five years 5,058 1,644
BEMHE Finance lease 99 85
21,186 16,169
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HEZZT——F+-_A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31st December, 2011

10. FrEBixXH 10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
RERBERZAEHXEH Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss
=E2-——-F C"Z-TF
2011 2010
FERT FHET
HK$'000 HK$' 000
(&%)
(restated)
FEREER Continuing operations:
BNEARR I8 - Current tax:
EENEN Hong Kong Profits Tax 3,325 3,819
FREEMBH PRC Enterprise Income Tax 22,155 17,513
Hh rDE# R Other jurisdictions 17 55
25,497 21,387
RBEFEEEDR Underprovision in prior years:
EEMEN Hong Kong Profits Tax - 170
- 170
EERE (B R) FHxZ Deferred tax (credit)/charge
(B15#35) (note 35):
KFEE Current year (4,465) 3,467
ERABELEEBR Total income tax expense recognised
BamERZER in profit or loss relating
S H B EE to continuing operations 21,032 25,024
W AE 2 B R B R T iR BT E R Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
SR LARE &16.5%E1 8 estimated assessable profit for both years.
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10.

HEZZT——F+=ZA=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31st December, 2011

Frg®i< i ()
BIEREARKMECEFAEHRBEA
(TR EFEBOR) REEFERZ
BN AAAZETREMBA
AzBMEE-EENF-A—BEA
25% ©

BREPEBBEORBRO  AAFZ
—HTENE AR ERECEERK 2 E
187 | 5 [E A 51 W 4 1A A JE A R A
FECEMSEE R =FRIE¥rE
BEBMNPBECEMEH (R2H
H)) - ZMBARTZERERE
HEZT—Z—FHRER -

AAvlz —HHBNBEARZEmER
BENRARAR (Z2mEEH]) 2R
RN _ZZTEFER -BA_ZET
—F EMBBEESEARA
HARELERMECE] 2 — W&
AP BEEECEMEHNE15%%
R -BEE2_2FR&+=_A=+—H
e R BEBEEMHERERHZ
HX - EEEERESFERRA I
HEIINERERE |2 — o it - T
BimrEEREPREELEMGR
K15%RFE o

FEHMBDAERES 2R IAZAR A
B ERMBRGH -

10.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China
on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law"”) and
Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax
rate for certain PRC subsidiaries of the Company is

25% from 1st January, 2008 onwards.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in
the PRC, one of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries is
exempted from PRC Enterprise Income Tax for two
years starting from their first profit-making year
followed by a 50% reduction for the next three
years (the “Tax Holiday"”). That subsidiary is entitled
to enjoy the Tax Holiday until it is expired in 2012.

The Tax Holiday for Yunnan Qiaotong Package
Printing Company Limited (“Yunnan Qiaotong”), a
PRC subsidiary of the Company, expired in 2000.
Starting from 2001, Yunnan Qiaotong is classified
as one of the approved “Advanced Technology
Enterprise with Foreign Investment #MEIRE %
ERMAID %" and is entitled to a preferential
PRC Enterprise Income Tax rate of 15% up to
31st December, 2005. However, pursuant to an
approval received from local tax authorities, Yunnan
Qiaotong is classified as one of the approved
“Enterprise with Foreign Investment in the Central
and Western Regions FPHEib@INE IR E D E".
Accordingly, Yunnan Qiaotong continues to be
entitled to a preferential PRC Enterprise Income Tax
rate of 15%.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at

the rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.
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10. FRBEMZH (A2) 10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)
FR-AERTETEGEAEKRFERT The income tax expense for the year can be
KEAEER LR 7 B AR T R reconciled to the profit before tax from continuing
mr operations per the consolidated income statement
as follows:

—g-—F <-T-TF

2011 2010
FEx FHET
HK$' 000 HK$’ 000
(&%)
(restated)
REFHEREEBLZ Profit before tax from continuing
B 5 Al g ) operations 97,273 100,545
LB AT E25% Income tax expense calculated at the
T —FF :25%) domestic tax rate of 25% (2010: 25%)
?“Zﬁﬁ S/ H 24,318 25,136
BIART W s 2 7% Tax effect of income not taxable for
wa tax purpose (3,859) (2,618)
A HFAE 2 Tax effect of expenses not deductible
MBee for tax purpose 5,881 10,560
KHERBABEZFG  Tax effect of tax losses not recognised
Ta 14,096 1,473
BRYPEHBARFKGE  Effect of tax exemptions/relief granted
W,/ BETE to PRC subsidiaries (13,774) (11,854)
B AR R ERTIE Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses
BiEsHBTE previously not recognised - (280)
A E Ath RA R [ AL Tax effect of different tax rates of
== N P S subsidiaries operating in other jurisdictions
ERIMBRE (5,835) 2,220
BAEFEBETR Underprovision in respect of prior years = 170
B BT 2 IEERLIE  Deferred tax charge on dividend
X i withholding tax 205 217
REZANERZFEH  Income tax expense recognised
S (ERFELE in profit or loss (relating
¥%B@) to continuing operations) 21,032 25,024
HRAEE & Exﬂﬁ"‘?l & The domestic tax rate in the PRC is used for the
b T -——FH_T-TF 2011 and 2010 reconciliations above as it is where
HEDIERPREBE AR ERGTE - the operation of the Group is substantially based.
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11.

HE-Z——%+-A=+—HIEE For the year ended 31st December, 2011

REY =D 10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)
EREMEHKEERZMER Income tax recognised in other comprehensive
income

—E——-F5 Z—ZT-ZTF

2011 2010
THERT FET
HK$’'000 HK$' 000
PEIEFRIE (1 7£35) Deferred tax (note 35)
EEMEE - HER Arising on revaluation of property,
BB EE plant and equipment = 3,315
EREMEEKRER Total income tax recognised in other
Z it comprehensive income - 3,315
ORI T 11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION
ERXN BT ERAN EHASIKSE During the year, the Stock Exchange granted the
Hoe pIRBER —_E——&F—A+H In Principle Approval on the Spin-off. Upon the
kg ZEBREZESR 2R completion of the Spin-off on 19th January, 2012,
F52.01% 8k 58 £39.01% @ 17 & B A the Group’s interest in Megalogic Holdings has been
EBLXEHRASR 245 - REl diluted from 52.01% to 39.01% and resulted in
SERASFSESEEREARETHEES losing control of Megalogic Holdings, Megalogic
AR MEABA NTHE - Holdings has been deconsolidated from the date

of the completion of the Spin-off and has been

accounted for as an associated company since then.

HE-—E——&+-_A=+—HII&F The results of the operations in design,
B ERTERZES BERREy development and sale of integrated circuits for the
RSB A AR E  HAWMT - year ended 31st December, 2011 which have been
KREDRIEELEBL SN MNRERE included in the consolidated income statement are
ZHBBFEEHNZS U AFR set out below. The comparative profit and cash
DIEADKRIMHELER 8T o flows from discontinued operation have been re-

presented to include those operations classified as

discontinued in the current year.
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HE-_Z—F+-_A=+—HLLFE

11. BRIEEEER(E)

For the year ended 31st December, 2011

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION

(continued)
=25 Z—T-ITF
2011 2010
THEx T T
HK$’' 000 HK$' 000
ERIEREEKZ Profit for the year from
REERF discontinued operation
Wz Revenue 59,134 61,574
8 & A A Cost of sales (36,008) (39,797)
EF Gross profit 23,126 21,777
H At e A Other income 3 4,491
D REERY Distribution and selling expenses (657) (827)
THRAX Administrative expenses (8,921) (6,730)
ME BERREZ Impairment loss on property, plant
BIERE and equipment = (383)
B& KA Finance costs 9) (66)
B 5 A g A Profit before tax 13,542 18,262
Frigfis h Income tax expense (2,292) (3,134)
ERIEGEEBR Profit for the year from
REE A discontinued operation 11,250 15,128
THALERE LI Profit for the year from discontinued
BEBCERFERH operation attributable to:
RRATEEB A Owners of the Company 5,845 9,634
IS Non-controlling interests 5,405 5,494
11,250 15,128
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CRIEEEER (&)

HE-Z——%+-A=+—HIEE For the year ended 31st December, 2011

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION

(continued)

=25 Z—T-ITF
2011 2010
FHT FAT
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000

RECKRILRBEEK 2 Cash flows from discontinued

HeRE operation

s EB) (FTEA),/FTS  Net cash (used in)/from operating
ZHEFE activities (1,819) 3,279
REEESEEA 2R S FE Net cash used in investing activities (2,144) (2,117)
MEEBAEZEEF5  Net cash from financing activities 5,699 3,727
WERAFER Net cash inflow 1,736 4,889

ERIEREEBZAFERNC

Profit for the year from discontinued operation

Mk (G A) - has been arrived at after charging/(crediting) the
followings:
=F——-F ZT-TF
2011 2010
FTEx FHT
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
e EANEMEF Staff salaries, bonus and other benefits 4,630 3,273
RIKAR B ET &K Retirement benefits scheme contributions 134 112
B TR Total staff costs including directors’

(BIEEEM2) emoluments 4,764 3,385
ZERTBN & Auditor’s remuneration 400 90
EHR/—HEXLZ Cost of inventories recognised as

FERAR an expense 36,008 39,797
M HRRR Depreciation of property, plant and

ZIE equipment

—BHEBEE — owned assets 1,255 1,106
SNPE S 1B E RR Net foreign exchange loss 37 12
T REBFRERE Operating lease rentals in respect

He of land and buildings 370 370
|ITHE WA Bank interest income (3) -

RoE——F+=A=+—ARRE
BEHARZ AR R A M (DB AR
2 0 2) RE(E BUA K531 -

The carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
relating to Megalogic Holdings which have been
classified as a disposal group held for sale as at 31st
December, 2011 are set out in note 31.
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12. BHEBEREEB 2AFERH 12. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM

CONTINUING OPERATIONS

152

—E2-—-F Z—ZT-FF

2011 2010

FTHEx T T

HK$’000 HK$’ 000

(E3))

(restated)
REREXEB 2AFE Profit for the year from continuing

w AN E kR operations has been arrived at after
charging:

o JEAL R H MR F Salaries, bonus and other benefits 115,535 89,551

RIREFIET B Retirement benefits scheme contributions 8,207 6,364
=N Total staff costs including directors’

(BREEHS) emoluments 123,742 95,915
% EED Bl & Auditor’s remuneration 1,800 1,740
I EI 2 Y Depreciation of property, plant and

ZIE equipment

-—BEEE - owned assets 50,447 42,024

—LmEMRERB — assets held under finance leases

ZEE 644 670
TERHEENR #H Amortisation of prepaid lease payments 613 613
LEYE  HER Loss on disposal of property, plant and

B PA E equipment 299 886
Tt 72 K B A AR Research and development costs

(BErtATTEHAX) (included in administrative expenses) 13,847 7,861
ERA—HEILZ Cost of inventories recognised as

FERA an expense 1,694,851 1,764,112
kgt AN (BEBER and after crediting

HAapug A) ¢ (included in other income):

FIEEEREZRE Dividend income from held-for-trading

A investments 11) (3)
EREHERZFE Interest income on short-term loans

WA receivable (3,444) (4,843)
ERITF B U A Bank interest income (331) (162)
BB WA (BT 7E) Compensation income (note) (12,406) -
HNE WY 25 F BB Net foreign exchange gain (667) (421)
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12.

HE-Z——%+-A=+—HIEE For the year ended 31st December, 2011

BEE SR N FERA
(#)
EE

BE-—HREREAQRAMENEA
AR-ZZ—EFLA+NBFFRITY
Z2Wa HEMRE  WERREX
BBRHEREE (TEEKED -
HegM2@ARZHNER 2 AE
EmfEtBEE BE-_T——F+=
A=+—BLFE HEFMRABZRIE
BEERME - mARQRK B AR TiEB
HiERE X 2 3H RERDE @

ERMEREABENK  €8AAR
12,406,000/ 7T °

—

12.

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM
CONTINUING OPERATIONS (continued)
Note:

Pursuant to an agreement dated on 19th
July, 2010 between a manufacturer and two
subsidiaries of the Company, the manufacturer
agrees to compensate all goods returned during
the 12-month warranty period if the actual
goods returned rate exceeds the agreed goods
returned rate (the “Compensation Condition”).
During the year ended 31st December, 2011, the
manufacturer agreed to pay the excess portion over
the agreed goods returned rate and the relevant
charges directly attributable to the goods returned
according to the Compensation Condition, which
amounts to approximately HK$12,406,000, to
a subsidiary of the Company as compensation

payment.
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13. ESME 13. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
OfRENTFAE (ZZE—FF  +— The emoluments paid or payable to each of the
ZIESEZMEnmT - nine (2010: eleven) directors were as follows:

E--F FEE EOW  HEE  ZRC BY  IRE  IRR RER EME ARE BeE 4
2011 Hui King Yau Chau Li Ng Chi  Tam Yuk
Chun, Min,  HuiBin  Chun Wang ~ Wang  Yeung,  Sang, Holok LiuKam

Andrew Paul Long Ren Zhoulin FengWu GuangYu  Simon  Sammy Cheong  Llung  Total
TEn TEr TEn TEn TErn TEr TEn TEmn TEn  TEr  TEn  TEn
HKS'000  HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000

ik Fees - - 150 NA 108 108 NA 150 150 150 100 916
s Other emoluments:

MR AR Salaries and other benefits 933 1,00 - NIA 254 134 NIA - - - 81 2404

BINETIFEES  Retirement benefits

scheme contributions 12 1 - /A - - /A - - - 4 28
fiEE Total emoluments 945 1,014 150 N/A 362 W NA 150 150 150 185 3348
Z3-%F BEE ROW HE®  FEC O FY  IBE  IRF  RER O EME  [{4E BEE 4
2010 HuiKing  Yau Chau Li Ng Chi Tam Yuk
Chun, M, HuiBin  Chun Wang ~ Wang ~ Yeung,  Sang,  Holok LiuKam

Andrew Paul Long Ren  Zhoulin  FengWu GuangYu ~ Simon  Sammy  Cheong Lung Total
TEr TEr  TEr  TEr TEn TEn TEr  TEr  TAr  TEn TR TEn
HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000

ik Fees - - 150 108 108 108 108 150 150 150 AU 1,056
s Other emoluments:
MR EMEH Salaries and other benefits 81 951 - 69 234 69 9 - - - -3
FEASEMET  Retirement benefits
scheme contributions 12 12 - - - - - - - - - U
fiEE Total emoluments 833 963 150 17 R 177 17 150 150 150 2 3233
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HE-Z——%+-A=+—HIEE For the year ended 31st December, 2011

EEM < 14. EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS
TAREBERUESME 2 ALTH M Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments
N(ZE—ZFF WA BARAIE in the Group, two (2010: two) were directors of the
E£-HEMEFBIEN EXHFEI3Z Company whose emoluments are included in the
WRERAN B T=(f(ZE—TF: disclosures in note 13 above. The emoluments of
=) zMEmT the remaining three (2010: three) were as follows:
—E-—F ZZT-FF
2011 2010
TERT FAT
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
e MHMEF Salaries and other benefits 3,512 2,483
)15 Ko 5= 38 1 4 Discretionary and performance related
BT K incentive payments 250 130
RARAE FIET B B3R Retirement benefits scheme contributions 24 24
3,786 2,637
BT T 5 EE The emoluments were within the following bands:
BT A"
Number of employees
—EB-——-F —ZE-ZF
2011 2010
T HBiE1,000,00078 7T Not exceeding HK$1,000,000 1 3
1,000,000/ 7T A H18 Exceeding HK$1,000,000 but not
T FBiE1,500,00078 7T exceeding HK$ 1,500,000 1 -
1,500,000/ T LA 18 Exceeding HK$1,500,000 but not
T H83E2,000,00058 7T exceeding HK$2,000,000 1 -

A=Z+—RALEE AEEHERRL
UEmMez AL (BREES) XM
M EREFMBENEEZEZR -
HREBLZEE - BE-T
——HEk_T-FEF+_HA=1+—H
LHFE HEESHEREAME -

During the years ended 31st December, 2011 and
2010, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to the five highest paid individuals, including
directors, as an inducement to join the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. In addition, during
the years ended 31st December, 2011 and 2010, no

directors waived any emoluments.
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HEZZT——F+-_A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31st December, 2011

15. ARBHEBARGEER

KRABHEAEANEBERERFNBIEES
11,441,000 T (ZE —F F ¢
21,390,000/ 7T) B EAR R BIEBAR B
FERIE o

Ll SRR R BANE I 2 B0

15.

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF
THE COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to owners of
the Company includes a loss of HK$11,441,000
(2010: HK$21,390,000) which has been dealt with

in the financial statements of the Company.

Reconciliation of the above amount to the

Company’s profit for the year:

—B-—-F "—ZET-ZF
2011 2010
THER FHET
HKS$’ 000 HK$' 000
BRARA R Amount of loss attributable to equity
REFREE #Ea shareholders dealt with in the
I R FEAE B 1R Company'’s financial statements (11,441) (21,390)
REANIE RIREZ Dividends from subsidiaries
MIE QR EMG E—BfB  attributable to the profits for
FE RN RE the previous financial year,
approved and paid during the year 48,260 33,260
RRBAREEHFN Company's profit for the year (note 38)
(B1:£38) 36,819 11,870

Annual Report 2011
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HE_Z——F+-_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December, 2011
Rz B 16. DIVIDENDS
-5 —Z=-ZF
2011 2010
FERT FAT
HK$'000 HK$’ 000
FANERAEDIKT Dividends recognised as distribution to
RRRHEEAZKRE : owners of the Company during the
year:
—E——F2ENHH Interim dividend paid for 2011
& 8 — &2 3810 - HK2.3 cents
(ZZ—FF : 2.381) (2010: HK2.3 cents) per share 6,013 6,013
—_Z— gizaﬁﬁiﬁﬂ Final dividend paid for 2010
% 8 — & H8.48 1L - HK8.4 cents
(:Z@—%i : (2010: HK7.6 cents for 2009)
ZETNFZ27.6751) per share 21,962 19,870
27,975 25,883

RBERARZE  ARAESG ([E
EEEBRERE_T——F+=
A :Jr—EJtirt‘*ﬂiHHH“%%m
B (ZE-—ZF HE_ZT-ZTF
+ZA=+—HILFEZS. 4;’%%) '
A 24911,243,0008 L (ZE—ZF -

21,962,000/ 7T) » MEVHZARF AR R AE Bl
BROTZBRRBFREG LHER 7

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period,
final dividend in respect of the year ended 31st
December, 2011 of HK4.3 cents (2010: HK8.4
cents in respect of the year ended 31st December,
2010) per share amounting to approximately
HK$11,243,000 (2010: HK$21,962,000) have been
proposed by the board of directors of the Company
(the "Board”) and is subject to approval by the
shareholders in the forthcoming annual general

meeting.
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HEZZT——F+-_A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31st December, 2011

17. BREF 17. EARNINGS PER SHARE
REFELEETR From continuing operations
KRABHEAAZEBGERERNRE#E The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings
BRI E THEETE - per share attributable to owners of the Company is

based on the following data:

—F-—-fF C—ZT-FZF

2011 2010
TEx FHET
HK$' 000 HK$’000
R Earnings
ZAN/NSIE 2SN L) Profit for the year attributable to
R i A owners of the Company 35,070 55,775
B ARAEHEAR AR Less: Profit for the year attributable to
REFRBEKIE owners of the Company from
1B ZETE 2k A discontinued operation (5,845) (9,634)
RAUETEREBFE Earnings for the purposes of basic and
KRB GIRER diluted earnings per share from
DESERT 2 BT continuing operations 29,225 46,141
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17.

HE-Z——%+-A=+—HIEE For the year ended 31st December, 2011

BREBF (&)
REFEEE LY (F)

EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

From continuing operations (continued)

—E——F —ZZT—ZF
2011 2010
B EE Number of shares
RAATEERERK Weighted average number of ordinary
RN ERR shares for the purposes of basic and
hnHE 1 8 diluted earnings per share 261,453,600 261,453,600
EREAREFR GEN) Basic earnings per share (in HK cents) 11.18 17.65
FiEEAT CEWN) Diluted earnings per share (in HK cents) 11.18 17.65
E-E—TERKR-_FT——F For the years ended 31st December, 2010 and

T—HLEFREYELBLES
2 Tl E s Fit - %M
FEZERESTRNETHRERRRF

FEHORIEEEETR

BEALNGEEABRERFERE
B IE&E X% 2 % N/5,845,000/8
L (ZE—FF 1 9,634,000 T) % £
N ERERREERN 5 &5
H RECRIEEEEBZERER
FEERNAEGR2 23B W= —F
F: FR3.68%F) -

2011, diluted earnings per share is the same as the
basic earnings per share as there were no dilutive
potential ordinary shares in existence during both

years.

From discontinued operation

Basic and diluted earnings per share for the
discontinued operation is HK2.23 cents per share
(2010: HK3.68 cents per share), based on the profit
for the year attributable to owners of the Company
from discontinued operation of approximately
HK$5,845,000 (2010: HK$9,634,000) and the
denominators detailed above for both basic and

diluted earnings per share.
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HE-_Z—F+-_A=+—HLLFE

For the year ended 31st December, 2011

18. WIZE - HEBR 18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
KEEH
The Group
B BEREE B BOERE  HEIE @it
Plant and Motor Office Construction
Buildings  machinery vehicles  equipment i progress Total
ThL Th ThEL ThAL ThEL FhL
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
BRAGEE AT COST OR VALUATION
R-Z-ZF-f-H At 1st January, 2010 152,195 472,999 11,199 19,146 6,303 661,842
L] Currency realignment 5,570 17,858 239 556 687 24,910
RE Additions 903 22,498 1,664 3,167 23,192 51,424
REfmEL BT Adjustment arising
on revaluation (20,919) (85,422) (3,570) (8,723) - (118,634)
g% Transfer - 4,261 - - (4,261) -
hE Disposals - (1,132) (39) Q7 - (1,448)
T-ZE+ZF=+-8R At 31st December, 2010 and
;%fﬁi A-H 15t January, 2011 137,749 431,062 9,493 13,869 25,921 618,094
EBAE Currency realignment 7,121 20,206 253 514 679 28,773
AE Additions - 9,838 2,44 3,780 9,602 25,464
E-bd Transfer 34,880 - - - (34,880) -
e Disposals - (428) 8 (72) - (508)
ENABABELEL Reclassification to assets of
MERRERE a disposal group classified
as held for sale - - (18) (4,680) - (4,698)
R-Z——5+-f=+-H At 31st December, 2011 179750 460,678 11,964 13411 1322 667,125
B Comprising:
BRA At cost - - - - 1322 1322
EfhE At valuation 179,750 460,678 11,964 13411 - 665,803
179750 460,678 11,964 13411 1322 667,125
RHTE ACCUMULATED
DEPRECIATION
R-2-F£-f-H At 1st January, 2010 10,641 59,929 3,884 5,308 - 79,762
Rz Currency realignment 555 2,541 121 163 - 3,380
EREE Provided for the year 6,928 31,735 1782 3,355 - 43,800
BRI Eliminated on revaluation (18,124) (94,069) (5,787) (8,593) - (126573)
i E B 3 Eliminated on disposals - (136) - (233) - (369)
RZE-ZF+-F=F-HK  At31st December, 2010 and
‘i——i A-A 15t January, 2011 - - - - -
EBH% Currency realignment 157 79 % 61 - 1,034
ENEE Provided for the year 7,564 38,140 2,160 4,48 - 52,346
i E B 3 Eliminated on disposals - (3) - (19) - 22)
BMNEARELEY Reclassification to assets of
MERAEE a disposal group classified
as held for sale - - (18) (1,237) - (1,255)
RZE——F+-f=+-H At 315t December, 2011 7,721 38,929 2,166 3,287 - 52,103
FAE CARRYING VALUES
R-Z-——E+-F=1-H At 315t December, 2011 172,009 421,749 9,798 10,124 132 615,022
R-Z-ZE+-F=1-H At 31t December, 2010 137,749 431,062 9,493 13,869 25,921 618,094

Annual Report 2011



mE MR E M

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

18.

HEZZT——F+=ZA=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31st December, 2011

M RN RE (E

b wERREZER (TR
FERTR) HUERRRTIF R

E

gF HHEHEEHR
H25F TR E

5 5 Mo e 23 4% - 33%

=R 7 20%

WA ERE 20%

ARE B 2 B FHA R B AR H R
FHEEA A T THE R -

REE Y - W REE (TEEE
BIRR) BEHERTHARARLR
ERHRAENMEREE TSR S5E
N-E—ZTF+-_F=+—BHEHG
B THEBTHERAAEAEER
WA - AEBEEMMESEZIE
1 B8R %714,148,0008 TTE T A& E
BHFEHRN MEEREREGZE
&84 497,130,000 - REBE=Z
—ZEF+ZA=+—HLEFER K
BERFBCEEBRERIEREELZ
ME - HWERRBZREBR N
12,384,000/ 7T }2 383,000 7T B iR 4R
ERRERER UFEEEFEZANK
EEORREERREMDE -

18.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment,
other than construction in progress, are depreciated

on a straight-line basis at the following rates per

annum:
Buildings Over the shorter of the
term of the lease
or 25 years
Plant and machinery 4% - 33%
Motor vehicles 20%
Office equipment 20%

The Group’s buildings are situated in the PRC over
the leasehold interest in land under short and

medium-term leases.

The Group's property, plant and equipment other
than construction in progress were revalued as
at 31st December, 2010 by Norton Appraisals
Limited, by reference to market evidence of recent
transactions for similar properties and assets.
Norton Appraisals Limited is not connected with the
Group. The Group's share of surplus arising on the
revaluation which had been credited to the asset
revaluation reserve amounted to approximately
HK$14,148,000 and the non-controlling interests’
share of surplus arising on revaluation amounted
to approximately HK$7,130,000. Impairment losses
of property, plant and equipment of approximately
HK$12,384,000 and HK$383,000 were recognised
in the consolidated income statement from
continuing operations and discontinued operation,
respectively for the year ended 31st December,
2010. These assets are mainly used in the Group’s
printing and manufacturing of packaging products

segment.
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HE-_Z—F+-_A=+—HLLFE

18.

For the year ended 31st December, 2011

M - MBS R (E) 18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)
N—_E——F+-_HB=+—H &= As at 31st December, 2011, the directors conducted
ORI IREGSEVEZCAERY a review of the Group’s property, plant and
¥ OBMENRE UiHFTREEAR equipment carried at revalued amounts and have
BATEEEZ2EITEERER - estimated that the carrying amounts do not differ
significantly from which would be determined using
fair values.
WAEE 2 WE  BEREZHE(TRIE Had the Group’s property, plant and equipment,
TERETR) JVIRKAR 2T ES R - other than construction in progress, been carried
Bl MERREBEATHEREE at cost less accumulated depreciation, the carrying
HIBR - values of property, plant and equipment would have
been stated as follows:
S 3
The Group
“E--f _E-%f
201 2010
A ZithE REE A ZitihE REE
Accumulated Carrying Accumulated Carrying
Cost  depreciation values Cost  depreciation values
TEn TEn TEn TET TET TEn
HK$" 000 HKS' 000 HKS' 000 HK$" 000 HK$" 000 HK$' 000
BF Buildings 140,235 27,333 112,902 105,355 21,402 83,953
KR RIS Plant and machinery 525,107 183,744 341,363 515,901 165,231 350,670
B4 Motor vehicles 17,687 16,647 1,040 15,644 13,660 1,984
RAERE Office equipment 34,382 33,642 740 40,922 34,037 6,885
17,41 261,366 456,045 677,822 234,330 443,492

WN-—ZE——F+=-A=+—8 4%&
B2 ¥ EREE 459,041,000 L (=&
—Z 4 157,814,000/ L) EHRE 2 M
¥ OBBLRBEER - EALEEM
B—RIRITEEZRE -

Annual Report 2011

As at 31st December, 2011, the Group has pledged
property, plant and equipment in the PRC with a
carrying amount of approximately HK$59,041,000
(2010: HK$57,814,000) to secure general banking
facilities granted to the Group.
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18.

19.

HE-Z——%+-A=+—HIEE For the year ended 31st December, 2011

M - B R () 18.
R-F——F+=-A=+—-8"

AEBELUREBERBEZIYE  #
BREH(BEEWMEN) ZKRE
B 52,766,000 L (ZE— T F :
2,401,000/ 7T) °

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

As at 31st December, 2011, the carrying value of
the Group’s property, plant and equipment held
under finance lease included in motor vehicles
amounted to HK$2,766,000 (2010: HK$2,401,000).

FEANHEENR 19. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS
KEH
The Group
= i A
2011 2010
FET FAT
HK$’ 000 HK$’000
AEBZEMEE The Group's prepaid lease
R BIE payments comprise:
WREzHE LI : Leasehold land in the PRC under:
HREEE Medium-term lease 17,382 17,740
MHRE Short-term lease 1,275 1,530
18,657 19,270
FLEREITZHM : Analysed for reporting purposes as:
MEBEE Current assets 613 613
ERBEE Non-current assets 18,044 18,657
18,657 19,270

RNEE D K AREE 411,604,000 7T
(ZZF—=4 : 11,866,000 L) 278
NEERNKER  ERREEME—
MIBITEEZRE -

The Group has pledged prepaid lease payments
having a carrying amount of approximately
HK$11,604,000 (2010: HK$11,866,000) to secure

general banking facilities granted to the Group.
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HE-_Z—F+-_A=+—HLLFE

20.

For the year ended 31st December, 2011

SRS 20. GOODWILL
rEH
The Group
—E——-5 ZZZT-TF
2011 2010
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
Wi — B ARIBEEL  Arising on acquisition of a subsidiary 2,605 2,605
WEE— R B A RMEZREF  Arising on acquisition of additional
EXE interest in a subsidiary 90 90
2,695 2,695
W D BEARBIELE Less: classified as assets of a disposal
—EBEHEEEZEE group held for sale (note 37) (2,695) -
(Ktat31)

= 2,695

RRENRTE  BROHREES
AEBHBA KA BENERA A
BB REELEN (BeELHE
Ri1) o A AU EER B2 83
BIEE B 3 o

WN-ZE-FTFE+-F=+—08 K&
BEBEEATHeELSBN(EEHE)
WEBEEMARE - L REEELE
fLzalEeEs ZERETZHBAR
JIELAT

Annual Report 2011

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill has
been allocated to a cash generating unit (“CGU")
operating as a subsidiary of the Group, MinilLogic
Device Corporation Limited, which is engaged in
the design, development and sale of integrated

circuits.

As at 31st December, 2010, management of
the Group determined that the CGU containing
goodwill had not suffered any impairment. The
basis of the recoverable amount of the above
CGU and the major underlying assumptions are

summarised below:
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20.

HEZZT——F+=ZA=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31st December, 2011

B ()

ReEEEM 2 RESEIIRER
BEMETE - trl @S BIREEE
Btz —FHMPREEZRER
EFRRN25% A XRGFE - BEEER
RERRE RAEREE BEW
BREANRBCELEMTH ZERK
BEtrIRE - BlZ - FHZRER
ECHERBFNER%IBTEERAEHR
B MY TEBEREKERD
LR RPFHERER -FEER
BEzEMIERRRBELENX
HNDERBeELABMUBERRALE
EERERNMZERHEMEE - &
BEEMREENZERRZEFMAER
EREEPKITEERRNSELEN IR
EEARBEREELEM 2 AT M

ke A

20.

GOODWILL (continued)

The recoverable amount of the CGU had been
determined based on a value in use calculation.
That calculation uses cash flow projections based
on financial budget approved by management
covering a one-year period and discount rate
of 25%. Management estimates discount rate
using risk-free rate, equity risk premium, inflation
rate and the risks specific to the CGU. Cash
flows beyond that one-year period have been
extrapolated using a steady 5% per annum growth
rate which is/does not exceed the projected long-
term average growth rate for the international
integrated circuits market. Other key assumption
for the value in use calculation is the budgeted
gross margin, which is determined based on
the CGU's past performance and management’s
expectations of the market development.
Management believed that any reasonably possible
change in any of these assumptions would not
cause the aggregate carrying amount of the CGU
to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of the
CGU.
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HE-_Z—F+-_A=+—HLLFE

21.

RIB AR 2RERER,
() B B 2 B 2 BR X

For the year ended 31st December, 2011

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
AND AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO)
SUBSIDIARIES

¥ NN

The Company
—E——-F _—Z=-ZTF
2011 2010
FHE T FET
HK$’' 000 HK$'000
FELETRMHZIKE LKA Investments in unlisted shares, at cost 44,089 44,089

el (R KBRARZ Amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries
R

JE U B B A Bl Z BR AR Amounts due from subsidiaries 321,340 284,736
ORI EE RS Less: allowance for impairment loss (13,683) (13,683)
307,657 271,053
FERHTE AR ZBER Amounts due to subsidiaries (211,455) (183,519)

BT EME QR 2 ISHMNHE46

FEU (P B AR 2 BRAR B IR
R REBREERRY YRA
RAEIZNPHARRER P FESAE -

WZ_E——F+=-_A=+—8 AR
AIE T AN B A RIRE B A A K
WH B AR ZERZ TR ESEE - K
RANWEBERFHEBEEDRE -2
ZZT-ZTF+ZA=+—8 BKEKW
B AR Z R E13,683,000/8 L2
BEEE -

Annual Report 2011

Details of principal subsidiaries are set out in note
46.

Amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest free with no fixed terms of repayment and
classified as current in the statement of financial

position of the Company.

As at 31st December, 2011, the Company
reassessed the recoverable amount of the
investment costs of the subsidiaries and the
amounts due from subsidiaries. No further
impairment loss was provided. As at 31st December,
2010, an impairment loss of HK$13,683,000 was

made against amounts due from subsidiaries.



mE MR E M

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

22.

23.

HE-_Z——F+-_A=+—HLLFE

BEYx HIRFHEZE] 22.
€

RBE-T——F+-A=+—H1t

FE - BHREBEARA—HKERA

BOHM ARS8  RBEZ
malhl#sEmBEEINTFE=22

14 A H£4928,254,0008 TEEE T

REH -

AHEERE 23.

For the year ended 31st December, 2011

DEPOSITS PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year ended 31st December, 2011,
deposits previously paid to a third party for the
purpose of acquisition of two printing machineries

of a subsidiary of the Company with an aggregate

amount of approximately HK$28,254,000 have

been refunded to the Group due to cancellation of

the orders for the two printing machineries.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

AHEERERE Available-for-sale investments comprise:
rEE
The Group
—B-—-F —T-TF
2011 2010
THER FHET
HK$'000 HK$' 000
FELHIRE : Unlisted investments:
—-RERES - Investment savings plan (note a) 13,580 17,681
(Kiata)
—HAERIINZIKE - Investments outside Hong Kong 7,603 7,603
(B15%b) (note b)
21,183 25,284
Btat - Notes:
a. FLEMEERBFEIEIRER B a. The unlisted investment savings plan represents

HEBEERESAABBZHES
Bl ZREM BRI LT
RrAREEET  FHR-_TN
FoAHFBAR/=TEM@EA - &
SECRIBERBRZINAE
W WRFBIREZFTEIED A
ke FEZEF A TFEEZRRE S
RIEHEEERRES 2 HEFE -

an investment in a savings plan whose returns are
linked to a portfolio of marketable international
funds. The savings plan was issued by a group of
insurance companies listed in the Stock Exchange
and has a term of 29 years with an initial
contribution period of 34 months. The Group has
made full contribution for the initial contribution
period and intends to hold the plan until maturity.
They are measured at their estimated fair value
based on the market value of the underlying
marketable international funds at the end of the
reporting period.
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HEZZT——F+-_A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31st December, 2011

23. AHHEEERE (&) 23. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
(continued)

Hiit - (&) Notes: (continued)

b. ERRIZIELTIREENPE— b. The unlisted investments outside Hong Kong
MEMRITREHEEMZIRE - represent an investment in a local bank and an
ZERE TR WS B AR IR AR education unit in the PRC. The investments are
EZFHREFE MAARRES measured at cost less accumulated impairment at
HRAEERATFETEASHE & the end of the reporting period as the directors
ERE ZERERAREBE_Z of the Company are of the opinion that their fair
——FRZFT-ZTF+_A=+— values cannot be measured reliably. In the opinion
HIEFEFHRRERE - of the directors, no impairment loss on these

investments is required for the years ended 31st
December, 2011 and 2010.

24. FH 24. INVENTORIES
rEE
The Group
—E——-5 Z—ZT-ZF
2011 2010
FTET FET
HK$' 000 HK$' 000
R # Raw materials 94,956 96,015
bkl Work in progress 11,245 15,110
BHGFE KR Trading inventories and finished goods 35,995 63,832
142,196 174,957
N—_E——F+_A=+—H ' & As at 31st December, 2011, certain inventories
22,493,000 T (Z & —Z F : amounting to HK$22,493,000 (2010:
70,821,000 7)) 2 & THEERHKIET HK$70,821,000) were pledged to banks for
RIT EBRNEHMERTEEZF banking facilities granted to the Group.
=
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HE-Z——%+-A=+—HIEE For the year ended 31st December, 2011

ERE=Z2EFRAREM 25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

FEUWBEES s ST RFEFHIE FROM THIRD PARTIES, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS
rEE
The Group
=25 —ZT-ZF
2011 2010
THERT T T
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
FEWE 5 B X Trade receivables 621,603 523,514
o REREAE Less: allowance for doubtful debts (11,332) (11,737)
ERE S RFFRE Trade receivables, net 610,271 511,777
H A FE AR K Other receivables, deposits and
7l & RIERRIA prepayments 62,663 72,322
672,934 584,099
AEE-RETHESEPZ2THER The Group generally allows an average credit period
BREIA302120H » AT AIREZERAH of 30 to 120 days to its trade customers. The
EFRMERRZERE ZERME following is an aged analysis of trade receivables
RARE 18 2 BREC AT - net of allowance for doubtful debts at the end
of the reporting period, presented based on the
invoice date:
rEH
The Group
=B —ZT-ZF
2011 2010
THER FHE T
HK$'000 HK$' 000
60H A Within 60 days 415,819 369,504
61—90H A Within 61 — 90 days 95,902 59,408
90H A E More than 90 days 98,550 82,865
610,271 511,777
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25.

BWE=FEZRAREM
FEUWRBRFX ~ 7] & R FA Y 7K E
(%)

AEBEAHELHN  AEEEAR
HEETBRFIHERERESE
BHERABEEPILEERE
EFzEERENAETEETHR
5 o REDAD B ML B 5 AR 3R BE K B B 7%
A EREEFRNERIZE
CRE

REERBESEREHRDERDE
8 /354,450,000 T (=T — T F :
58,327,000/ 7T) 2 FE U BR 3K - 3R
EHRAREIE  BAREEWKRIED
BEBEEE AEBUERZSE
BREFAEMERR ZERBERZ
FHER A48 (ZFE—FF 102
H) e

CEHESEREEBREZ KRR
AR

25.

For the year ended 31st December, 2011

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
FROM THIRD PARTIES, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS (continued)

Before accepting any new customer, the Group
uses an internal credit assessment process to
assess the potential customer’s credit quality and
defines credit limits by customer. Limits attributed
to customers are reviewed by the management
regularly. Most of the trade receivables are neither
past due nor impaired and have good repayment

history in prior years.

Included in the Group’s trade receivables balance
are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
HK$54,450,000 (2010: HK$58,327,000) which are
past due at the end of the reporting period for
which the Group has not provided for impairment
loss. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances. The average age of these
receivables is 114 days (2010: 102 days).

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but

not impaired

TEE

The Group
—E——F —Z=-ZF
2011 2010
THET FHET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
60H A Within 60 days 20,880 14,034
61—90H N 61 — 90 days 13,492 15,110
90H A £ More than 90 days 20,078 29,183
54,450 58,327

Annual Report 2011
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25.

HE-Z——%+-A=+—HIEE For the year ended 31st December, 2011

BWE=FEZRAREM
FEUWBRFK ~ 5] & RFA KB
(#)

5| E018 30 SR 2 M W B 3 PR K2
B ()

B i 5018 30 R 2 18 W 5 R K
rEBERFEBRCEZEFEH -
ERERE  AREEERYEEA
28 ARSHENREAT2HK
)+ GRI it 4 8 5 3 55 4 4 1 R 0
B o RIS BRECKEABHHE -

25.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
FROM THIRD PARTIES, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS (continued)

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but

not impaired (continued)

The trade receivables that were past due but not
impaired related to customers that have good track
records with the Group. Management believes that
no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable. A substantial amount
of which has been received after the end of the
reporting period.

RIRBHEE Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts
rEE
The Group
=25 —ZT-ZF
2011 2010
THERT T T
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
F A EERR Balance at beginning of the year 11,737 11,485
HIE U E F R TR Impairment losses recognised
BIERE on trade receivables 3,210 258
FRET AU E Amounts written off during the year
MH &R as uncollectible (3,615) (6)
FIREERR Balance at end of the year 11,332 11,737

REBELEENERREZEKE
SRR 4583,210,0008 L (=&
—Z 4 1 258,000/ 7T) ° 3% 5 A E
PRV BEREsEFEH MEER
BZSEEA R EERE o NERI
ERZERBERATAERR -

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts
are individually impaired trade receivables with
an aggregate balance of HK$3,210,000 (2010:
HK$258,000) which related to customers that were
in financial difficulties and the directors consider
the recoverability of these debts is remote. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

Kith Holdings Limited

171



172

AR B M
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HEZZT——F+-_A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31st December, 2011

25.

20.

BURE=EEZFRAREM
EWER ST RENRE
(#%)
R_B——F+_A=1+—H0 &#
15,086,000 L (ZF—ZTF ) 2
ETREKESERBER TR - E
REAEEMBERITEEZRE - 515
EE IR H 41 -

EWEERKRRE S RAR
H th FE U BR =X

REBGTHERRRE 2 FHRE
HR308 - BUSEERIRRE 5 KRN
REMBREXRBEERE SER
45 £288,057,000% 7T (Z & — T F :
60,910,000/ 7T) - AR (JRER
HEAZ2) 2BREEDITIAT -

25.

20.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
FROM THIRD PARTIES, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS (continued)

As at 31st December, 2011, certain trade
receivables amounting to HK$15,086,000 (2010:
nil) were pledged to banks for banking facilities
granted to the Group. Details are set out in note
41.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
FROM NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

The Group allows an average credit period of 30
days to non-controlling shareholders. Included
within trade and other receivables from non-
controlling shareholders are trade receivable
balance of HK$88,057,000 (2010: HK$60,910,000),
and the aged analysis of this balance (presented

based on the invoice date) is as follows:

AEE

The Group
—E——F —E—FF
2011 2010
FHEx FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
60HIN Within 60 days 86,509 59,312
90H M E More than 90 days 1,548 1,598
88,057 60,910
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27.
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20.

27.

For the year ended 31st December, 2011

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
FROM NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Included in the above balances of approximately
HK$1,548,000 (2010: HK$10,840,000) which were
past due at the end of the reporting period for
which the Group has not provided for impairment
loss because management is of the opinion that the
fundamental credit quality of these non-controlling
shareholders has not deteriorated. The Group does

not hold any collateral over these balances.

The other receivables due from non-controlling
shareholders amounted to approximately
HK$1,455,000 (2010: HK$1,371,000) which are

unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

SHORT-TERM LOANS RECEIVABLE
As at 31st December, 2011,
loan receivable of HK$18,430,000 (2010:
HK$23,309,000) which is non-interest bearing, all

of the Group’s short-term loans receivable are of

except for a

fixed interest rates ranged from 6.1% to 20.0% per

annum (2010: 20.0% per annum).

As at 31st December, 2011 and 2010, no collateral
agreement has been entered into in respect of
the Group’s short-term loans receivable. All the
short-term loans receivable are due for repayment
within one year or on demand from the end of the

reporting period.

Before granting loans, the Group uses an internal
credit assessment process to assess the potential
borrower’s credit quality and defines credit limits
by borrower. Limits attributed to borrowers are

reviewed by the management regularly.

Kith Holdings Limited

173



174

SEVKERBME
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

=

27.

28.

—E——F+-A=+—HLEFE

For the year ended 31st December, 2011

WHIEWEB R (&) 27. SHORT-TERM LOANS RECEIVABLE
(continued)
RZE——F+-_AF=+—H & As at 31st December, 2011, the Group’s short-
£ B 750 I N E 7064,728,000/%8 7T term loans receivable amounting to HK$64,728,000
Z T —Z 4 : 23,309,000/ 7T) IR (2010: HK$23,309,000) were past due at the end
HHRINE  EARAEEWERZEE of the reporting period for which the Group had
TEH R ERIEEE - R EWE KT not provided for impairment loss. Included in the
246,298,000 TR S HIR B2 &8 short-term loans receivable which were past due
B EERAERREHRBEUR at the end of the reporting period is an amount of
© #920,908,000/ 8 LB - MEARFELD HK$46,298,000 which has been settled by cash of
25,390,000 T E B A EEERA— approximately HK$20,908,000 with the remaining
BB AR ZETYEMER - B balance of approximately HK$25,390,000 settled
B 3% 52 A B 5149 © 18,430,000/ JT & by transferring several properties from a subsidiary
Mz AEBESHERERTERRSE of the borrower subsequent to the end of the
BARKBEANESERS - reporting period. Details are disclosed in note 49.
The remaining amount of HK$18,430,000 of the
Group short-term loans receivable has been settled
by cash after the end of the reporting period.
BIEERE ANAERBERER Management believes that no impairment
ERBREHRRBEANRSHINEZY allowance is necessary in respect of the loans
HEEE MZSEEVEZLAFER receivable as all the short-term loans receivable
WY N2 ERGE - Bt E A ER have been settled either by cash after the end of
EREL R E RS - the reporting period or by transferring properties
with fair values sufficiently covered the loans
balance.
HIEEERE 28. HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS
HIEEERERE Held-for-trading investments comprise:
rEH
The Group
—E2—-—-F —Z=-ZTF
2011 2010
FHET FHETT
HK$’000 HK$’000
LEHES: Listed securities:
—-REALETZ — Equity securities listed 1,095 1,887
IR AN 78 75 in Hong Kong
—RABUAIINET 2 - Equity securities listed
IR A FE % outside Hong Kong 83 85
BEUINZIEET Unlisted structured deposit 3,695 -
T outside Hong Kong
4,873 1,972
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28.

29.

HE-Z——%+-A=+—HIEE For the year ended 31st December, 2011

BIEEERE (&) 28. HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS
(continued)
A ATEBNREREZT S The fair values of listed securities are determined
FTRIEREE LS TEBE AREBE T - with reference to quoted market bid prices of
BHARIEFTEBEERBEERE @ i underlying securities available on the relevant
HEAFEEERARE - exchanges. Owing to short maturity of the unlisted
structured deposit, its fair value is approximate to
its cost.
HAib B S S E 29. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
rEH
The Group
= F-——% Z—T-TF
2011 2010
FHET THETT
HK$’'000 HK$" 000
EEMIINERBRELD Structured foreign currency - 377

forward contract

RZZE——F+=ZA=+—8" #&
RERBEINERHAL -

As at 31st December, 2011, there is no structured

foreign currency forward contract.
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29.

For the year ended 31st December, 2011

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued)
As at 31st December, 2010, the balance
represented a 24-month USD/HKD Enhanced
Leveraged Forward Contract (the “Enhanced
Leveraged Forward Contract”) entered into on 1st
March, 2010 between a subsidiary of the Company
and a bank. According to the Enhanced Leveraged
Forward Contract, the subsidiary was obliged to buy
USD2,250,000 from the bank at the strike price of
7.735 (the “Strike Rate”) if the spot exchange rate
of USD/HKD on each monthly expiration date was
above or equal to the Strike Rate for the first twelve
monthly expiration dates. If the spot exchange
rate of USD/HKD was below the Strike Rate, the
subsidiary was obliged to buy USD6,750,000 from
the bank at the Strike Rate on each expiration
dates until the thirteenth month. If the spot
exchange rate of USD/HKD on the thirteenth
monthly expiration date was above or equal to
7.745 (the "Knock-out Rate”), the Enhanced
Leveraged Forward Contract should terminate
and be deemed cancelled without payment of any
settlement amount. However, if the spot exchange
rate of USD/HKD was below the Knock-out Rate,
the subsidiary was obliged to buy USD4,500,000
from the bank at the Knock-out Rate on each
expiration date until the last expiration date. The
first expiration date of the Enhanced Leverage
Forward Contract was 15th April, 2010 and the last
expiration date was 19th March, 2012. During the
year ended 31st December, 2011, the Enhanced
Leverage Forward Contract was terminated as the

knock-out event has occurred.
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29.

30.

31.

HE-Z——%+-A=+—HIEE For the year ended 31st December, 2011
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29.

30.

31.

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued)
The fair values as at 31st December, 2010 of the
other financial assets were determined based on the
valuation carried out by an external independent
valuer in which the fair values were determined
based on the difference between the market
forward rates at the end of the reporting period for
remaining duration of the outstanding contracts
and their contracted forward rates and discounted
using an appropriate discount rate to take account

of the time value of money.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances and cash comprise cash and short-
term bank deposits with an original maturity of
three months or less held by the Group. Bank
balances and short-term bank deposits carry
interest at market rates ranging from 0.0% to 1.5%
(2010: 0.0% to 0.6%) per annum.

ASSETS OF AND LIABILITIES DIRECTLY
ASSOCIATED WITH A DISPOSAL
GROUP CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE
As described in note 11, the Group has announced
on 4th May, 2011 a plan to spin off its operations
in design, development and sale of integrated
circuits through separate listing of its non-wholly
owned subsidiary, Megalogic Holdings, on the Stock
Exchange. An In Principle Approval was granted by
the Stock Exchange on 23rd December, 2011 and
the Spin-off has been subsequently completed on
19th January, 2012.
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HEZZT——F+-_A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31st December, 2011

31, HEEESEAFFHEZS
EHEHBECEERARE
(48 )

BRASMERCEERAEE BN
R+ A=+—BZKEEY
BRAKRF ORI BEREANRR
FIELECHEEAHBZEERE
& REHNWMT

31.

ASSETS OF AND LIABILITIES DIRECTLY
ASSOCIATED WITH A DISPOSAL
GROUP CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE
(continued)

The assets and liabilities relating to Megalogic
Holdings which have been separately presented
as assets of and liabilities directly associated with
a disposal group classified as held for sale in the

consolidated statement of financial position as at

31st December, 2011 are as follows:

—E——%F
+=—A=+—H”
31st December, 2011
FHET
HK$’ 000
BE Assets:
e Goodwill 2,695
M - HEKRRE Property, plant and equipment 3,443
FE Inventories 3,972
FEWE 5 B8R 3R R Hh FE UL Trade and other receivables, deposits
B - Bl RIEMNFIA and prepayments 30,563
B EE Tax recoverable 991
RITEBRNIRS Bank balances and cash 7,635
SERFIEEHEZHE Total assets of a disposal group classified as
HEZBEBRE held for sale 49,299
BfE: Liabilities:
FEASH B 5 BR 3 K H A FE A AR 3K Trade and other payables 2,754
RIEHIESE Deferred tax liabilities 539
HEEREESBABIELEZ Total liabilities directly associated with
HEAEHB aERE a disposal group classified as held for sale 3,293
46,006
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3. BEEHcEARFEHEZE 31. ASSETS OF AND LIABILITIES DIRECTLY

EHEHECEEREE ASSOCIATED WITH A DISPOSAL
(4%&) GROUP CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE
(continued)
FEIESRBEBYERAREMD The cumulative income or expense recognised in

1451 i RetEs AT

other comprehensive income relating to Megalogic

Holdings is as follows:

—E——%F
+ZA=+—H
31st December, 2011
FHET
HK$' 000
EEME - B RERMBESE  Surplus arising on revaluation of property,
2 BER plant and equipment 207
EEWE BN RHBELE  Deferred tax effect on surplus arising on
R ZIBRIEH B2 revaluation of property, plant and equipment (34)
FEESEABIEHE ZHE  Total cumulative income recognised in other
AE MR ARk comprehensive income relating to
EF‘EEE 2 BEtas g a disposal group classified as held for sale 173
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HEZZT——F+-_A=1+—HIFE For the year ended 31st December, 2011

32. BEHEZERAREME(ER 32. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

el
AEH
The Group
—E-—F C—T-TF
2011 2010
FERT FAET
HK$' 000 HK$' 000
R E SRR Trade payables 145,374 208,499
HEMEMBERRESER  Other payables and accruals 66,164 55,761
211,538 264,260
LT AIREZEFHIINBERAR Y An ageing analysis of the trade payables presented
FERTE SEEHEEE DT - based on the invoice date at the end of the
reporting period is as follows:
rEH
The Group
=B —ZT-ZF
2011 2010
FERT FAET
HK$' 000 HK$' 000
60H ™A Within 60 days 97,798 167,101
61—90H A Within 61 — 90 days 13,166 7,398
90H KAk More than 90 days 34,410 34,000
145,374 208,499
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011

&8 33. BORROWINGS
rEH
The Group
—F-——-F ZT-TF
2011 2010
TERT FHET
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
RITEX Bank overdraft 392 284
KERITEE Short-term bank borrowings 138,479 32,600
REIRITEER Long-term bank borrowings
——FANEEEL — portion of bank loans due for
RITEFIH repayment within one year 99,788 122,172
- —FRIBEERS — portion of term loans from bank due
A] BE RS BoR (8 IE 5K for repayment after one year which
Z EHRITERE M contain a repayment on demand clause 35,589 37,214
EEEX Factoring loans 11,115 -
SRR E R Trust receipt loans 275,942 253,541
HtpERK Other loan = 5,000
561,305 450,811
DR Analysed as:
AHEH Secured 59,166 55,505
Eeig i Unsecured 502,139 395,306
561,305 450,811

AEBEZ RITEFABHXAT IR -
ME-—FRIMEENESAERE
KEBGRFE D BRRDABEZED

BRI PUE A ©

The Group’s bank loans are carried at amortised
cost. None of the portion of the term loans due

for repayment after one year which contain a

repayment on demand clause and that is classified

as a current liability is expected to be settled within

one year.
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33.
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33.

For the year ended 31st December, 2011

BORROWINGS (continued)

At 31st December, 2011, the Group’s borrowings
were due for repayment as follows, which are
based on the scheduled repayment dates set out in
the loan agreements and ignore the effect of any

repayment on demand clause:

rEE

The Group
=2-—-F C—"ZT-ZF
2011 2010
FERT FHET
HK$' 000 HK$’ 000

JE(ERAREE - Carrying amount repayable:

JEEREES —FA On demand or within one year 525,716 413,597
—FREMRFENRN After one year but within two years 13,516 11,246
WMEBRERLFRN After two years but within five years 22,073 25,968
561,305 450,811

FIERITEEEX RN ERE +
MBRARLLERA Z%@? (BEER
BB ERZHR) o WK
SEERZEXE  NARERER
EXBMZEE N REBETE
HERBRESR TERABHIWIE
IR - EERATARER (TRAER
FEETHRENNEREEREE) B
Sk BV 18 38 FRIA o

Annual Report 2011

All of the banking facilities are subject to the
fulfillment of covenants relating to certain of the
Group’s statement of financial position ratios, as
are commonly found in lending arrangements
with financial institutions. If the Group were to
breach the covenants the drawn down facilities
would become repayable on demand. In addition,
certain of the Group’s term loan agreements
contain clauses which give the lender the right at
its sole discretion to demand immediate repayment
at any time irrespective of whether the Group
has complied with the covenants and met the

scheduled repayment obligations.
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33.

HE_Z——F+-_A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31st December, 2011
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33.

BORROWINGS (continued)

The Group regularly monitors its compliance
with these covenants, and has up to date met
the scheduled repayment obligations of the term
loans and does not consider it probable that the
banks will exercise their discretion to demand
repayment for so long as the Group continues to
meet these requirements. Further details of the
Group’'s management of liquidity risk are set out
in note 6(b). As at 31st December, 2011, none of
the covenants relating to drawn down facilities had
been breached (2010: nil).

The Group’s short-term bank borrowings are
variable-rate borrowings which carry effective
interest rates ranging from 1.9% to 3.8% (2010:
1.9% to 2.5%)
2011.

per annum as at 31st December,

The Group’s long-term bank borrowings
included fixed-rate borrowings of approximately
HK$24,640,000 (2010: HK$135,920,000) which
carry effective interest rates ranging from 5.5% to
8.2% (2010: 4.9% to 6.8%) per annum as at 31st
December, 2011.

In addition, the Group has variable-rate long-term
bank borrowings of approximately HK$110,737,000
(2010: HK$23,466,000), which carry interest at
HIBOR plus 1.5% to 2.3% or 100% to 105% of
the interest rate prescribed by the People’s Bank of
China for the applicable loan period (2010: carry
interest at HIBOR plus 1.5% to 2.1%) and the
effective interest rate was 2.1% to 7.9% (2010:
1.7% to 2.4%) per annum as at 31st December,
2011. Interest rates are repriced monthly and

quarterly.
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33.
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ERWREERR FE%E%@%
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33.

For the year ended 31st December, 2011

BORROWINGS (continued)

Included in long-term bank borrowings as at 31st
December, 2011 was an amount of HK$19,533,000
(2010: HK$12,000,000) which is guaranteed
by the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region under the Special Loan

Guarantee Scheme.

Factoring loans are variable-rate borrowings, which
carry interest at SIBOR + 1.8% and the effective
interest rate was 2.3% per annum as at 31st
December, 2011 (2010: nil). The factoring loan is
secured by the fixed charge over trade receivables
of the Group with an aggregate amount of
HK$15,086,000.

Trust receipt loans are normally repayable within
six months of the date the loans were raised and
carry prevailing market interest rate. The average
effective interest rate on trust receipt loans is
approximately 1.8% to 8.0% (2010: 1.7% to 2.6%)

per annum as at 31st December, 2011.

The other loan as at 31st December, 2010 was
unsecured, carried fixed interest at 2.0% per month

and was wholly repayable within one year.
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34. MMEMHESEMTE 34,

AEBLRERAERBHESER T
MERAREA(ZZT—FF : 48(@
R) -FTEmMARESTMEBEFIEY
REFTHBEBET  FFENTF2.3%
E28%(ZE—FF:28%) - ~A5EH
ERNHENANEmMEREZSE
o EERTmWRAHE I HZE
B o

OBLIGATION UNDER FINANCE LEASE

The Group leased certain of its motor vehicles
under finance leases. The average lease term
is 42 months (2010: 48 months). Interest rates
underlying all obligations under finance leases are
fixed at respective contract dates ranging from
2.3% to 2.8% (2010: 2.8%) per annum. The Group
has options to purchase the motor vehicles for a
nominal amount at the end of the lease terms.
No arrangements have been entered into for
contingent rental payments.

KEE
The Group

BEEENN EEBREARRE

Minimum lease Present value of
payments minimum lease payments
—$--F -T-IF =%--F ~I-%%
2011 2010 2011 2010
TET TAT TET TET
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000 HK$' 000

BMEMEEMEN:  Amounts payable under
finance lease:

-—%R - within one year 1,048 860 947 775
- —FRERER - after one year but
within two years 403 860 375 775
~-MERERER - after two years but
within five years 16 216 16 194
1,467 1,936 1,338 1,744
B RRETBEERBE Less: total future finance charges (129) (192) = -
BEMEEAM A  Present value of finance
lease obligation 1,338 1,744 1,338 1,744
BERRETZ Carrying amount analysed
REBEA for reporting purpose as:
=4 Current liabilities 947 775
FRBEE Non-current liabilities 391 969
1,338 1,744

AEBzREHERSEALEARE
AWE - e R E (HE18) 2 HE
BEFMBEELRR -

The Group’s obligation under finance lease is
secured by the lessors’ title to the leased assets
included in property, plant and equipment (note
18).
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011

35. IRIEFLIR 35. DEFERRED TAX
Bz FR-_ZET-FTF+_-A The components of deferred tax liabilities and
=T —HLEFE AEEZEETBR assets recognised in the Group's consolidated
NEANEERZEEHBEEREE statement of financial position and the movements
ZHRK  RRESHAT during the years ended 31st December, 2011 and
2010 are as follows:
rEE
The Group
nE BE BHRABRE HEREAR
RRGER 2FERE  REEE ZADKER 2 ag
Depreciation
Revaluation  allowances Undistributed
of property, in excess of earnings
plant and related Tax of PRC
equipment  depreciation losses  subsidiaries Others Total
TEL THEL THEL THEL TR ThR
HK$" 000 HK$" 000 HK$' 000 HK$" 000 HK$" 000 HK$ 000
RZE-T5-f-8 At 1st January, 2010 14,99 19,894 (595) 2,138 (261) 36,170
ERiGeliER Charge (credit) to the consolidated
B GA) income statement for the year
- BEREER - continuing operations (1,949) 5,199 - 17 - 3467
- BRIEEEER - discontinued operation - 107 595 - - 702
FEEREMZANENR  Charge to other comprehensive
income for the current year 3315 - - - - 3315
EMRRAETA Credit to equity for the year 8 - - - - 8
RZE-FF+ZA=+—F  At31st December, 2010 and
k=%2-——%-A-H st January, 2011 16,352 25,200 - 2,355 (261) 43,646
ERiGeliEE Charge (credit) to the consolidated
M (EA) income statement for the year
-BEOERR - continuing operations - 4,670 - 205 - (4,465)
-BRIEBERH - discontinued operation - 150 - - - 150
FRRREA Credit to equity for the year (4) - - - - (4)
BHERRELEZHERA  Deferred tax liabilties associated
REZELNEER with a disposal group classified as
(Wit1) held for sale (note 31) (349 (505) - - - (539)
RZE--E+ZB=1-H At31st December, 2011 16,314 20,175 - 2,560 (261) 38,788

Annual Report 2011
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35.

BE-_Z—F+=
IEERIE (42) 35.
MEAMBRRERZEME  &F

EREBAEERABEELE AT
RIERT S BAR 2 EEHEREE S
i

A=+—HBILFE For the year ended 31st December, 2011

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of financial position, certain deferred tax
assets and liabilities have been offset. The following
is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for

financial reporting purposes:

AEE

The Group
—E——-5 Z—ZET-ZF
2011 2010
FHExT FAET
HK$’' 000 HK$’000
EIETRTEAE Deferred tax liabilities 38,917 43,769
EERIBEE Deferred tax assets (129) (123)
38,788 43,646

N-ZE——F+_-_A=+—H0 &%
B 2 7K B 3 i 18 [E5 18 £963,290,0007%
T (ZZE—Z4F : 23,426,000/ 7T) °
A AREHEEREF - AR AREETENA
BE&EF  BMARBRAFEBERER
RIETRIBEE o W SR IBEE 2 5 5
ABOREAEELEME R
WITB AP RERME o

At 31st December, 2011, the Group has unused
tax losses of approximately HK$63,290,000 (2010:
HK$23,426,000) available for offset against future
profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of such losses in the current year due to
the unpredictability of future profit streams. The
tax losses will expire according to the prevailing tax
laws and regulations in the countries in which the

Group operates.
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35.

36.

IEIERIE (&)

BEBEPBRMCEMGERE  KPBEMNE
REAIBEZEZENF—H—BRFTHEIR
BHNREEIRZREBZNTENR -
FEMBEREECHRAEE 2 B
BRAAZARDRABNIRBELERE -
A EEN R B RIKE 2 &F
RR e REEBR - NEE 2 M
BARIZEARRNGEMEEE BH
RORBFEMERER ZIEERIE
BEEA91,696,0008 L (Z & —FT4F ¢
1,213,000 L) « REA R K& B R &
EEHERER 2 BEKE BAH
TRERAETEN I R gRER -

R 7R

35.

36.

For the year ended 31st December, 2011

DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is
imposed on dividends declared in respect of profits
earned by the PRC subsidiaries from 1st January,
2008 onwards. Deferred tax has been provided
for in the consolidated financial statements in
respect of the undistributed earnings of the
Group’s PRC subsidiaries to the extent that such
earnings are estimated to be distributed in the
foreseeable future. At the end of the reporting
period, the aggregate amount of deferred taxation
in respect of temporary differences attributable
to the undistributed earnings of the Group's
PRC subsidiaries which has not been provided
for in the consolidated financial statements
amounted to approximately HK$1,696,000 (2010:
HK$1,213,000), as the Group is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

SHARE CAPITAL

BREEAR ok}
Number of

shares Amounts

TFHET

HK$' 000

BIREEC.10E T BB

SETE
RZZE—ZF—HA—H"

Authorised:
At 1st January, 2010,

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

T -THERZT—F 31st December, 1,000,000,000 100,000
+=—A=+—H” 2010 and 2011
BEITRER Issued and fully paid:
R—ZE—ZTF—-HA—QH- At 1st January, 2010,
—E-ZEFER-ZT—F 31st December, 261,453,600 26,145

+-—A=+—H

2010 and 2011

BEZT-TFER-F——F+=A
St-HIEFER ARAHHETM
MERRBIEIBE -« & XE BT
ARF LWES -
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Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities during the years ended 31st
December, 2010 and 2011.
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HEZZT——F+=ZA=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31st December, 2011

DR AER ZNRRS

BEARAR_ZEZT_FRATHHA
RUTZBRRBFREG  ARFRNE
PewEst &) (Taxst8l)) - Zatdlzx
ZEMOREELEERAEEMR
EZERMAKFIRMRE - AN —
E-_FHATHAER- - RIEZ:
g EFSURARAMBER (B
BYIFMTES) RAKEEMNZR,
REBER UNEZEEIHRERE
R AREHARE 2 BRMERER
BERZEA2EER TEERE  UR
BARARD -

BEZTERD 2ERETRBZR
DB THRBEARRTEDHET
P19 210% © 1% FEMRMEA 2 BB
ARBIBROHEE  THEEBALR A
ERCBEITRAZ21% °

ERTBRELAERE L B R
308 NEEM - ERREI N EHER
BIUET - BREARXREAHERTK
BEI+FfEm <z B HE A EA R ET
F-NEBARLERES EF€q
RIERERETERARITEE - 17
BRAGERTI=ER2&S% ()X
DR R R 1 ) B R AR B XX B 2 W
B+ ()i fn R RB AR X 0 A 3 AT 7 {8
R 5 BHEBRATZ PR E  Kii)
Pin E1E -

37.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS

The Company's share option scheme (the
“Scheme"”) was adopted pursuant to the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 15th
May, 2002 for the primary purpose of providing
incentives to selected participants for their
contribution to the Group, and will expire on 14th
May, 2012. Under the Scheme, the Board may grant
options to all directors of the Company (including
independent non-executive directors) and any
full-time/part-time employees of the Group, and
any participants from time to time determined by
the Board as having contributed or may contribute
to the development and growth of the Group to
subscribe for shares in the Company.

The total number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Scheme is not
permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any point in time. The number
of shares in respect of which options may be
granted to any individual is not permitted to exceed
1% of the issued share capital of the Company for
the time being.

Options granted must be taken up within 30 days
from the date of grant, upon payment of HK$1 per
each grant of option(s). Options may be exercised
at any time from the date of grant to the 10th
anniversary of the date of grant. In each grant of
options, the Board may at its discretion determine
the specific exercise period and exercise price. The
exercise price shall not be less than the highest of
(i) the closing price of shares on the Stock Exchange
on the date of the offer of grant; (ii) the average
closing price of shares on the Stock Exchange for
the five trading days immediately preceding the
date of the offer of grant; and (iii) the nominal
value of the shares.

Kith Holdings Limited
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37.

38.

A\l
4

xR 5

&

DG RERZM
(%)
BE-ZT-TFR-F——F+=
A=T—BLLEFE HEBRENTF
ABEHHITE -R_F-FFR_-F
——fF+tZA=1+—8 BEERE
M ARATEE ©

A0 m 18 & f#
(@)  BRVEERAEE

37.

38.

For the year ended 31st December, 2011

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

No share options were granted or exercised during
the years ended 31st December, 2010 and 2011.
No share options were outstanding as at 31st
December, 2010 and 2011.

SHARE PREMIUM AND RESERVES

(a) Share premium and reserves
iy | AAF
The Group The Company
“g-—f -T-TF =%--F C"F-IF
2011 2010 2011 2010

TER TAT TER TAT
HKS$’ 000 HK$' 000 HKS' 000 HK$"000

R g (E Share premium

R FE [B1 (% #5 (A772()) Capital redemption reserve (Note (i)
BEEMEE Asset revaluation reserve
EBRRES (H72(i)) Enterprise expansion fund (Note (ii))

BEES (W) Reserve fund (Note (i)

H i (07 5£0i))  Other reserves (Note (iii))
BARREE (W#Gy))  Capital reserve (Note (iv)

[E 5 s Translation reserve
REBHER Investment revaluation reserve
EfRs Contributed surplus

REB R Retained profits

74,215 74,215 74,215 74,215
624 624 624 624
54,304 54,330 - -
61,579 54,814 - -
19,853 13,086 - -
19,552 27,923 - -
(200) (200) - -
105,167 84,655 - -
- 2,146 - -

- - 29,509 29,509
216,785 223,192 9,537 694
551,879 534,785 113,885 105,042

Annual Report 2011
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38. R aEBRHE (&)

(a)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

IR A0 B K A 48 (

s 7S B8 [ {8 70 R AR X B) R SE B [
B SEHTRARERSMESL -

CEZERESNFERESNETHE
BRI R & E 2B ARIRES
BARRERLARD - BBRBTIREN
R E D RIEMRIL - BIE S
FEARKMBSIN AR ECE SR
B2 HBE - WS A B #
ZHAE - ZEEERES A BFE
MEEPEMB AR ZER M
R EL S B AT A VR 45 55 5 At o A 1 4
BT EMB AR ZER -

Hip@ @ HiEaWhERE AR T
NEREZEEBERES SR - A
NS INRR B IEE PR s s 1T AR X
DITEL 2 R PNA N FEEB =
HEIZ - TR 2 SRR R
ZERHIFERERETRHLZ
BT IR M43 -

EAFBBDEE-NANNFETS
EEAER RRBZHBARZK
DEEEARBETIREMETZ
B EEMRER 2 ZHE -

38.

For the year ended 31st December, 2011

SHARE PREMIUM AND RESERVES
(continued)

(a)

Notes:

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Share premium and reserves (continued)

Capital redemption reserve arose from the
reduction of the nominal value of the issued share
capital of the Company upon the cancellation of
the repurchased shares.

The enterprise expansion fund and reserve fund
are set up by subsidiaries established and operated
in the PRC by way of appropriation from the profit
after taxation in accordance with the relevant
laws and regulations in the PRC. Pursuant to the
“Accounting Regulations of the People's Republic
of China for Enterprises with Foreign Investment”,
if approvals are obtained from the relevant
government authorities, the enterprise expansion
fund can be used to increase the capital of the
relevant PRC subsidiaries and the reserve fund can
be used in setting off deficit or to increase the

capital of the relevant PRC subsidiaries.

Other reserves represent the amount of enterprise
expansion fund capitalised by the relevant PRC
subsidiaries and the difference between the net
proceeds received or paid after deducting the
transaction costs and the adjustment to the non-
controlling interests resulted from the equity
transaction with non-controlling interests. Details
of transaction with non-controlling interests are
set out in note 43.

Capital reserve represents the difference between
the nominal value of the shares of the acquired
subsidiaries and the nominal value of the
Company’s shares issued for the acquisition at the
time of the group reorganisation in 1998.

Kith Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011

38. BMRBERRHEE (&) 38. SHARE PREMIUM AND RESERVES
(continued)

(b) KRBz aERGHE (b) Share premium and reserves of the Company
AEEGREERSHENHEFEIR The reconciliation between the opening and
FREEG 7RI NG A IR closing balances of each component of the
FEk o ARATIRRMDEHEEREE Group's consolidated equity is set out in the
BRFEYRFRARZ B8 consolidated statement of changes in equity.
BT Details of the changes in the Company’s

share premium and reserves between the
beginning and the end of the year are set
out below:

K2 A]

The Company

BAFEE
Gt Bin a8 E4RS REET &t
Capital
redemption Share  Contributed Retained
reserve premium surplus profits Total
TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn TR
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$'000

RZZ-%¥-A-A At 1st January, 2010 624 74,215 29,509 14,707 119,055

REFER Profit for the year - - - 11,870 11,870

ERRE Dividends paid - - - (25,883) (25,883)

R_E-ZE+-A=F+-HK At 315t December, 2010 and

—T——%-f—H Tst January, 2011 624 74,215 29,509 694 105,042

FEFRT Profit for the year - - - 36,819 36,819

ERRE Dividends paid - - - (27,976) (27,976)

R=B--f+ZB=t-H At 31st December, 2011 624 74,215 29,509 9,537 113,885

KRR ZEHEHIEKith Limited R4
ARAIUNBERZHABRRESEAR
RAE-NNNFETEEEAER
PUETTREMBTZARBRMNEE
MEMZEHE -

Annual Report 2011

The contributed surplus of the Company
represents the difference between the
consolidated shareholders’ funds of Kith
Limited at the date on which it was
acquired by the Company, and the nominal
amount of the Company’s shares issued for
the acquisition at the time of the group
reorganisation in 1998.
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39.

HE-Z——%+-A=+—HIEE For the year ended 31st December, 2011

MR E R ()

(b) ARFzROBEREREE)
REBRERTE ZK’“ETZ
ERBBREATHRDIK -
ZIK’AETETEJ’E;}RTT\EJL‘AE
BREBAZ XA RIKMN K
S FEHER DK

W I SR 1R DR
féfi RN ZRE:

(i WEEEZAEREER
PREEBE - BETK
AR E B R 48F o

RZF——F+ZA=+—
H  ARal Aok TFREZ
%1% 439,046,000/ 70 (=T —
= : 30,203,000/ L) °

KREHE

FR FEKEEBEREKCERE
T kEFEMNZEERBER
T8 #93,336,0008 L (Z T —Z F :
2,089,000/ 7T) °

38.

39.

SHARE PREMIUM AND RESERVES
(continued)

(b)

Share premium and reserves of the Company

(continued)

Under the Companies Act of Bermuda, the
contributed surplus account of the Company
is available for distribution. However, the
Company cannot declare or pay a dividend,
or make a distribution out of contributed

surplus if:

(i) it is, or would after the payment be,
unable to pay its liabilities as they

become due; or

(i) the realisable value of its assets would
thereby be less than the aggregate
of its liabilities and its issued share
capital and share premium account.

As at 31 December 2011, the aggregate

amount of reserves available for distribution

to shareholders of the Company was

HK$39,046,000 (2010: HK$30,203,000).

OPERATING LEASES

Minimum lease payments paid under operating

leases in respect of land and buildings during

the year for continuing operations amounted
to approximately HK$3,336,000 (2010:
HK$2,089,000).

Kith Holdings Limited
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39. KEME (&)

RBEHR  AERERBERIATHE

39.

For the year ended 31st December, 2011

OPERATING LEASES (continued)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had

JE 2 S A] BUE ¢ & 0 B i B AE commitments for future minimum lease payments
Nz RRKEBERBLOT : under non-cancellable operating leases which fall
due as follows:
rEEH
The Group

—E——-F5 Z—ZT-ZTF

2011 2010

TER FAT

HK$’ 000 HK$' 000

—F R Within one year 2,695 1,707

FE_EERF In the second to fifth years inclusive 3,968 1,597

(BEERME)
BiERE Over five years 462 441
7,125 3,745

KERERNRIEAE
EHEMZAS
ZHAHEBN T256
F:2E75@A)

4
= °

Annual Report 2011

EmpHEA
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mAENEE
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Operating lease payments represent rentals payable
by the Group for certain of its office premises with
remaining lease terms of between 2 to 63 months
(2010: 2 to 75 months) and rentals are fixed

throughout the lease periods.
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B AR E
RIBEEF - ANEEA THEARLE

40.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had

the following capital commitments:

rEH
The Group

=2-—-F C—"ZT-ZF

2011 2010

FERT FHET

HK$' 000 HK$’000

BEWE  MWENEHEZ  Commitments for the acquisition

AW BETRERR of property, plant and equipment
RE BT AR B AT IR B contracted but not provided in the

consolidated financial statements 36,303 17,106

WRZZE——F+—HA+B K27
ZHEEFZENBRARIZEBEDE
ENRIBR AR (IEmEE]) BEBobst
SARI Y B E % - #R 1t - Bobst SAR
EHEREZEGBARNEEE —EHR
4 - {8 A4,180,000% + 3% BB (48
EH#934,590,000%7T) c RZT——
F+—A=1+—H ZELEETA
BERIRNERARBEBECBEDE  #
BRBEEERN - BEFBEHNAK
RABBMA-T——F+—A+N\H
RZZT——F+—A=Z+—HzZR%E
Moo B EARRE B ZEDRIHAR
AR TERRBR -

On 16th November, 2011, Yunnan Qiaotong
Package Printing Co., Ltd. (“Yunnan Qiaotong”),
an indirectly non wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, and Bobst SA entered into a sale
and purchase agreement pursuant to which
Bobst SA agrees to sell and Yunnan Qiaotong
agrees to purchase a printing machinery set at
a consideration of CHF4,180,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$34,590,000). Such amount is
included in the commitments for the acquisition of
property, plant and equipment contracted but not
provided as at 31st December, 2011. Details are set
out in the Company’s announcements dated 18th
November, 2011 and 21st November, 2011. Up to
the date of this report, the printing machinery set

has not yet been delivered to Yunnan Qiaotong.
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41.

42.

gER A
R-ZZT——F+-A=+—-A &

SEEMmAEES HA70,645,0008
T (=ZF—Z 4 :69,680,000/% 7T)
ZETEFREMHEENR &
522,493,000 L (=& —ZFF :
70,821,000 ) v 5T HEEURAEH
£15,086,0008 L (ZE —ZTF : &)
ZETRRESERBER TR
EBREBAERITEEZRE -

o R ——F+_-_f=+—
A AEBZREESEET AL
FAZHREEEMERERR  HIE
H {8 52,766,000 0 (Z T —ZFF :
2,401,000/ 7T) °

iR K& F 5t 2

REBEEFEBEAERCEBEES
H—IE A EETE ([BESET
g2l BB ZEETHARET
AEHZzES  BAEEZEESH
BE AEEEAAT B TREMN
B8 % & B AN LA5% 81,0007 7T 2 8RR
EHRRESFTEENK - BEINEHR

RO -

RIEFEZRAFER  AREZF
B & 8 2 BAE B b 07 IR AR 2 i 2
% E 5 E R BURRE A& - Rt
AEBELTEEEESARREERS
EREBED LAZETEEL R -
77 BT R A R AR AR IR i ET B
B z2RRARBEEATEESR
ZERRENEE - BREAHERKI - &
SHEEBAERECEMERE RE
R INRREH Z R EAME - % Fat 8l
ZCEERBNERZBUERESR
B UWEAEEZEEDHRTH
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41.

42.

For the year ended 31st December, 2011

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31st December, 2011, certain of the
Group’s buildings and prepaid lease payments
with an aggregate carrying value amounting to
HK$70,645,000 (2010: HK$69,680,000), certain
inventories amounting to HK$22,493,000 (2010:
HK$70,821,000) and certain trade receivables
amounting to HK$15,086,000 (2010: nil) were
pledged to banks for banking facilities granted to
the Group.

In addition, as at 31st December, 2011, the
Group’s obligation under finance lease is secured
by the lessor's title to the leased assets, which
have a carrying amount of HK$2,766,000 (2010:
HK$2,401,000).

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) for all qualifying
employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group, in funds under the control of trustees. The
Group contributes the lower of 5% or HK$1,000
of the relevant payroll costs, for each of the
employees every month, to the MPF Scheme, which
contribution is matched by employees.

In accordance with the rules and regulations
in the PRC, the PRC based employees of the
Group participate in various defined contribution
retirement benefit plans organised by the relevant
local government authorities under which the
Group and the PRC based employees are required
to make monthly contributions to these plans
calculated as a percentage of the employees’
salaries. The local government authorities undertake
to assume the retirement benefit obligations of all
existing and future retired PRC based employees
payable under the plans described above. Other
than the monthly contributions, the Group has no
further obligation for the payment of retirement
and other post-retirement benefits of its employees.
The assets of these plans are held separately from
those of the Group in independently administered
funds managed by the governments.
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RKBAETE (F)

REEBHWEERAMBAE 2L X
B 2 5 &l 55058,207,0005%8
TL(ZZF—Z% :6,364,00087C) ' &
BRECERABHAX - WM 1287
BRI ABIRARN - RIHHR
WHEERRESBHNGHRAE LR
R FEt &l el AER D A EBER
REE ERBERZHIZ K -

HEIERER XS

R-E——F A=+ N\H AQ7A
ZHEEFEZENBRAEMAERSE
RAF (e EB]D LNBRE
10,000,000 7T Al — & & 37 28 = 75 3%
171,402,173 0 R ATRRMEIS
BEBCER#ERARMDETMEE
%£52.01% °

RZZE——F+—HA=+H A2Qda
ZHEEZEAMNBARYSEREER
~AEI([SE]) AEEBRERK—&
WE N AL EREEER
KWEAANR S —BHEIFZ2EWNER
AZRELEREDNRERAR (%
HEE]) 228%#m RERARKE
25,035,899t (48 & 7 £930,634,000
BIL) AEBRLZRHBEZER
HaAYsLEREEamMEER
54.8% - B R SR AR AK B A A
ZHEHET WAREZATFERRE

= .
=

42.

43.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES
(continued)

The contributions paid/payable to the scheme by
the Group for these plans at rates specified in the
rules of the plans amounted to HK$8,207,000
(2010: HK$6,364,000), which had been recognised
as expense and included in staff costs as disclosed
in note 12. At the end of the reporting period,
there were no forfeited contributions in respect
of employees leaving the retirement benefits
schemes before they were fully vested in the
contributions and which were available to reduce
the contributions payable by the Group in future
years.

TRANSACTIONS WITH
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

On 28th February, 2011, MiniLogic Device
Corporation Limited (“MiniLogic HK"), an indirectly
non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
issued 1,402,173 shares to an independent third
party for a total consideration of HK$10,000,000.
As a result of the issuance of shares, the Group’s
effective interest in MiniLogic HK has been diluted
10 52.01%.

On 30th November, 2011, an agreement was
reached between Gainful Investments Limited
("Gainful”), an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, and Yunnan Qiaotong in relation
to the disposal by Gainful and the acquisition
by Yunnan Qiaotong of 28% interest in Anhui
Qiaofeng Package Printing Co., Ltd. (“Anhui
Qiaofeng”), another indirectly non wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, at a consideration
of RMB25,035,899 (equivalent to approximately
HK$30,634,000). As a result of the disposal by
Gainful, the Group’s effective interest in Anhui
Qiaofeng has been diluted to 54.8%. The fair value
of gross consideration is deemed to be nil as the
transaction is made between subsidiaries of the
Company.
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43. BEFERERZ X5 (& 43. TRANSACTIONS WITH
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
(continued)
BE-_ZE——F+-_A=+—8H1I#=F The effect of changes in the above ownership
B bR B ADT interest on the equity attributed to owners of the
A TEISRIE S S e T Company during the year ended 31st December,

2011 is summarised as follows:

HBERZERE

RELER? AEHERR
HEENEE BRB%RAER
Disposal of 28%

equity interest of

Anhui Qiaofeng

Deemed partial by Gainful
disposal of to Yunnan
MiniLogic HK Qiaotong
THT TET
HK$' 000 HK$' 000

IR IR & TS A S AN EC Y Consideration paid by non-controlling interests for
WEARZEERES 2 RE an increase in non-controlling interests in subsidiaries 10,000 -
B REMA Less: transaction costs - (1,017)
B EREERES 2 SE Less: amounts transferred to non-controlling interests (2,630) (14,724)
REMHEER 2SS Amount recognised in other reserves 7,370 (15,741)

I q8 Annual Report 2011
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TEHFEERS
AEBERATHRGEE RER
MEEH BLXBREERLREE
R

- BHE_ZT——F+t-_A=+—

BILFE  AEBEEA 85
HOREBEBMEHEE ZWIE
2 & R(B(E /563,000 7T °

- BEZT-TF+-A=1—

HEFE AXEBZTEREF
Apex Digital Inc. ([ Apex]) &
RAEARR—HEZENEB R A
BEREFAERAA(BHE
F1) #995,144,0007% 7T (1A
B 412,198,000 7T) - A7
fE W Apex® 5 R &tk R 1B
BEFEBAEME - ZAH
Ber 2 BN R REREApex
#163,944,0007% T (k48 & R
478,198,000 7T)  EW E 5
R 3% K Apex#719,500,000% J©
(=% #8 & 7 #92,500,000% L)
ZHEETFARAS—HEEEM
J& A FIKith Consumer Product

Inc.

44.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

The Group entered into the following non-cash
operating, investing and financing activities which
are not reflected in the consolidated statement of

cash flows:

- During the year ended 31st December, 2011,
the Group acquired a motor vehicle with a
capital value of HK$563,000 under a finance

lease.

- During the year ended 31st December, 2010,
Apex Digital Inc. (“Apex”), a major customer
of the Group, owed Kith Electronics Limited
("KEL"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, an amount of approximately
HK$95,144,000 (or equivalent to
approximately US$12,198,000), representing
the balance of trade receivables due from
Apex and KEL's USA attorney fees. This
balance was partially settled by transferring
to Kith Consumer Product Inc., another
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
the trade receivables of Apex amounted
to approximately HK$63,944,000 (or
equivalent to approximately US$8,198,000)
and inventories of Apex amounted to
approximately HK$19,500,000 (or equivalent
to approximately US$2,500,000).

Kith Holdings Limited
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45. BEALIR S 45. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
AEEBEFRNHEBEEALTETZRS During the year, the Group had transactions with
mr related parties as follows:

BEALTRE XEME —E——F —E-ETF
Name of related parties Nature of transactions 2011 2010
FERT FET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
ErEBAETIMBUS (75t (a) AEBEEMNZEE 100 100
Finance Bureau of Zhaotong Rentals paid by the Group
City, Yunnan Province (note (a))
Oncapital Limited (47 (b)) AABENZHAERE
(note (b)) Office rentals paid by
the Company 876 876
Htaz Notes:
(a) EHEBBETHHENEMBBEE (a) Finance Bureau of Zhaotong City, Yunnan

EERARAR(ZEBBEE
BB vEEEMN EHREBEE
EBRBEAQRZ —BHBRARZ
30% B AR o

(b) Oncapital Limited/5— @ AR A
Hp—Z#FEEH 2 A0 -

TEEBAECHE
FR EFZRTIEEEREBZHMKE
HESIT

Province, is the supervisory unit of Yunnan
Zhaotong Stated-owned Asset Administration
Company Limited (“YZSAACL"). YZSAACL holds
a 30% equity interest in a subsidiary of the
Company.

(b) Oncapital Limited is a company that is controlled
by a director of the Company.

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members
of key management during the year is as follows:

—2——-F ZT-TF

2011 2010

THEx FAT

HK$'000 HK$' 000

SE-EEER Short-term benefits 4,122 2,732
BER 12 18 A Post-employment benefits 40 36
4,162 2,768

EENTETHRABZHFHIEER
BRALZRBARTIGBLERETE -

Annual Report 2011

The remuneration of directors and key executives
is determined having regard to the performance of
individuals and market trends.
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FTEMBLRZES

HEZZT——F+=ZA=+—HIFE Forthe year ended 31st December, 2011

46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES
R-ZE——FR-_FTE—ZFTF+_H Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the
=+—B AQFTEHEBAFZE Company at 31st December, 2011 and 2010 are as
SN follows:
BREATRAR
i/ LERRA/
(i) R R ERE BEERERINL TEXE
Issued and
fully paid
Place of ordinary
incorporation/ share capital/ Percentage of
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital ownership interest Principal activities
ARA/ KB

DAfR AEEER
Heldby  Attributable

the Company/ to the
subsidiaries Group
% %
THELRRARERAT P 9,380,000% 0 72 548 ERIRAEREER
(Z2-%F:72) (C3-%F:60)
Anhui Qiaofeng Package PRC US$9,380,000 72 54.8  Printing and manufacturing

Printing Co., Ltd. *

KEERERDA &b

Ever Honest Industries Limited ~ Hong Kong

HEREARAR 'R
Gainful Investments Limited Hong Kong
EXARAR BB
Good Cheers Limited Hong Kong

REEREHRERAR  HE
Harbin Gaomei Printing PRC
Company Limited *

(2010: 72) (2010: 66) of packaging products

BT 100 100 HEZEK
HKS2 100 100 Investment holding
4B 100 100 HEZER
HK$4 100 100 Investment holding
4T 100 100 REHERK
HK$4 100 100 Investment holding
2,500,000% 7 80 80 HRIREERRER
1S$2,500,000 80 80  Printing and

manufacturing of
packaging products

Kith Holdings Limited 20 I
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46. ETEMBRAR 2ER (&) 46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
ERTRAR
it/ ZERRA/
MWEARERE R EBRE BEREZAL TEXY
Issued and
fully paid
Place of ordinary
incorporation/ share capital/ Percentage of
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital ownership interest Principal activities
ARA/ KB
RAfME AREEE
Held by  Attributable
the Company/ to the
subsidiaries Group
% %
Kith Consumer Product Inc. 350 30,000% T 100 100 PHERZHABER
USA US$30,000 100 100 Distribution of television
business-related products
BREEARAT A 4B 100 100 REHBRH
Kith Credit Limited Hong Kong HK$4 100 100 Provision of financial services
BRETARAA e 4BT 100 100 2HEFER
Kith Electronics Limited Hong Kong HK$4 100 100  Distribution of electronic
products
Kith Limited RERUES AXT 100 100 REER
BVI Us$4 100 100 Investment holding
BEERARAA Bk 4B 100 100 MEERAREHERSE
Kith Resources Limited Hong Kong HK$4 100 100 Provision of financial services
to group companies
BRREERLF Bk 4B 100 100 7PHEEMER
Kith Supplies Limited Hong Kong HK$4 100 100 Distribution of
miscellaneous products
REBHEEERAA RERS 380,000/ 7T 52.01 5201 REER
(Z2-2%F: (Z2-%%:
TEm) THER)
Megalogic Technology Cayman Islands HK$380,000 52.01 52.01  Investment holding
Holdings Limited (2010: N/A) (2010: N/A)
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For the year ended 31st December, 2011

46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

ERTRAR
i/ LERRA/
WEARER RIBH dREE BEREZEIML TEXY
Issued and
fully paid
Place of ordinary
incorporation/ share capital/ Percentage of
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital ownership interest Principal activities
ARR/WE
RAfME AREERA
Held by  Attributable
the Company/ to the
subsidiaries Group
% %
MERMARLE ER 7,651,200% T 100 5001 SMERZRT RE
(Z2-%%: (Z2-B%:  (Z2-%F:  L¥E
6,249,027/ ) 637) 637)
MiniLogic Device Corporation Hong Kong HK$7,651,200 100 52.01  Design, development and
Limited (2010:  (2010:63.7)  (2010: 63.7) sale of integrated circuits
HK$6,249,027)

EERRABKORBRAR +H 23,000,000% 7T 60 60 HRREEBRER
Yunnan Qiaotong Package PRC US$23,000,000 60 60  Printing and manufacturing
Printing Co., Ltd. * of packaging products

BENEVHOBREEAR TE A %6,200,0007C 100 60 HRIREEBRER
Zhaotong Xingiao Printing PRC RMB6,200,000 100 60  Printing and manufacturing

Co., Ltd.**

of packaging products

Kith Holdings Limited
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46.

47.

TEMBEBRRZEHR (&)

* RERAARPERZHNEE
AELE.

** ZARBNPERIZBEREER
e

AR EERAKith Limited 2 #25 -
A A 1 A A R
Y=

EMBARERS BRI ERETHA
EEEREEADAFEZELRE
o

EREINEERATIEFELAEER
EHRAKBRNAEERENKRE
EFEIEMNHZIARANBAR -
EEZRR M E2HMBLAZF
B @EERNBRITE-

2B HZHBER
RBEBRK  RAGRERETHER
AIFTE 2 IRITIEEMIRITE LB e
RoNBEBMK ARAEERA
AN A AR A B ] bR A
REBR - RMEHR ARARN L
MEFHZERETN 2 &= 8 ERE
REBMBARMRREE 2 42%
BN /447,570,000 70 (ZF —F 4 :
309,607,000/ 7T) °

Annual Report 2011

46.

47.

For the year ended 31st December, 2011

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

* These companies are sino-foreign equity joint
ventures established in the PRC.

i The company is a limited liability company
established in the PRC.

The Company directly holds the interest in Kith
Limited. All other interests above are indirectly held

by the Company.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
subsisting at the end of the reporting period or at

any time during the reporting period.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the
Company which, in the opinion of the directors,
principally affected the results of the Group for
the reporting period or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group at the end
of the reporting period. To give details of all the
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,

result in particulars of excessive length.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEES ISSUED
As at the end of the reporting period, the Company

has issued financial guarantees to banks in respect
of banking facilities granted to certain subsidiaries.
As at the end of the reporting period, the directors
of the Company do not consider it probable that
a claim will be made against the Company under
any of the aforesaid guarantees. The maximum
liability of the Company at the end of the reporting
period under the aforesaid guarantees issued is the
aggregate amount of the facilities drawn down by
the relevant subsidiaries, being HK$447,570,000
(2010: HK$309,607,000).
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f
RZZEENF+—A+-B A&E
SRTE BA#J5,110,0008 TR (B H & 2
BRFAZEAMBIVHRES
REFAR(FIXD)) (ZAal#
EZHRREERRER) 2 2 HBRARE
HUHEBEBRAEE 260%) ([RRA
@\J)%$/IhfWZ#Tka§MFE
R]) cZXPEER_ZTTAF+—
A+ BREAOZERREHME BE
%ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁmﬁﬁ=%5“$%
moRNZTE—TFNAZA ZEE
ﬁﬁﬁ%@%i@ﬁﬁ%%@&ﬁ&
K -BIXHEREEBBZFIAR
EHmES BREXR-ZT—FHA
TBEHERAR  EEERR
HZBEEERRGERE - RZF
——H&RAZ-+MA EEBEEAE
Prigi E5F - BB —F A -0
NEEGEMEIKEEBRZBERE
FIERERYERRERR - HEXR
HmE BE AR MR B H &K AR

ol
ojp
0=

N

ERULERLEFRER BTN -
BEEBEFGMEIRNEE 2 JKE
RN eE Al RBEEZZ
—ZTF+ZA=+—RHLFE - BI
OB EAED BERE  MAEBEE
188,759,000/ T B 4R & Wi o 2= P T

=7
s °©
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48.

For the year ended 31st December, 2011

LITIGATION

On 16th November, 2009, the Group decided to
dispose the entire equity interest (being 60% of the
total paid-up capital) (the “Equity Interest”) held by
ERMRIIFHBERAREE
AR ("I E") which is engaged in printing and

Yunnan Qiaotong in

manufacturing of packaging products, to the non-
controlling shareholder (the “Buyer”) of #&TFEN
at a consideration of approximately HK$5,110,000,
which was approved by the owner’s meeting
held on 16th November, 2009. The Buyer did not
execute his verbal commitment to purchase the
Equity Interest. On 2nd September, 2010, Yunnan
Qiaotong launched a legal proceeding against the
Buyer to recover the investment cost, the amount
owed by #E TR E] to Yunnan Qiaotong and related
compensation amount. A court judgement was
issued on 11th May, 2011 in which all the legal
claims of Yunnan Qiaotong were declined. On
24th May, 2011, Yunnan Qiaotong filed an appeal
requesting for the court to revoke the judgement
of the first trial and claiming against the Buyer for
compensation of the economic losses suffered by
Yunnan Qiaotong together with the legal costs. The
final judgement has not yet been issued up to the

date of this report.

In view of the uncertainty of the outcome of
the aforesaid legal appeal and management’s
assessment of the recoverable amounts of assets of
TR ED to be minimal, all the assets of &I FZED
had been fully impaired and an impairment loss of
HK$8,759,000 was recognised in the consolidated
income statement during the year ended 31st
December, 2010.
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ERARIER 2D FEE
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RZZE——FHAWA AR
Al — AR REETT 2 R
ERG NBRBEBELAS
IR BE X P& AR (18I 4R D)
B L Ao RERE - H
BRHEEKRERER - 715
M -

WEETKE AEBEERE—
E——F+ZA=+—HILF
EzHReREkxP AR
%= #J37,000,0008 T - B &
BRASERBER 2 ATE
BAEEERBBELRESRZ
EEFEERMBEANERZ
EH o
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49.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

a.

Completion of the Spin-off of Megalogic
Holdings

On 4th May, 2011, the Company announced
a possible deemed disposal transaction by
way of the spin-off of design, development
and sale of integrated circuits business
through a separate listing of Megalogic
Holdings on the Growth Enterprise Market
(“GEM™) of the Stock Exchange. Details are

set out in note 1.

The Spin-off was completed and Megalogic
Holdings was successfully listed on GEM of
the Stock Exchange on 19th January, 2012.
Upon completion of the Spin-off, a gain
of approximately HK$37,000,000, being
the difference between the fair value of
interest retained by the Group and the net
assets of Megalogic Holdings effectively held
by the Group together with the goodwill
recognised, would be recognised in the
consolidated income statement of the Group

for the year ending 31st December, 2012.
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=

BE=SHEWBYE

R-ZE——F=A=+H" =
MEE EEEA—BERA
(ERAD RERAZWE
ARA([EBADL—H=
FwE(=FHED - Bt
ARBAREERARNEHARGBR
BEENZREEEE (21
REBLSBERRFTH L)
AR ¥37,582,0007T (& K
#946,298,0007% L) ([ K (8 E
EXDZzEE -R=ZFT——
F+ZA=+—8 ' KEEE
P ARBEHEREH (R
MieE27) c REBEERF L
AR #16,972,0007T (& K%
#720,908,0008 L) ER =&
—ZHE=ZA=TARE=F1%
BRANBECEE BRBEHOA
R 20,610,0007T (8 & R &Y
25,390,000 7T) # A 83 53 &
BARERICREREZ L
BEEsf ((ZEMEDZ2H
AXfF-RA - EEEHEEE
EAREBEREZEWES L
MEKREGZ BEAREH
B ZEMENEREE P -
MZzEMEERTEEBRAL

49. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
(continued)

b.

Acquisition of properties under tripartite

agreement

On 30th March, 2012, Yunnan Qiaotong,
a debtor of Yunnan Qiaotong (the
“Debtor”) and a subsidiary of the Debtor
(the “Transferee”) entered into a tripartite
agreement (the “Tripartite Agreement”),
pursuant to which the Transferee
assumed the Debtor’s obligation to repay
the outstanding loans (including total
outstanding principal and accumulated
interest) due to Yunnan Qiaotong
amounting to RMB37,582,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$46,298,000) (the
“Qutstanding Loan"”), which is included in
short-term loans receivable balance as set
out in note 27 as at 31st December, 2011.
Approximately RMB16,972,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$20,908,000) of the
Outstanding Loan has been repaid in cash
on 30th March, 2012 in accordance with
the terms of the Tripartite Agreement. The
balance of approximately RMB20,610,000
(equivalent to approximately
HK$25,390,000) will be settled by the
transfer of 7 residential units which are
under development by the Transferee and
are permitted for pre-sale (the “Properties”).
On the same date, Yunnan Qiaotong and the
Transferee entered into property acquisition
agreements in respect of the sale and
purchase of each of the Properties. Up to
the date of this report, the Properties are
still under development and the transfer of
Properties to Yunnan Qiaotong has not yet

been completed.
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WINERA BB E ML A
ERILELEE Y 58 EREAN
HENKREARECEEBREKILE
BEBZREFERIET - Bl - BF
BEFEHBSBECETNHER
B UHAREEZ2FIHR -
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50.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

As explained in note 11 to the consolidated
financial statements, due to the classification of
discontinued operation, the profit from continuing
and discontinued operations in the consolidated
income statement have been revised. Accordingly,
certain prior year comparative amounts have been
reclassified and restated to conform to the current

year's presentation.
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